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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Directors’ report

Results

The conschdated income statement on page 10 shows a loss attnbutable to equity shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2009 of £2,797 millicn

Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries provide a wide range of banking and financial services through branches and offices in the UK
and overseas

Business review
The consolidated resuits of Lioyds TSB Bank plc (the Bank) together with its subsidiaries (the Group) are as follows

The loss before tax of £4,378 muflion for the year ended 31 December 2009 compares to a profit before tax of £825 million for
the year ended 31 December 2008 The decrease in profit anses principally as a result of the payment of a fee of
£2,500 mullion to the UK Government as part of the agreement not to enter into the Government Asset Protection Scheme (the
‘GAPS fee') and a payment of £3,000 mulhion to its fellow banking subsidiary, Bank of Scotland plc to support ts financial and
reputational position and to facilitate the ongoing integration of the group’s banking systems (the ‘HBQS subvention payment’)
together with an increase in the impairment charge, which reflects the recent credit environment and current economic
conditions These adverse impacts have been partly offset by gains of £1,773 million ansing on the redemption of subordinated
debt and by the absence in 2009 of a charge in respect of market dislocation

Net interest income declined by 32 per cent to £5,299 million as both interest income and interest expense fell in response to
the historically low interest rate environment that has prevailed throughout the year Declines in fee and commission income
and expense reflect lower volumes of new business, in particular reduced payment protection insurance income Net trading
income, which includes the impact of changes in value of financial instruments held at fair value in the insurance businesses,
increased by £16,469 million compared with the previous year, much of this 1s attributable to long-term policyholders and 1s
offset by a movement in insurance claims (see below) Insurance premium income declined as a result of lower levels of new
business but other operating income increased by £2,779 million, the year ended 31 December 2009 inciudes £1,773 miilion
of gains ansing on the repurchase of own debt and an £836 mullion improvement In the movement in value of in-force
Insurance business

Overall, total income increased by £15,195 million to £22,189 milion from £6,994 million in the year ended
31 December 2008

Insurance claims increased by £12,489 mullion to a charge of £9,630 million in 2009 compared to a credit of £2.859 million
in 2008, reflecting the substantial improvement in investment returns attnbutable to policyholders

Operating expenses increased by £6,503 million to £12,523 million in 2009 compared to £6,020 million in 2008, however
excluding the £2,500 millon GAPS fee and the £3,000 mulhon HBOS subvention payment, operating expenses were
£1,003 millien higher at £7,023 million reflecting costs of £635 mullion incurred in relation to the integration of the Lloyds TSB
and HBOS businesses

Impairment losses increased by £1,404 million to £4,416 million 1n the year ended 31 December 2009 from £3,012 million
last year The increase includes £1,664 million in respect of loans and advances to customers and reflects the substantial
deterioration m the credit environment, partly offset by a reduction 1n the charge 1n respect of loans and advances to banks and
other impairment provisions

Total assets have increased by £136,789 mullion, largely reflecting the funding of fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings,
principally HBOS An increase in cash and balances at central banks of £31,081 millicn, as more funds are being placed with
the Bank of England due to the attractive interest rate paid, has been more than offset by reductions in avallable-for-sale
financial assets, as treasury bills held at the end of 2008 to provide liquidity have matured, external lending to customers,
reflecting increased write-offs, deleveraging, and weak demand for credit, and in dernvative assets

Financial nsk management objectives and policies

Information regarding the financial sk management objectives and policies of the Group, 1n relation to the use of financial
instruments, 1s given in note 51 on pages 81 to 101




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Directors’ report

Group structure

Following a rearganisation of Lloyds Banking Group on 1 January 2010, the Bank acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued ardinary
share capital of HBOS plc from Lloyds Banking Group plc, the consideration for this transfer was the 1ssue of 21 4 million shares
to Lloyds Banking Group plc for a total value of £21,394 milhion

Directors
The names of the directors of the Bank are shown on page 5

Six directors stood down from the Board dunng the year, as follows Mr J P du Plessis {17 Apnl), Mr Ewan Brown (5 June),
Sir Victor Blank (15 September), Mr PN Green (23 October), Sirr Dawd Manning (2 November) and
Ms C J McCall {31 December)

Mr T T Ryan, Mr Anthony Watson and Sir Winfried Bischoff joined the board on 1 March 2009, 2 Apnl 2009 and
15 September 2009, respectively and Mr G R Moreno and Mr D L Roberts have been appointed directors from 1 March 2010

Directors’ interests

The directors are also directors of Lloyds Banking Group plc and therr interests in the share and loan capital of Lloyds Banking
Group plc and its subsidianes are shown n the report and accounts of that company

Directors’ indemnities

The directors, including six former directors who left during the year, have entered into individual contracts of indemnity with
Lloyds Banking Group plc which constituted ‘qualifying third party indemnity provisions’ and ‘qualifying pension scheme
indemrnity provisions’ for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 These contracts were In force durning the whole of the
financial year or from the date of appointment in respect of the three directors who joined the board in 2009 The contracts for
existing directors remain n force and are available for inspection at the Bank’s registered office

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for prepaning the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the consolidated and parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the parent company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that pertod The directors consider
that, in preparing the financial statements on pages 10 to 106, the Bank and the Group have used appropriate accounting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all accounting
standards which they consider applicable have been followed

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the Bank and the Group keep proper acceunting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Bank and the Group and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the I1AS
Regulation They have a general responsibilty for talung such steps as are reascnably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Bank and the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanities

A copy of the financial statements 1s placed on our website www lloydsbankinggroup com The directors are responsible for the
matntenance and integnty of statutory and audited nformation i relation to the Bank on that website Information published on
the intemet 15 accessible In many countries with different legal requirements Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Going concern

The going concern of the Bank and the Group 1s dependent on successfully funding their respective balance sheets and
maintaining adequate levels of capital In order to satisfy themselves that the Bank and the Group have adequate resources to
continue to operate for the foreseeable future, the directors have considered a number of key dependencies as discussed in
note 1 and additionally have considered projechions for the Group’s capital and funding position Having considered these, the
directors consider that it 1s appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts
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Directors’ report

Employees
The Bank 1s committed to providing employment practices and policies which recognise the diversity of our workforce and
ensure equality for employees regardiess of sex, race, disability, age, sexual orientation or religious behef

In the UK, the Bank belongs to the major employer groups campaigning for equality for the above groups of staff, including
Employers’ Forum on Disability, Employers’ Forum on Age, Stonewali and the Race for Opportunity Qur involvement with these
orgamisations enables us to identify and implement best practice for our staff

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through such measures as team meetings, briefings,
internal communications and opimion surveys There are well established procedures, including regular meetings with
recogrised unions, to ensure that the views of employees are taken nto account in reaching decisions

Schemes offering share options or the acguisition of shares are available for most staff, to encourage their financial involvement
in Lloyds Banking Group

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Bank has signed up to the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ published by the Department for Business Innovation and Skilis (‘BIS'),
regarding the making of payments to supphers A copy of the code and information about it may be obtained from the BIS
Publications Orderline 0845 Q15 0010, quoting ref URN 04/606 Aiternatively, visit www payontime co uk for details

The Bank's policy Is to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days after the
date of the invoice, except where other arrangements have been negohated It 1s the policy of the Bank to atnde by the agreed
terms of payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of the contract

The number of days required to be shown in this repont, to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, 1s 29 This
bears the same proportion to the number of days in the year as the aggregate of the amounts owed to trade creditors at
31 December 2009 bears to the aggregate of the amounts invoiced by suppliers durning the year

Directors’ responsibility statement
Each of the current directors, whose names are shown on page 5 of this annual report, confirms that, to the best of his or her
knowledge

« the financial staterments, prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the

European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Bank and Group,
and

« the management report contained in the business review includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Bank and Group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face

Auditors and audit information

Each person who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that, so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the Bank’s auditors are unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
ought to have taken as a director to make humself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Bank's auditors are aware of that information This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

On behalf of the board

\ .

Harry F Baines
Company Secretary

25 February 2010
Company number 2065
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\ Lioyds TSB Bank plc

Principal nsks and uncertainties

At present the most significant rnisks faced by the Bank are

Credit
Definitron The nisk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial loss, as a result of the failure of the party with whom
the Bank has contracted to meet its obligations (both on and off balance sheet)

Features Ansing from the Bank's lending activities in its retail, wholesale and wealth and international aperations Over the last
two years the deteriorating economic outlook, both In the UK and overseas, brought about by the banking cnsis has impacted
the financial services industry resulting in further high profile losses and wrtedowns The Bank 1s impacted by the economic
downturn and a further worsening of the business environment could adversely impact earmings

This poses a major rnisk to the Bank and its lending to

s Retail customers, where reducing affordability and/or asset values ansing from a combination of house price falls, contmuing
high, or increasing levels of unemployment, consumer cver-indebtedness, and nsing interest rates impact both secured and
unsecured retail exposures

e Wholesale customers, where companies are facing increasingly difficult business conditions, resulting in corporate default
levels rising and leading to increases in corporate impairment The Bank has high levels of exposure in the UK and some
internationally There are particular concentrations to financial institutions and real estate

The Bank follows a through the economic cycle, relationship based, business model with nsk management processes, appetites
and experienced staff i place

Legal and regulatory
Defirntion The nsk of regulatory action leading to fine and/or public censure and/or successful legal action being taken against
the Bank as a result of fallure to meet one or more legal and/or regulatory requirements either in the UK or averseas

Features The industry I1s currently subject to a wide range of international and UK consuitations on proposals to change the
regulatory requirements For example the Basel Committes on Banking Supervision has issued proposals with respect to capital
and liquidity requirements for banks (‘Strengthering the resilience of the banking sector’ and ‘International framework for
liguidity nsk measurement, standards and monitoring’} and draft propesals have alsc been 1ssued for new capital requirements
for insurers {Solvency 11} In the UK we have seen the Turner review and more recently, proposals have been issued for
governance, recovery and resolution (‘Living Wiils') arrangements and also, potentially conduct of business requirements, which
could have sigmficant implications for past business as well as future product offerings for customers There 15 a high levei of
uncertainty both as to the financial outcome in terms of specific requirements and the speed of implementation in the UK and
internationally

The Bank 1s currently assessing the impacts of these regulatory proposals, and will participate in the consultation and calibration
processes to be undertaken by the various regulatory bodies during 2010 The Bank currently meets and exceeds its regulatory
capital requirements and expects to continue to do so However, the FSA could impose more stringent capital and hguidity
reguirements, and/or introduce new ratios and/or change the manner 1in which 1t applies existing requirements to recapitalised
banks Any one or combmation of these events could result in the Bank being forced to raise further capital or to divest assets

The Bank has made good preparations for the FSA's new liguidity regime (ILAS) and 1s ready to meet the reporting implications
later in the year

The Bank's policy 1s to maintain high levels of compliance with regulatery requirements and it will organise its business to
maintain this level of compliance as the requirements become clearer, being mindful of mamntaining an appropriate balance
between risk and reward

Liguidity and funding

Defimtion Liquidity nisk 1s defined as the nsk that the Bank has insufficient financial resousces to meet its commitments as they
fall due, or can only secure them at excessive cost Funding nisk 1s defined as the nsk that the Bank does not have sufficiently
stable and diverse sources of funding or the funding structure 15 inefficient
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Prnincipal nsks and uncertainties

Features Ansing in the banking business and reflecting the nisk that the Bank 1s unable to attract and retain either retall,
wholesale or corporate deposits or issue debt secunties Like all major banks, the Bank 1s dependent on confidence in the short
and longer term wholesale funding markets, should the Bank, due to exceptional circumstances, be unable to continue to
source sustainable funding and provide liquidity when necessary, it could impact its ability to fund 1ts financial obligations

The key dependenctes for successfully funding the Bank’s balance sheet include the continued functioning of the money and
capital markets at their current levels, successful night sizing of the Bank’s balance sheet, the continuation of HM Treasury
facihties 1n accordance with the terms agreed, hmited further detencration in the UK's and the Bank's credit rating and no
significant or sudden withdrawal of deposits resulting 1n increased rehance on money markets or UK Government support
schemes A return to the extreme market conditrons of 2008 would place a strain on the Bank's ability to meet its financial
commitments

Liquidity nisk 1s managed within a board approved framework using a range of metrics to monitor the Bank’s profile against its
stated appetite and potential market conditions

Customer treatment

Defimtion The nsk of regulatory censure and/or a reduction in earnings/value, through financial or reputational loss, from
inappropriate or peor customer treatment

Features Customer treatrment and how the Bank manages s customer relationships affects all aspects of the Bank’s operations
and 1s closely aligned with achievement of the Bank's strategic aim — to create deep long lasting relationships with its customers
There 15 currently a hugh level of scrutiny regarding the treatment of customers by financial institutions from the press, pohiticians
and regulatory bodies

The Office of Fair Trading’s {OFT) investigation and legal test case in respect of unarranged overdraft charges on personal current
accounts concluded 1in 2009 The OFT 15 however continuing to discuss its concerns in relation to the personal current account
market with the banks, consumer groups and other organisations under the auspices of 1ts Market Study into personal current
accounts In October 2009, the OFT pubhshed voluntary inibiatives agreed with the industry and consumer groups to improve
transparency of the costs and benefits of personal current accounts and improvements to the switching process The OFT aims
to report on progress in respect of further changes it believes are required to make the market work in the best interest of bank
customers by the end of March 2010

The Bank regularly reviews its product range to ensure that it meets regulatory requirements and 1s competitive in the market
place Treating Customers Fairly remains the key principle underpinning the FSA’s consumer protection objective An additional
challenge for the Bank 15 ensuring the fair treatment of customers duning integration of the two hentage businesses As a result
the customer relationship management nsks posed by integration are carefully considered through the integration governance
process in place If the Bank 1s unable to demonstrate the fair treatment of its customers there 1s the nsk of increased complaints
from customers, the potential for regulatory action (which could include reviews of past business and/or the payment of fines
and compensation) and adverse media coverage (leading to reputational damage in the markeiplace) The Bank has policies,
procedures and governance arrangements in place to facilitate the fair treatment of customers

People
Definition The sk of reduction 1n earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from failure to retain, tram,
reward, recruit and incentivise appropnately skilled staff, inappropriate staff behaviour or industnal action

Features The delivery of the Bank’s objectives 1s underpinned by the ability to attract, retain and develop the best talent 1y the
industry The challenges to the people agenda have never been greater with increased regulatory and public interest tn
remuneration prachices, the effects of the Government shareholding and the impacts of integration The Bank welcomes the
regulation of remuneration provided there I1s an international consensus and will comply with the FSA Code The Bank has
managed the imbial stages of integration, worlang to establish control by defining and implementing the new organisational
structures and continues to manage the relattonship with colleagues during this period of change The Bank has policies,
procedures and governance arrangements in place to ensure the effective management of people risk as the Bank integrates and
grows its business Proposals to harmonsse employee terms and condiions have been published and the Bank is consulting
with the various representative unions The Bank actively manages its relationships with unions, but 1s aware of the danger of




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Principal nsks and uncertainties

industrial action, business disruption and reputational impact ansing from union behaviour and communications People nisk 15
closely monitored as a key nsk indicator, as well as being subject to oversight by the board

Integration

Defintron The risk that the Bank fails to realise the business growth opportunities, revenue benefits, cost synergies, cperational
efficiencies and other benefits anticipated from, or incurs unanticipated costs and losses associated with, the acquisition of
HBOS plc

Features The integration of the two legacy organisations presents one of the largest integration challenges that has been seen in
the UK financial services industry There 1s a nsk that the Bank may fall to realise the husiness growth opportunities, revenue
benefits, cost synergies, operational efficiencies and other henefits anticipated from the acquisition of HBOS plc by Lioyds
Banking Group plc, or may incur unanticipated costs and losses associated as a result As a consequence, the Bank's results
may suffer as a result of operational, financial management and other integration risks The nsk of fallure to deliver synergy
benefits or to meet publicly stated targets could potentially result in a loss of shareholder or market confidence with negative
perceptions of the Bank’s integration strategy As the Bank goes through the integration process there 1s a danger of losing key
staff potenbially impacting upon integration plans

An Integration executive board has been created 1o oversee the integration process The Bank 1s now one year into the
integration programme and has a fully developed and functioning governance framework to manage these risks, with clear
understanding of the dependencies and phased deliverables through to 2012 The programme s ahead of plan
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Independent auditors’ report

To the members of Lloyds TSB Bank plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements of Lloyds TSB Bank plc for the year ended
31 December 2009 which comprise the consolidated and parent company balance sheets, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and parent company cash flow statements, the
consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that
has been apphed in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement on page 4, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Qur responsibility 1s to audit the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, i gving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financal statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or errar This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinien on financial statements
In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
31 December 2009 and of the group's profit and group’s and parent company's cash flows for the year then ended,

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the Information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
Is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparues Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, tn
our cpinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recetved from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration spectfied by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit

lan Rankin {Senior Statutory Auditor) \ \_hﬂ_
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP \b .

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Edinburgh

25 February 2010
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008

Note £ million £ miltion

Interest and similar iIncome 11,575 17,569
Interest and similar expense (6,276) (9,797}
Net interest income 4 5,299 7,772
Fee and commission income 2,821 3,231
Fee and commission expense (680) (694}
Net fee and commission income 5 2,141 2,537
Net trading income 6 7,214 (9,255)
[nsurance premium inceme 7 4,228 5412
Other operating income 8 3,307 528
Other iIncome 16,890 (778)
Total income 22,189 6,994
Insurance claims ] (9,630) 2,859
Total income, net of insurance claims 12,559 9 853
Subvention payment (3,000} -
Government Asset Protection Scheme fee (2,500} -
Other operating expenses (7,023) (6,020}
Total operating expenses 10 (12,523) (6,020
Trading surplus 36 3,833
Impairment 11 (4,416) (3,012)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 2 4
Profit (loss) before tax (4,378) 825
Taxation Iz 1,605 19
Profit (loss) for the year (2,773) 844
Profit attnbutable to minonty interests 24 26
Profit {loss) attnbutable to equity shareholders (2,797) 818
Profit (loss) for the vear (2,773) 844

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of comprehensive iIncome
for the year ended 31 December 2009

The Group
2009 2008
£ milhien £ milon
Profit (loss) for the year {2,773) 844
Other comprehensive income.
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Change in fair value 1,202 (2,031
Transferred to ncome statement 1n respect of disposals (3) (19)
Transferred to income statement in respect of iImpairment 38 102
Other transfers to income statement {21) (66)
1,216 (2,014)
Movement i cash flow hedging reserve, net of tax
Effective portion of changes in farr value taken to other comprehensive income 3} (24)
Net gains transferred to the income statement (12) 12
(15} (12)
Currency translation differences, net of tax 131 (359)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,332 (2,385)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,441) (1,541)
Total comprehensive income attnbutable to minonty nterests 5 54
Total comprehensive income attnbutable to equity shareholders (1,446) {1,595)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,441) (1,541)
The Bank
2009 2008
£ millian £ million
Loss for the year {1,909) (418)
Other comprehensive income.
Movements In revaluation reserve in respect of avallable-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
Change in fair value (21) (244)
Transferred to income statement in respect of disposals (3) (19
Transferred to income statement in respect of impairment 11 102
Other transfers to income statement {42) (66)
{55) {227)
Moverment in cash flow hedges, net of tax
Effective portion of changes in fair value taken to other comprehensive iIncome (3) (24)
Net gains transferred to the income statement (12) 12
(15) (12}
Currency translation differences (11) 34
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (81 {205)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,990) {623)

i1




Assets
Cash and balances at central banks
items n the course of collection from banks

Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2009

Trading and other financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Dernvative financial instruments

Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to banks
Debt securities

Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment properties

Investments in joint ventures and associates
Goodwill

Value of in-force business

Other intangible assets

Tangible fixed assets

Current tax recoverable

Deferred tax assets

Investment In subsidiary undertakings
Other assets

Total assets

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note £ mullson £ milhon £ milhon £ milkion
36,089 5,008 35,964 4,890
1,045 946 1,004 909
13 48,894 45,115 2,633 3,679
14 18,797 28,884 17,937 26,704
16 245,226 240,344 253,111 249,363
i5 175,554 38,733 176,556 36,968
19 2,636 4416 2,830 3,863
423,416 283,493 432,497 290,194
21 26,089 55,707 13,514 58,444
22 2,340 2,631 - -
56 55 61 61
23 2,016 2,256 - -
24 2,403 1,893 - -
25 205 197 111 100
26 4,125 2,965 1,374 1,333
85 440 886 702
39 2,438 837 2,672 1,161
27 - - 15,960 15,992
28 4,982 5,764 816 2,492
572,980 436,191 525,429 406,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

K/dlrect s approved the financial statements
-

W Sy .

Sir Winfried Bischo J Enc Daniels

Chairman Chief Executive

TimY W Tookey
Finance
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2009

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note £ milhion £ miltion £ millian £ million
Equity and habilities
Labilities
Deposits from banks 29 139,557 66,514 160,428 80,529
Customer deposits 30 193,045 172,364 201,053 184,041
Items In course of transmission to banks 542 508 492 467
Trading and cother financial habilities at fair value through
profit or loss 31 6,362 6,754 6,362 6,754
Derivative financial instruments 14 16,733 28,189 16,829 29,730
Debt securities in 1ssue 32 120,719 73,066 109,870 74,559
Liabilities ansing from insurance contracts and participating
Investment contracts 33 36,960 33,827 - -
Liabilities arising from non-participating investment contracts 35 15,734 14,243 - -
Unaliocated surplus within insurance businesses 36 310 270 - -
Other lrabilities 37 12,263 11,494 3,437 4,955
Retirement benefit obligations 38 474 1,771 131 1,354
Current tax liabilities 22 - 15 -
Other provisions 40 547 230 533 206
Subordinated liabilities 41 15,999 17,389 15,456 16,853
Total liabilities 559,267 426,619 514,606 399,448
Equity
Share capital 42 1,547 1,542 1,547 1,542
Share premium account 43 8,555 2,560 8,555 2,960
Other reserves 44 (1,473) (2,824) (330) {249)
Retained profits 45 4,791 7,588 1,051 2,960
Shareholders' equity 13,420 9,266 10,823 7.213
Minonty interests 293 306 - -
Total equity 13,713 9,572 10,823 7,213
Total equity and habilities 572,980 436,191 525,429 406,661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lioyds TSB Bank plc

Statements of changes in equity

The Group
Attnbutable to equity shareholders
Share

capital and Other Retained Minarity
premium reserves profits interests Total
£ miihon £ million £ millions £ mulion £ million
Balance at 1 January 2008 4,502 (4113 9,064 284 13,439
Total comprehensive income - (2,413) 818 54 (1,541}
Dividends - - (2,294} (29} (2,323}
Repayment of capital to minonty shareholders - - - (3) (3}
Balance at 31 December 2008 4,502 (2,824) 7,588 306 9,572
Total comprehensive income - 1,351 (2,797) ) {1,441)
Caputal injection 5,600 - - - 5,600
Dwvidends - - - (18) (18)
Balance at 31 December 2009 10,102 (1,473) 4,791 293 13,713

The Bank
Attributable to equity shareholders
Share

capital and QOther Retained
premium reserves profits Total
£ milhen £ milhion £ million £ millign
Balance at 1 January 2008 4,502 (44) 5,672 10,130
Total comprehensive ncome - (209) (418) (623)
Dividends - - (2,294) (2,294)
Balance at 31 December 2008 4,502 (249} 2,960 7,213
Total comprehensive income - (81} (1,909) (1,990)
Capital injection 5,600 - - 5,600
Balance at 31 December 2009 10,102 (330} 1,051 10,823

14




Lloyds TSB Bank pic

Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008

Note £ million £ million £ millton £ millon
Profit {loss) before tax (4,378) 825 {3,570) (857)
Adjustments for
Change in operating assets 532 (142,905) {42,842) (143,910} (62,304)
Change in operating liabilities 53b 132,435 82,449 136,658 110,400
Non-cash and other items 53¢ 4,683 (4,525) (447) 4,473
Tax received (paid) 83 (887) 16 {620)
Net cash {used in) provided by operating activities (10,082) 35,020 (11,253) 51,082
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of avallable-for-sale financial assets {445,140) (144,680) (420,748) (153,081)
Proceeds from sale and matunty of available-for-sale
financial assets 474,173 110,470 446,249 99,811
Purchase of fixed assets (1,310) (1,436) (435) (610)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 491 579 19 30
Additional capital injections to subsicianes - - (1) (50)
Capital repayments by subsidiaries - - - 805
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 53f (35) (19 - (817)
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed 53g - - 33 187
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 28,179 {35,086) 25,117 (53,735)
Cash flows from financing activities-
Dvidends paid to equity shareholders - (2,294) - (2,294)
Dividends paid to minonty interests 53¢ (18) (29) - -
Interest paid on subordinated habilities (968) (819) (939) (745)
Proceeds from 1ssue of subordinated habilities 53e 3,187 3,021 3,187 3,021
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 5,600 - 5,600 -
Repayment of subordinated habilities 53e (1,842) (381) (1,842) (381)
Repayment of capital to minonty shareholders 53e - (3) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,959 (505) 6,006 (399)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (210) 1,440 (87) 1,439
Change in cash and cash equivalents 23,846 869 19,783 (1,603)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 32,760 31,891 22,424 24,027
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 53d 56,6086 32,760 42,207 22,424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

15




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Basis of preparation

The global upheaval I the financsal markets that cccurred dunng 2008 has abated during the fatter part of 2009 The steps taken in 2008 by HM Treasury through
the introduction of the UK Government's Credit Guarantee Scheme for senior funding and the Bank of England through vanous faciiies have together continued to
provide assurance of liquidity support to the banking markets Notwithstanding the improvement in market iquidity dunng 2009, the Bank continues to be reliant
upon these facilities in order to maintain its wholesale funding posiion The Bank 1s dependent upan 1ts parent, Lioyds Banking Group plc, to provide capital

Durning the year, Lloyds Banking Greup ple has taken steps to strengthen the Bank’s capital position in order to provide a buffer against further shocks ansing from the
ecenomic enviranment

Based upen projections prepared by management, which take into account the funding needs of the Lioyds Banking Group as a whole and which assume that the
Government sponsored facilities will continue to be available, the directors are satisfied that the Bank has adequate rescurces to continue «n business for the
foreseeable future Accordingly, the financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on a going-concern basis

2 Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) IFRS
comprises accounting standards prefixed IFRS assued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and those prefixed 1AS 1ssued by the |ASB's
predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the International Financial Reparting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body The EU endorsed
version of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement relaxes some of the hedge accounting requirements, the Group has net taken advantage of
this relaxation, and therefore there 1s no difference in application to the Group between IFRS as adopted by the EU and IFRS as issued by the 1ASB

The financial informaticn has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets, trading secunties and certain other financial assets and habihties at fair value through profit or loss and all derwvative contracts

The following retevant IFRS pronouncements have been adopted 1n these financial statements

[{}] 1AS 1 {rewised) Presentation of financial statements’ The rewised standard prohibits the presentation of items of income and expense (that 1$ 'non-owner
changes In equity’) In the statement of changes 1n equity, requinng ‘non-owner changes In equity” te be presented separately from owner changes In equity Al
nan-pwner changes in equity are required to be shown in a performance statement Entities can choose whether to present cne performance statement (the
statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and statement of comprehensive income) The Group has elected tc present
two statements an income statement and a statement of comprehensive income The financial statements have been prepared under the revised disclosuie
requirements, the application of this revised standard, which affects presentation only, has not had any impact for amounts recogrised in these financial
statements

{ Amendments to IFRS 7 Fmancial Instruments Disclosures ~ improving Disclosures about Financeal instruments  The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures abeut fair value measurement and hquidity nsk In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of farr value measurements by level of a fair

value measurement hwerarchy  As the amendments only result in additional disclosures, the amendments have not had any impact for amounts recognised in
these financial statements

()] IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’ The new standard replaces IAS 14 'Segment Reporting’ and requires reporting of financial and descriplive information about
operating segments which are based on how financial information is reported and evaluated internafly The chief operating decision maker has been identifed
as the Group Execultive Committee {(GEC) The Group 15 managed on an entity basis and not by segment, and the GEC does not assess performance and
allocate resources across any segments, accordingly no segmental information 1s provided A brnef overview of its sources of income 1s provided In the
Financial review

The ultmate parent undertaking, Lloyds Banking Group ple, produces consolided accounts which set out the basis of the segments through which it manages
performance and allocates resources across the consolidated Group

The application of the following IFRS proncuncements which all became effective in 2009 has had no matenal impact on these financial statements

+ Amendments to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derwvatives and 1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurermnent This amendment ciarifies that
a reassessment of embedded denvatives 1s reguired whenever a financial asset has been reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes This interpretation addresses accounting by entities who grant customer lgyalty award credits to customers as part of sales
transactions and which can be redeemed in the future foz free or discounted goods or services The majonty of customer loyalty award schemes are operated hy
third parties

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment 1n a Foreign Operation This interpretation provides guidance on accounting for hedges of net investments in foreign
operations 1n an entity 5 consolidated financial statements

1AS 23 Borrowing Costs This revised standard reguires interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds to be recogmised as an expense
excepling that those which are directly atinibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
ntended use or sale must be capitalised as part of the cost of those assets

Amendments to I1AS 32 Fmancial Instruments  Presentation and 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Pultable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Ansing on Liguidation The amendments require some puttable financial instruments {being those which give the holder the nght to put the instrument back to the
1ssuer for cash or another financial asset) and some financial Instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net
assets of the entity only on hquidation to be classified as equity

Improvements to IFRSs (1ssued May 2008) Sets out minor amendments to IFRS standards as pant of annual improvements process Most amendments clanfied
existing practice

Amendment to 1AS 27 Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jaintly Controfled Entity or Associate This
amendment removes the definition of the cost method and requires the presentation of dividends as income In the separate financial staterents of the investor
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: Notes to the accounts

2 Accounting policies (continued)

The application of these new nterpretations has not had any impact for amounts recognised n these financial statements

Details of those (FRS pronouncements which wiil be relevarit to the Group but which were not effective at 31 December 2009 and which have not been applied in
prepanng these financial statements are given in note 54

The accounting policies are set out below

a Consolidation
The assets, abilihes and results of Group undertakings (including special purpose entities) are included in the financial statements en the basis of accounts made up
to the reporting date Group undertakings include subsidianes, associates and joint ventures

(1) Subsidrartes

Subsidianes include entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies which generally accompanies a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting nghts  The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable or convertibte are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s ransferred to the Group, they are de-consclidated
from the date that control ceases Details of the pnincipal subsidianes are given 10 note 8 of the notes to the parent company’s financial statements

Investment vehicles, such as Open Ended Investment Companies {OEICs), where the Group has control, typically through acting as fund manager and the iife funds
having a beneficial interest greater than 50 per cent, are consolidated The minonty uritholders nterest 1s reported n ather iabilities

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are elimmated

The Group applies a policy of freating transactions with minonty interests as transactions with parties external to the Group Disposals to minonty interests result in
gans and josses for the Group that are recorded 1n the income statement Purchases from minonty interests result in gocdwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary

(2} Joint ventures and associates

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control under a contractual arrangement with other pariies Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating pelicies  Significant influence 1s the power to participate i the financial and
operating policy decisions of the entity and 1s normally achieved through holding between 20 per cent and 50 per cent of the voting share capital of the entity

The Group utiises the venture capital exemption for investments where significant influence or joint control 1s present and the business unit operates as a venture
capital business These investments are designated at inibial recognition at fair value through praofit or loss Otherwise, the Group’s (nvestments i jount ventures and
associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are wibially recorded at cost and adjusted each year to reflect the Group's share of the
post-acquisition results of the joint venture or associate based on audited accounts which are coterminous with the Group er made up to a date which 1s not more
than three months before the Group s reporting date The share of any losses s restricted to a level that reflects an obligation to fund such losses

b Goedwill

Goodwill arises on business combinatiens, including the acquisition of subsidiaries, and on the acquisition of Interests in joint ventures and associates, and represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilities acquired Where the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, llabihties and contingent habilities of the acguired entity 1s greater than the coest of acquisition, the excess Is
recognised immediately i the income statement

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and 1s tested at least annually for Impairment tf an impairment 1s identified the carrying value of the goodwill 1s wnitten
down immediately through the income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed Goodwill ansing on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures 1s included in the
Group's investment in joint ventures and asscciates At the date of disposal of a subsidiary, the carrying vaiue of attnbutable goodwili 15 included in the calculation of
the profit or loss an disposal except where 1t has been wntten off directly to reserves In the past

¢ Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets compnise capitalised software enhancements and customer related intangibles Intangible assets which have been determined to have a finite
useful ife are amortised on a straight line basis over their estmated useful ife as follows

Capitalised software enhancements up to 5 years
Customer-related intangibles up to 10 years

Intangible assets with fimite useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there 1s any indication that they are impaired If any such indication
exists the recoverable amount of the asset Is determined and in the event that the asset’s carrying amount 1S greater than its recoverable amount, 1t 1s wrtten down
immediately Certain brands have been determined to have an indefinite useful life and are not amortised Such intangible assets are reassessed annually to reconfirm
that an indefinite useful life remans appropnate In the event that an indefinite Ife 1s Inappropnate a finite ife 1s determined and an impairment review 1s performed
on the asset

d Revenue recognition

Interestincome and expense are recognised 1n the income statement for all interest beanng financial instruments, except for those classified at fair value through profit
or loss, using the effective inferest method The effective interest mathod 1s a method of calcutating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability and of allocating
the interest income: or interest expense over the expected Iife of the financiat instrument The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter pericd, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability

The effective interest rate s calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by estimating the futuse cash flows after considening all the contractual
terms of the instrument but not future credit lesses The calculation includes all amounts expected to be paid or received by the Group Including expected early
redemphion fees and related penafties and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of the overall return Direct incremental transaction costs related to the
acqursition, 1ssue or disposal of a financial instrument are also taken into account in the calculation Once 4 financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
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2 Accounting policies {continued)

been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income 1s recogrised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpese of
measurning the impairment loss (see h)

Fees and commssions which are not an integral part of the effective interest rate are generally recognised when the service has been provided Loan commitment fees
for loans that are Iikely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan
once drawn Where it 1s unlikely that loan commitments will be drawn, loan comruitment fees are recognised over the Wife of the facility Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loan package for itself or retains a part at the same effective
interest rate for all interest-beanng financial instruments, including loans and advances, as for the other participants

Dwvidend income 1s recognised when the right to recetve payment 1s established
Revenue recogmition policies specific to Iife insurance and general insusance business are detailed below (see o)

e Financial assets and liabilities

On imitial recognition, financial assets are classified into fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sate financial assets or loans and recevables Financial fabihities
are measured at amortised cost, except for tracing habihties and other financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition which are
held at fair value Purchases and sales of secunities and other financial assets and lizbilities are recogrmised on trade date, being the date that the Group 1s commutted
to purchase or sell an asset

(1) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Financial instruments are ¢lassified at far value through profit or loss where they are trading secunties or where they are designated at fair value through profit or loss
by management Denvatives are carried at far value (see f)

Trading secunties are debt secunties and equity shares acquired pnncipally for the purpose of seling in the short term or which are part of a partfolio which 1s
managed for short-term gains Such secunties are classified as trading secunties and recognised In the balance sheet at their fair value Gains and losses ansing from
changes in therr fair value together with interest coupons and dividend income are recogrised in the Income statement within net trading income 1n the period in
which they occur

Other financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such by management upon intial recognition Such assets and liabiliies are
carried in the balance sheet at their fair value and gains and losses ansing from changes in far value together with interest coupons and dividend income are
recogmised in the income statement within net trading incame in the peried 1n which they occur Financial assets and habilities are designated at far value through
profit or loss on acquisthon tn the following circumstances

- itehminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwse anse from measuring the assets and hatilities or recognising gains of losses on
different bases The main type of financial assets designated by the Group at far value through profit or loss are assets backing insurance contracts and investment
contracts 1ssued by the Group's life insurance businesses Faw value designation allows changes in the fair value of these assets to be recorded in the income
statemnent along with the changes in the value of the associated liabilities, thereby significantly reducing the measurement inconsistency had the assets been
classified as available-for-sale financial assets

- the assets and liabilites are part of a group which 1s managed and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis 1n accordance with a documented nisk
management or investment strategy, with management information atso prepared on this basis As noted in accounting policy 2(a}{2), certain of the Group's
investments are managed as venture capital investments and evaluated on the basis of their far value and these assets are designated at fair value through profit
of loss

- Where the assets and llabilities contain one or more embedded denvatives that significantly modify the cash flows ansing undes the contract and would otherwise
need to be separately accounted for

The fair values of assets and llabilities traded in active markets are based on current bid and offer pnices respectively If the market 1s not active the Group establishes a
fair value by using valuation techniques These include the use cf recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substanually the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants Refer to note 3 (Critical accounting
estimates and judgements Valuaton of financial instruments) and note 50 (Finanoal instruments Fair values of financial assets and habilities) for details of valuation
techriques and significant Inputs to valuation models

The Group 1s permitted to reclassify, at fair value at the date of transfer, non-derivative financial assets (ather than those designated at fair value through profit or loss
by the entity upon snitial recognition) out of the trading category If they are no lenger held for the purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near term, as follows

- If the financial assets would have met the definition of loans and recervables (but for the fact that they had to be classified as held for trading at snibial recegnition),
they may be reclassified into loans and receivables where the Group has the intention and abiity to hokd the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity,

- if the financial assets would not have met the definition of loans and recewables, they may be reclassified out of the held for trading category into avallable-for-sale
financial assefs in rare circumstances’

{2) Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunties and equity shares that are not classified as trading secunties, at fair value thiough profit or loss or as oans and recewvables are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are recognised in the balance sheet at their fair value, (nclusive of transaction costs Available-for-sale financmal assets are those
intended to be hetd for an indeterminate penod of time and may be soid in response to needs for liguidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices
Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of investrments classified as available-for-sale are recognised directly in other comprehensive inceme, until the
financial asset 15 either sold, becomes impawed or matures, at which tme the curmulative gain or loss previously recognised n other comprehensive ncome 15
recogrsed in the income statement Interest calculated using the effectrve interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on debt secunties denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement

The Group s permitted to transfer at fair value at the date of transfer, a financial asset from the availatle-for-sale category to the loans and recevables category where
that asset would have met the definition of leans and recevables at the ime of reclassification (if the financial asset had not been designated as available-for-sale)
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and where there 1s bath the intentien and ability to hold that financial asset for the foreseeable future For assets transferred, gains or lesses recognised in equity in
respect of these assets as at the date of transfer are amortised to profit or loss over the remaining hie of the asset using the effective interest method

{(3) Loans and recewvables

Loans and recevables include loans and advances to banks and customers and eligible assets including those transferred inte this category out of the fair value
through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets categones Loans and recevables are intially recognised when cash 1s advanced tc the borrowers at fair
value inclusive of transaction costs ar, for eligible assets transferred into this category their fair value at the date of transfer Financial assets classified as toans and
receivables are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method (see d) less provision for impairment (see h)

The Group has entered into secuntisation and similar transactions to finance certain ioans and advances to customers These loans and advances to customers
continue to be recogrised by the Group, together with a corresponding hability for the funding

(4) Borrowings
Borrowings (which include deposits from banks, customer depesits, debt securities 1n 1ssue and subordmated habilities) are recognised inmally at fair value, being
their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred These nstruments are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Preference shares and other instruments which carry a mandatory coupan or are redeemable on 2 specific date are classified as financial hatbnhties The coupon on
these struments s reccgmised in the income statement as imterest expense

An exchange of financial habdibes on substanhally different terms in accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal financial hability and the recognimen of a new
financial hability The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished and the new financial hability 1s recognised in profit or loss together
with any related costs or fees incurred

When a financial hability 15 exchanged Tor an equity instrument, the new equity instrument 1s recogrised at fair value and any difference between the cniginal carrying
value of the laity and the fair value of the new equity 15 recognised n the profit or loss together with any related costs or fees 1ncurred

(5) Sale and repurchase agreements

Securnities sold subject to repurchase agreements (*repes’) continue to be recognised on the balance sheet where substantially all of the nsks and rewards are retained
Funds received under these arrangements are included in deposits from banks, customer deposits, or frading liabiies Conversely, secunties purchased under
agreements to resell {'reverse repos’), where the Group dees not acquire substantially all of the rnisks and rewards of cwnership, are recorded as lcans and receivables

or trading secunties  The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the hfe of the agreements using the effective interest
method

Secunties lent to counterparties are retained in the financial statements Secunties borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements, unless these are sold to
thirg parties, in which case the obligation to return them s recorded at fair value as a trading hability

(6) Derecogmition of financial assefs and frabities

Financial assets are derecogrised when the contractual nght to receve cash flows from those assets has expired or when the Group has transferred its centractual
right to receive the cash flows from the assets and aither

- substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, or
— the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all the nisks and rewards, but bas not retained controd
Financizl habiliwes are derecogrised when they are extinguished (1e when the obligation 1s discharged), cancelled or expire

f Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

All danvatives are recognised at their fair value Fair values are obtained frem quoted market prices in active markets, inctuding recent market transactions, and using
valuation technigues, including discounted cash flow and cptien pricing models, as appropriate  Derivatives are carried 1n the balance sheet as assets when their fair
value is positive and as labiitties when therr fair value 1s negative Refer to note 3 (Critical accounting estimates and judgements Valuation of financial instruments)
and note 50 {Financial instruments Far values of financiat assets and labilities) for detatls of valuation techmques and sigmficant inputs to valuation models

Changes in the fair value of any denvative nstrument that 1s not part of a hedging relationship are recegnised immediately in the income statement

Dernvatives emhbedded in financial instruments and insurance contracts {unless the embedded denvative 1s itself an insurance contract) are treated as separate
denvatives when therr economic charactenistics and nsks are not clesely related to those of the hast contract and the host contract 15 not carmed at fair value through
profit or loss These embedded dervatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recogmised in the income statement In accordance with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts, a policyholder’s option ta surrender an insurance contract for a fixed amount 15 not treated as an embedded dervative

The method of recognising the movements in the fair vatue of the denvatives depends on whether they are designated as hedging instruments and, if so, the nature of
the item beng hedged Hedge accounting allows one financial instrument, generally a derivative such as a swap, to be designated as a hedge of another financial
instrument such as a loan or deposit of a portfolio of the same At the inception of the hedge relationship, formal documentation 1s drawn up specifying the hedging
strategy, the hedged item and the hedging instrument and the methodology that will be used t¢ measure the effectiveness of the hedge relationship in offseting
changes in the fair value cr cash flow of the hedged nsk The effectiveness of the hedging relationship 1s tested bath at inception and throughout 1ts ife and If at any
point it s concluded that it 1s no lenger highly effective in achieving its documented objective, hedge accounting 15 discentinued

The Group designates certain derivatives as either (1) hedges of the fair value of the particular risks inherent in recognised assets or habilities (fair value hedges),
(2) hedges of highly prebable future cash fiows attnbutable to recognised assets or habilities (cash flow hedges), or {3} hedges of net investments i foreign operations
(net investment hedges) These are accounted for as follows

(1} Far value hedges

Changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and quaiify as fair vatue hedges are recorded 10 the incomne statement, together with the changes in the fair
value of the hedged asset or hability that are attnbutable to the hedged nsk, this also applies If the hedged asset)s classified as an avallable-for-sale financial asset If
the hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, changes (n the fair value of the hedged item attributable te the hedged nsk are no longer secogrised i the
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Income statement The cumulative agjustment that has been made to the carrying amount of the hedged 1item 1s amortised to the income statement using the effective
interest methed over the penod to matunty

{2) Cash fow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income in the
cash flow hedge reserve The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the inceme statement Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods 1in which the hedged item affects profit or loss When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or 10ss existing in equsty at that ime remains in equity and is recogrised in the income statement
when the forecast transacticn 1s ulbmately recogmised 1n the income statement When a forecast transacticn 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was reported In equity 15 immediately transferred 1o the income statement

{3) Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge 1s recognised 1n other comprehensive income, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogrised immediately in the income
statement Gains and losses accumuiated in equity are included in the iIncome statement when the foreign eperation 15 disposed of The hedging instrument n net
investments hedges may include non-derivative habiities as well as denvative financial instruments

g Offset

Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount reported 1n the balance sheet when there 1s a legally enforceable nght of set-off and there 15 an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the habihty simultanecusly In certain situations, even though master netting agreements exist, the lack of
management intention to settle on a net basis results in the financial assets and habiliies being reported gross on the balance sheet

h impairment of financia! assets

(1) Assets accounted for at amortised cost

At each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether, as a result of ane or more events occurring after initial recognition and prior to the balance sheet date, there s
objective evidence that a financiat asset or group of financial assets has become impaired

The critena that the Group uses to determine that there s objective evidence of an impairment loss include

— Delinguency n contractual payments of pnncipal and/or interest,

Indications that the borrower or group of borrowers 1s experiencing significant financial difficuity,

— Restructuring of debt to reduce the burden on the borrower,

t

Breach of loan covenants or condittons, and
— lmitiatien of bankruptcy or Individual veluntary arrangement proceedings

For impaired debt instruments which are classified as eans and recewvables, impairment losses are recognised in subsequent perods whern itis determined that there
has been a further negative impact on expected future cash flows A reduction in fair value caused by general widening of credit spreads would not, of itself, resultm
additional impairment

The estimated period between a loss occurring and its identification 1s determined by local management for each dentified portfolio 1n general, the periods used vary
between two months and twelve months

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment [0ss has been mncurred, an allowance 1s established which 15 calculated as the differance between the balance sheet
carnytng value of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at that asset's onginal effective interest rate If an asset has a vanable
interast rate, the discount rate used for measunng the imparment loss I1s current effective interest rate

For the Group's portfolios of smaller balance homogenous leans, such as the residential mergage, personal lending and credit card pertfolios, allowances are
calculated for groups of assets taking into account histonical cash flow experience For the Group's other lending portfolios, allowances are estabhshed on a
case-hy-case basis If an asset has a vanable interest rate the discount rate used for measunng the imparment loss 15 the current effective interest rate The
calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised asset or group of assets reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure
less the costs of abtarning and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure 1s probable

If there 1s ne objective evidence of individual impairment the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit nisk charactenstics and collectively
assessed for impairment Segmentation takes into account such factors as the type of asset, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other
relevant factors These charactenstics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets as they are indicative of the borrower’s ability to pay
all amounts due accarding to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated Future cash flows are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the
assets in the Group and histoncal loss experience for assets with similar credt risk charactenstics Histonical foss expenence 1s adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the peniod on which the histoncal {oss experience 1s based and to remove the effects of
condibons in the mistoncal penod that do not exist currently  The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experence

if, 1in a subsequent penod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recogmsed, such as an improvement in the borrower's credit rating, the allowance 15 adjusted and the amount of the reversal 1s recognised i the income statement

A loan or advance (s normally written off, erther partially or in full, against the related allowance when the proceeds from realising any available secunty have been
received or there 1$ no realistic prospect of recovery (as a result of the customer's insolvency, cezsing to trade or other reason) and the amount of the loss has been
determined Subseguent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of impairment 1osses recorded in the income statement

Equity securnties acquired in exchange for leans in order to achieve an orderly realisaticn are accounted for as a disposal of the loan and an acquisition of equity
securities Where control is obtained over an entity as a result of the transaction, the entity 1s consolidated, where the Group has significant mfluence over an entity as
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a result of the transaction, the ynvestment 1s accounted for by the equity method of accounting (see a) Any subsequent imparment of the assets or business acguired
15 treated as an impairment of the relevant asset or business and not as an impairment of the oniginal instrument

(2) Avallable-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial asset 1s impaired In addition to the ¢cnitena for
financial assets accounted for at amorised cost set out abave, this assessment involves reviewing the current financial ctreumstances {including creditworthiness) and
futlre prospects of the issuer assessing the future cash flows expected to be realised and, in the case of eguity shares, considering whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset below its cost If an impairment loss has been incurred, the cumulative loss measurad as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recogrised, 1s reclassified from equity to the income statement For impaired debt instrurnents, impairment losses are recognised in subsegquent penods when it 1s
determined that there has been a further negative impact on expected future cash flows, a reduction in fair value caused by general widening of credit spreads woulg
net, of itself, result in additionai impairment If, in a subsequent penod, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for-sale increases and the \ncrease
can be objectively related to an event occurning after the impairment loss was recognised, an amount not greater than the onginat impairment loss ts credited to the
Income statement, any excess 15 taken to other comprehensive income impairment 10sses recegnised in the income staterment on equity mstruments are not reversed
through the income statement

1 Investment property

{nvestment property comprises freehold and long leasehold land and buildings that are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or bath The
Group’s investrent property pnmanly relates to property held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation within the fe insurance funds Investment property
1S carried in the balance shest at fair value, being the epen market value as determined in accerdance with the guidance published by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors |f this information is not available, the Group uses alternatwve valuation methods such as discounted cash flow projechions or recent prices
These valuations are reviewed at least annually by an independent valuaticn expert Investment property being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property,
or for which the market has become less actve, continues to be measured at fair value Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement as net trading
income for investment property within the life insurance funds and as other aperating income for other investment property

| Tangible fixed assets
Tangble fixed assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation The value of land (included 1n premises) 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straght-line methed to allocate the difference between the cost and the residual value over their estimated useful lives, as follows

Premises (excluding land)

- Freehold/long and shert leasehold premises shorter of 50 years or the remaining perod of the lease

- Leasehold improvements sherter of 10 years or, If lease renewal 15 not likely, the remaining penod of the lease
Equipment

- Fixtures and furnishings 10-20 years

- Other eguipment and metor vehicles 2-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at each balance sheet date

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nat be recoverable In the event that an
asset’s carrying amount 1s determined to be greater than its recoverable amount it 1s written down immediately The recaverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use

k Leases

{1} As lessee

The leases entered into by the Group are pnmanly operating leases Operating lease rentals payable are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the perod of the lease

When an cperaung lease 1s terminated before the end of the lease period, any payment made to the lessor by way of penalty 1$ recogmised as an expense 1n the peniod
of termination

{2} As lessor

Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases (f the lease agreements transfer substanhally all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee but not
necessanly legal tile All other leases are classified as operating leases When assets are subject ic finance leases, the present value of the lease payments, together
with any unguaranteed residual value, 1s recegrised as a receivable, net of provisions, within Joans and advances to banks and customers The difference between
the gross receivable and the present vatue of the receivable I1s recogrised as unearned finance lease incame Finance lease mcome 1s recognised In interest sncome
over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax} so as to gve a constant rate of return on the net investment n the leases Unguaranteed
residual values are reviewed regularly to identfy any impairment

Operating lease assets are included within tangible fixed assets at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful Iives, which equates to the lives of the leases, after
taking into account anticipated residual values Operating lease rental income 1s recognised on a straight ine basis over the life of the lease

The Group evaluates non-lease arrangements such as outsourcing and similar contracts to determine if they contain a lease which 1s then accounted for separately

| Pensions and ather post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of post-retirement benefit schemes for its employees including both defined benefit and defined contribution pensicn plans A defined
benefit scheme 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retuement, dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and salary A defined contibution plan 1s a pension plan inte which the Group pays fixed contnbutions, there 1s no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further contnbutions
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Full actuanal valuations of the Groups pnnctpal defined benefit schemes are carried out every three years with intenm reviews in the intervening years, these
valuations are updated to 31 December each year by qualified independent actuanes, or in the case of the Scotish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a
gualified actuary employed by Scotush Widows For the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at therr fair value and scheme habilties are
measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit credit method adjusted for unrecogrised actuanal gans and losses The defined benefit scheme liabilites are
discounted using rates equivalent to the market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency 1n which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to matunty approximating to the terms of the related pension biability

The Group's income statement charge includes he current service cost of providing pensien benefits, the expected return on the schemes’ assets, net of expected
administration costs, and the interest cost on the schemes' habilibes Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjusiments and changes in actuanal
assumptions are not recognised unless the cumulative unrecognised gain or loss at the end of the previcus reporting penod exceeds the greater of 10 per cent of the
scheme assets or habilises {‘the cornidor approach’) In these circumstances the excess 1s ¢harged of credited to the income statement over the employees’ expected
average remaining working lives Past service costs are chasged immediately to the income statement, unless the charges are conditional on the employees remaimng
in service for a specified period of time (the vesting penod) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a staight-hne basis over the vesting penod

The Group's balance sheet inctudes the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair value of scheme assets and the disceunted value of scheme
habihties at the balance sheet date adjusted for any cumulative unrecognised actuanal gains or losses Surpluses are enty recegnised to the extent that they are
recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the schemes

The Group recognises the effect of matenal changes to the terms of its defined benefit pension plans which reduce future benefits as curtailments, gains and losses are
recogmsed in the income statement when the curtallments occur

The costs of the Group's defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the period 1n which they fall due

m Share-based compensation

Lloyds Banking Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans in respect of services received from certain of its employees The value of
the employee services received (n exchange for equity instruments granted under these plans 1S recogmised as an expense over the vesting period of the instruments
This expense 1$ determined by reference to the fair value of the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest The fair value of equity instruments granted 1s
based on market prices, if available, at the date of grant [n the absence of market prices, the fair value of the instruments at the date of grant 15 estimated using an
appropriate valuaton techmaque, such as a Black-Scholes option pricing model The determination of fair values excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions, which are included 1n the assumptions used to estmate the number of options that are expected to vest At each balance sheet date, this estimate s
reassessed and If necessary revised Any revision of the orignal estimate 1s recognised in the income statement over the remaining vesting period, together with a
corresponding adjustment to equity Cancellations by employees of contributions to the Group's Save As You Earn plans are treated as non-vesting condiicns and the
Group recognises, 1n the year of cancellation, the amount of the expense that would have otherwise been recogrised over the remainder of the vesting period
Modifications are assessed at the date of modificatton and any incremental charges are charged to the income statement over any remaining vesting pernod

n Taxation
Current income tax which 1s payable on taxable profits Is recogrused as an expense in the penied in which the profits arise

Far the Group's long-term insurance businesses, the tax charge Is analysed between tax that 1s payabie 1n respect of policyholders’ returns and tax that 1s payable on
equity halders’ returns This aflocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of tax which will be applied to the returns under current UK tax rules

Deferred tax 1s provided 1n full, using the hiability method, an temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and habiliies and their carrying amounts in
the consohidated financial statements However, deferred tax (s not accounted for if 1t anises from ininal recognition of an asset or hability 1n a transaction other than a
husiness combination that at the tme of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax 1s determuned using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset I1s realised or the deferred tax hability 1s
settied

Deferred tax assets are recognised where 1t is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utihsed Income tax
payable on profits 1s recogmised as an expense In the period 1a which those profits arise The tax effects of losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset
when It 1s probable that future taxable profits wall be available against which these losses can be uthised Deferred tax related to gains and losses on the fair value
re-measurement of avadable-for-sale 1nvestments and cash flow hedges, where the gains and losses are recagnised in other comprehensive income, 15 also
recogrused in other comprehensive iIncome such deferred tax 1s subsequently transferred to the income statement together with the deferred gain or loss

Deferred and current tax assets and habilities are offset when they anse in the same tax reporiing group and where there 1s both a legal nght of offset and the intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

o Insurance
The Group undertakes both 1ife insurance and general insurance business

Products sold by the hfe nsurance business are classified into three categories

Insurance contracts — these contracts transfer significant insurance nsk and may also transfer financial nsk The Group defines significant insurance nsk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the insured event were not to occur
These contracts may or may not include discretionary participation features

Investment contracts containing a discretonary participation feature {'participating investment contracts’) — these contracts do not transfer significant insurance sk
but contain a contractual nght which entitle the holder to receive, in addition to the guaranteed benefits, further additional discretionary benefits or bonuses that are
likely to be a significant proportion of the total contractual benefits and the amount and timing of which 13 at the discretion of the Group and based upon the
performance of specified assets

Non-participating investment contracts — these contracts do not transfer significant insurance nsk or contain a discretionary participation feature
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The general insurance business 1ssues only Insurance contracts

(1) Life insurance business

(1) Accounting for insurance and participating investment contracis

Premiums and claims

Premiums recerved In respect of insurance and participating investment contracts are recognised as revenue when due except for unit-linked contracts on which
premiums are recognised as revenue when received Claims are recarded as an expense on the earlier of the maturdty date or the date on which the clarm 1s notified

Liabilities

- Insurance or participating investment contracts in the Group s with-profit funds

Liabilmes of the Group's with-profit funds, inclucing guarantees and options embedded within products wnitten by these funds, are stated at therr realishic values in
accordance with the Financial Seniices Authority’s realtstic capital regime, except that projected transfers out of the funds inte other Group funds are recorded In
unallocated surplus {see helow} Further details on the realistic capital regime are given in note 33 Change in the value of these liabilities are recognised through
insurance claims

- Insurance and participating mvestment contracts which are not unit-inked or in the Group’s with-profit funds

A hability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future 1s recorded when the premiums are recognised The liability 1s calculated by estimating
the future cash flows over the duratien of in-force policies and discounting them back 1o the valuation date allowing for probabilihes of occurrence The hability will
vary with movements in interest rates and with the cost of fe insurance and annuity benefits where future mortality 1s uncertain

Assumptions are made n respect of all material factors affecting future cash flows, including future nterest rates, mortality and costs
Changes in the value of these labiliies are recogrused in the income statement through insurance ckaims

— Insurance and participating investment contracts whieh are unit-inked

Liabihties for urit-inked insurance contracts and paricipating investment contracts are stated at the bid value of umts plus, an addtional allowance where
appropnate (such as for any excess of future expenses over charges) The liability 1s increased or reduced by the change in the unit prices and 1s reduced by policy
admunistration fees, mortality and surrender charges and any withdrawals Changes in the value of the liablity are recognised In the income statement through
insurance claims Benefit claims (v excess of the account balances incurred 1n the penod are atso charged through insurance clatrms Revenue consists of fees
deducted for mortality, policy administration and surrender charges

Unafllocated surplus
Any amounts 1n the with-profit funds not yet determined as being due to pelicyholders or shareholders are recognised as an unallocated surptus which 15 shown
separately from habilities ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts

(1) Accounting for non-participating investment contracts

The Group's non-participating investment contracts are pnmarnily unit-hnked These contracts are accounted for as financial habilities whose value is contractually
linked to the fair values of financial assets within the Group's umbtised investment funds The value of the unit-linked financial habihities (s determined using current
unit prices multiphed by the number of units attnibuted to the centract holders at the balance sheet date The:r value 1s never less than the amount payable on
surrender, discounted for the required notice perniod where applicable Investment income allocated to non-participating investment contracts 15 included in insurance
claims

Deposits and withdrawals are not accounted for through the income statement but are accounted for dwectly i the balance sheet as adjustmenis to the
non-parucipating investment contract hability

The Group receves investment management fees in the form of an inwtial adjustment or charge to the amount investad These fees are 1n respect of services rendered
in cenjunction with the 1ssue and management of investment centracts where the Group actively manages the consideration recerved from its customers to fund a
return that 1s based on the investment profile that the custemer selected on onigination of the contract These services comprse an indeterminate number of acts over
the hves of the indmidual contracts and, therefore, the Group defers these fees and recogmises them on a strarght-ine basis over the estimated lives of the contracts, in
line with the provision of investment management sevices

Costs which are directly attnbutable and incremental to securing new non-participating investment contracts are deferred This asset s subsequently amortised over
the pencd of the provision of investment management services and 15 reviewed for impairment in ciecumstances where its carmang amount may not be recoverable If
the asset 1s greater than its recoverable amount it 15 written down immediately through fee and commession expense in the income statement Al other costs are
recognised as expenses when incurred

(111} Value of in-force business

The Group recognises as an asset the value of in-force business in respect of insurance contracts and parucipating invesiment contracts The asset represents the
present value of the sharehalders’ interest tn the profits expected to emerge from those contracts writen at the balance sheet date This 1s determined after making
appropriate assumptions about future econermic and operating conditions such as future mortality and persistency rates and includes allowances for both non-market
nsk and for the realistic value of financial options and guarantees Each cash flow 1s valued using the discount rate consistent with that applted to such a cash flow in
the capital markets The asset i the consolidated balance sheet 15 presented gross of attributable tax and movements in the asset are reflected withun other operating
income in the iIncome statement

The Group's contractuas nghts to benefits from providing investment management services n relation to non participating investment contracts acquired 1n business
combenations and portfolio transfers 1s measured at fair value at the date of acquisttion The resulting asset 1s amorhised over the estimated lives of the contracts At
each reporting date an assessment 15 made to determine if there 1s any indicathon of iImpairment Where impairment exists, the carrying value of the asset 1s reduced
to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogrised 1n the \ncome statement

(2) General insurance business
The Group bath underwrites and acts as sntermediary in the sale of general insurance products Underwnting premiumns are included in insurance premium income,
net of refunds, in the penod i which insurance cover 1s provided to the custarner, premiums receved relating to future penods are deferred 1n the balance sheet
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within habilihes ansing frem insurance contracts and participating investment contracts and only credited to the income statement when earned Broking commission
1s recognised when the underwniter accepts the nisk of providing insurance cover to the customer Where appropnaie, provision 15 made for the effect of future policy
terminations based upon past expenence

The underwnting business makes provision for the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled and claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date The
provision for the cost of claims notified but not settled 1s based upon a best estimate of the cost of settling the outstanding claims after taking into account all known
facts In those cases wheare there 15 insufficient infarmation o determine the required provision, statistical techniques are used which take into account the cost of
claims that have recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases Similar staustical techrgues are used to
determine the provision for claims incurred but not reparted at the balance sheet date Clasms hahiliies are not discounted

{3) Lrabilty adequacy test

At each balance sheet date liability adeguacy tests are performed to ensure the adeguacy of insurance and participating investment contract fiabilities net of related
deferred cost assets and value of in-force business in performing these tests current best estimates of discounted future contractual cash flows and claims handhing
and policy adrministration expenses, as well as investment ncome from the assets backang such hatiities, are used Any deficiency 1s immediately charged to the
income statement, initrally by wrniung off the relevant assets and subsequently by estabhishing a provisicn for losses ansing from lhability adequacy tests

(4) Reinsurance
Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group s compensated for losses on one or mote contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held

The benefits te which the Group s entitled under 1ts reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets These assets consist of short-term balances due
from remsurers as well as longer term recevables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits ansing under the related reinsured contracts Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts asseciated with the reinsured contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract and are regularly reviewed for imparrment Prermiums payable for reinsurance contracts are recogmised as an expense when due within
insurance premium income Changes in the reinsurance recoverable assets are recognised n the ncome staterment through insurance claims

p Foreign currency translation
Items included n the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary econamic environment in which the enbity
operates {the 'functional currency’) The conselidated financial statements are presented n stering which 1s the Bank's functional and presentation currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the appropriate functional curtency using the exchange rates prevaiding at the dates of the transachkiens Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translaton at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities
denominated in fereign currencigs are recogmised in the income staterment, except when recognised in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow or net
investment hedges Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined
Translatron differences on equities and sirmilar non-monetary items held at fair value through profit and loss are recogrised in profit or loss as part of the fair vaiue gain
or Ipss Translation differences on available-for-sale non-monetary financial assets, such as eguity shares, are included 1n the fair value reserve in equity unless the
asset I1s a hedged item in a fair value hedge

The results and financial posion of all group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows

The assets and habiliues of foreign operations, including geodwill and fair value adjustrments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity, are translated into sterling
at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date

The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into sterling at average exchange rates uniess these do not approximate to the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions

Foreign exchange differences ansing on the translation of a foreign operation are recogrised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
compenent of equity together with exchange differences ansing from the translation of borrewings and ather currency nstruments (see f(3)) On disposal ¢f a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount aof exchange differences relating to that foreign operation are reclassified from equity and included in determiring the profit or loss
arising on disposal

q Provisions
Provisions are recogmsed 1n respect of present obligations ansing from past events where 1t I1s probable that outflows of resources will be required to settle the
obligations and they can be reliably estimated

The Group recognises provisions in respect of vacant leasehold property where the unavoidable costs of the present obligations exceed anticipated rental income

Contingent hatiliies are possible obligations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those present obligations where the outflows of
resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably Contingent habilibies are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless they are remote

r Dividends
Dividends paid on the Group's ordinary shares are recogrised as a reduction in equity in the peried in which they are paid

s Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and non mandatory balances with central banks and amounts due from banks
with a matunty of less than three months

t Investment in subsidianes
tnvestments 1n subsidiaries are carried at hustonical cost, less any provisions for impairment

24




Lioyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

3 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, esbmates and assumpticns in apply:ng the accounting policies that
affect the reported amounts of assets, labilites, income and expense Due to the inherent uncerainty 1n making estimates, actual results reported in future penods
may be based upon amounts which differ from those estimates Estimates, judgements and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on histonical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The signdficant judgements made by management in applying the Group's accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty 1n these financial
statements and which together are deemed critical to the Group's results and financial position are discussed befow

Allowance for impairment losses on loans and receivables

The Group’s accounting pelicy for losses ansing on financial assets classified as loans and recevables 1s described 1In acceunting palicy 2(h) The allowance for
impairment losses on loans and recevables 1s management's best estmate of losses incurred in the portfolio at the balance sheet date Impairment allowances are
established to recognise incurred impairment losses in the Group s loan portfolios carried at amortised cost In determining whether an impairment has occurred at
the balance sheet date the Group cansiders whether there 1s any cbservable data indicating that there has been a measurable decrease In the estimated future cash
flows or their tmings  Where this is the case, the impairment loss 1s the difference between the carrying vatue of the loan and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate

At 31 December 2009 gross loans and recevables totalled £428,623 million (2008 £287,220 million} against which impairment allowances of £5,207 million
{2008 £3,727 million} had been made (see note 20) Impairment allowances are made up of two cormponents, those determined indrnadually and those determined
collectively At 31 December 2009 the individual compenent was £1,951 million (2008 £964 million) and the collective component was £3,256 million (2008
£2,763 milhon}

Indrvidual companent

All impaired loans which exceed a certain threshold, principally within the Greup's non-retail activities, are individually assessed for impairment having regard to
expected future cash flows including those that coutd anse from the realisation of securty The determination of these allowances often requires the exercise of
considerable judgement by management involving matters such as local economic conditions and the resulting trading performance of the custorner and the value of
the secunty held, for which there may not be a readily accessible market In particular, sigrificant judgement 1s reguired by management in the current economic
environment in assessing horrowers’ cash flows and debt servicing capability together with the realisable value of commerciai real estate collateral The actual amount
of the future cash flows and their tirming may differ significantly from the assumptions made for the purposes of determining the 1mpairment allowances and
consequently these allowances can be subject to vanaticn as time progresses and the circumstances of the customer become clearer

Colfective component

Impairment allowances for portfolios of smalier balance homogenous loans, such as residential mortgages, personal loans and credit card balances that are below the
individual assessment thresholds, and for loan losses that have been incurred but not separately dentified at the balance sheet date, are determined on a collective
basis Collective impairment allowances are calculated on a porffolio basis using models which take into account factors such as historical expenence of accounts
progression through the various stages of delinquency, historical loss rates, the credit quality of the portfolio, and the value of any collateral held, which (s estimated,
where appropriate, using indices such as house prce indices

The calculation of the collective impairment aillowance 1s therefore subject to estimation uncertainty The vanables used (n the collective impairment models are kept
under regular review to ensure that as far as possible they reflect current ecoromic circumstances However, significant management judgement is apphied in
assessing whether current econormic condiions and borrowers’ behaviour are fully reflected in the historical loss data and other inputs to the iImpairment models

The collective impairment allowance 1s sensitive to changes in economic and credit conditiens, mcluding the interdependency of house prices, unemployment rates,
interest rates, borrowers’ behaviour, and consumer bankruptcy trends It 1s however inherently difficult to estmate how changes in one or more of these factors might
impact the collective impairment aliowance

Gven the relative size of the Group s retall mortgage portfolio, a key vanable 1s UK house prices which determine the collateral value supporting loans i such
partfolios The value of this collateral 1s estmated by applying changes in hause price indices to the original assessed value of the property [f average house prices
within the Group's mortgage portfolio were 1G per cent iower than those estimated at 31 December 2009, the house price index related impact on the impairment
charge would be an increase of approximately £70 million

Impairment of available-for sale financial assets

In determining whether an impairment loss has been incurred n respect of an available-for-sale financial asset, the Group performs an objective review of the current
financial circumstances and future prospects of the issuer and, in the case of equity shares, considers whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that asset below 1ts cost This consideration requires management judgement Among factors considered by the Group 1s whether the decline In fair value
is a result of a change (n the quality of the asset or a downward movement in the market as a whale An assessment 1s performed of the future cash flows expected to
be reahised from the asset, taking into account, where appropnate, the guality of underlying secunty and credit protection available The increase in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets dunng the year was £1,430 milien (2008 reduction of £2,721 million) Impairment losses m respect of avalable-for-sale
financial assets transferred from reserves to the income statemeant totalled £25 mdlicn {2008 £130 millon)

Valuation of financial instruments

Financial instruments classified by management as trading and ether financral assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss, derivatives financial instruments
and avallable-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value which is determined as being the amount for which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transachon between wilhng parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale Management judgement (s required in determining the apprepriate classification of
financial instruments

In 2009, the Group adopted ‘Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures — Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments’ which among other
matters, established a three level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements of financial instruments carned on the Group's balance sheet at far
value
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3 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Management judgement 1s required in determiming the categonsation of the Groups financial instruments that are carned at fair value Financial nstruments
categonsed as level 1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore there i1s less judgement applied in determining fair value However, the fair value of
financial instruments categonised as level 2 and leve! 3 1s determined ustng valuation techniques which include discounted cash flow analysis and pricing modets
and, where appropriate, companson to similar instruments These reguire management judgment and therefore contain significant esbmation uncertainty

In particutar significant judgement 1s reguired by management in determining appropriate assumptons to be used for level 3 financial instruments In valuing Level 3
asset-backed secunties and dernvatives, such assumptions include prepayment rates, probability of default, loss given default and yield curves In respect of the
Group's unlisted equity investments, fair value 1s determined through the use of third party valuations which may be adjusted to take into account other relevant
Information that management judge to be relevant

The valuation techrmques used are set out in note 51 This provides detaits of the inputs into valuation models that have the potental to signficantly impact the value
determined, sets out the assumptions used for those inputs and provides the effects of applying reasonabty possible alternative assumptions

Taxation

At 31 December 2009 the Group had a net deferred tax asset of £2,438 milion (2008 £837 millkon} and a net current tax asset of £63 millon (2008
£440 milion) The most significant judgement relates to utilisation of tax losses carried forward for which a deferred tax asset of £2,3186 million (2008 £856 million)
1s recognised In respect of specific Group companies The recognitien of this deferred tax asset requires significant judgement regarding the future utilisation of these
tax losses This includes an assessment of management's projections of future taxable income based on business plans and ongoing tax planming strategies These
projections include assumptions about the future economic environment, partcularly in the UK

While the Group has taken account of tax 1ssues that are subject to ongoing discussion with HM Revenue & Customs and other tax authonhies m recognising tax
assets Inherent In this 1s management’s assessment of tegal and professional advice, case law and other relevant gurdance The vanous nisks are categonsed and
appropnate weightings applied in determining the carrying value of current and deferred tax balances

Pensions

The net lability recogrised in the balance sheet at 31 December 2009 in respect of the Group's retwrement benefit obligations was £474 million (2008
£1,771 mution) of which £360 million {2008 £1,657 million) related to defined benefit pension schemes As explained in accounting plicy 2(1), the Group adopts
the corndor approach to accounting for pensions and consequently does not recognise actuarial lesses of £2 361 milion (2008 E£267 milhon) The defined benefit
pension schemes’ gross deficit totalled £2,721 million (2008 £1,924 milon) representing the difference between the schemes' liailities and the fair value of the
related assets at the balance sheet date

The schemes' labilities are catculated using the projecied unit credit method, which takes into account projected earnings increases, using actuanal assumptions thai
give the bast estmate of the future cash flows that will anse under the scheme habilities The resuling estimated cash flows are discounted at a rate equivalent to the
market yield at the balance sheet date on igh qualify bonds with a similar duration and currency to the schemes' labilities In order to estimate the future cash flows,
a number of financial and non-financial assumptions are made by management, changes to which could have a matenal impact upon the overall deficit or the net
cost recognised in the income statement

Twa important assumptions are the rate of inflation and the expected Ifetime of the schemes’ members The assumed rate of inflatron affects the rate at which salanes
are projected {o grow and therefore the size of the pension that employees receive upon retirement and also the rate at which pensions in payment increase Qver the
longer term rates of nflation can vary significantly At 31 December 2009 it was assumed that the rate of inflation would be 3 4 per cent per annurs (2008
3 0 per cent}, although 1 this was increased by O 2 per cent the overall deficit would increase by approximately £51 1 million and the annual cost by approximately
£60 mithon A reduction of O 2 per cent would reduce the overall deficit by approximately £489 million and the annual cost by approximately £52 million

The cost of the benefits payatle by the schemes will alsc depend upon the longevity of the members Assumptions are made regarding the expacted hfetime of
scheme members based upon recent experience, however given the rate of advance in medical science and increasing levels of obesity, it 1s uncertain whether they
will ultimately reflect actual experience Assumptions used by management reflect recent tongewvity experience and extrapolate the smproving trend  An increase of one
year in the expected hifetime of scheme members would increase the overall deficit by approximately £393 million and the annual cost by approximately £64 milhion,
a reducton of one year would reduce the overall deficit by approximately £399 million and the annual cost by approxsmately £61 million

The size of the overall deficit 15 also sensitive to changes in the discount rate, which 1s affected by market conditions and therefore potentially subject to significant
vanations At 31 December 2009 the discourt rate used was 5 7 per cent (2008 6 3 per cent), a reduction of O 2 per cent would increase the overall deficit by
approximately £635 million and the annual cost by approximately £68 million, white an increase of O 2 per cent would reduce the net defict by approximately
£604 million and the annual cost by approximately £54 million

Goodwll
At 31 December 2009 the Group carnied goodwitl on its balance sheet totalling £2,016 milion (2008 £2,256 million), substantially all of which relates to
acquisitions made a number of years ago

The Group reviews the goodwill for impairment at least annually or when events or changes in economic circumstances indicate that impairment may have taken
place The impaitment review 1S performed by projecting future cash flows, excluding finance and tax, based upon budgets and plans and making appropriate
assumptions about rates of growth and discounting these using a rate that takes into account prevailing market interest rates and the risks inherent in the business If
the present vatue of the projected cash flows 1s less than the carrying value of the underlying net assets and related goodwill an impairment charge 1s required in the
income statement This calculaticon requires the exercise of significant judgement by management, if the estmates made prove to be incorrect or performance does
not meet expectations which affects the amount and timing of future cash flows, goodwiil may become impaired in future periods  Further details are given in note 23

Life insurance business

The Group cammes in its balance sheet a value in-force asset, representing the present value of future profits expected to anise from the postfalio of in-force life
insurance and participating investment contracts, of £2,403 mullion at 31 December 2009 (2008 £1,893 milicn} The methodology used to value this asset is set
out in accounting pahcy 2(o)(1) The vatuation or recoverability of these assets requires assumplions (o be made about future economic and cperating conditions
These assumptions are inherently uncertain and changes could significantly affect the value attnbuted to these assets
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At 31 December 2009 the Group carrred substantial liabihties to halders of fe, pensions and investment contracts in i1s balance sheet Liabilities ansing from
Insurance contracts and participating investment contracts were £24,077 million and £12,273 mullion respectively (2008 £21,553 mullion and £11,619 muilion)
and those ansing from non-participating investment contracts totalled £15,734 mition (2008 £14,243 multion) The methodology used to value the liabilities 15
desenbed :n accounting policy 2(0)(1) Elements of the hability valuations require assumptions to be made about future investment returns, future mortality rates and
future policyholder behaviour

The process for determining key assumptions that have been made for fife nsurance assets and habihities at 31 December 2009 1s detailed in notes 24 and 33 The
impact on profit before tax of changes in key assumptions 1s detailed 1n note 34

General insurance business

At 31 December 2009 the Group held a provision of £223 millien (2008 £183 mitlion) in respect of the estimated cost of claims notified but not setiled and claims
incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date The methodology for valuing these habilities, which includes the use of statstical techmgues, 15 descnbed in
accounting poticy 2(0)2)

While management believes that the liabilty carned at year end 15 adequate, the application of statistical techniques requires significant judgement An increase of
10 per cent in the cost of claims would result in the recognition of an additrenal loss of approximately £21 milian Similarly, an increase of 10 per cent in the ultmate
number of such claims would lead to an additional loss of approximately £22 million, some relief would arise from reinsurance centracts held

4 Net interest income
- Weighted average effective

interest rate

2009 2008 2009 2008
% % £m £m

Interest and simitar income
Loans and advances to customers 395 633 9,086 13,808
Loans and advances to banks 089 474 1,335 1,847
Debt securites held as loans and receivables 435 252 123 61
l.ease and tire purchase recevables 6 69 762 598 706
Interest receivable on loans and tecevables 2 85 610 11,142 16,422
Available-for-sale financial assets 159 4 58 433 1,147
Total interest and similar income 277 597 11,575 17,569

Interest and similar expense
Deposits from banks 085 365 (723} (1,540)
Customer deposits 123 322 (1,944) (4,946)
Debt securities 1n 1ssue 159 4159 (1,642) (2,154)
Subordinated habilites 794 628 (1,242) (901)
Liabilities under sale and repurchase agreements 1183 4 45 (509} (256)
Interest payable on habiities held at amorhised cost 156 367 (6,060) (9,797)
Other 391 - (216} -
Total interest and similar expense 159 36l (6,276) (9,797
Net interest income 5,299 7,772

Included withun nterest and similar income 1s £584 milkon {2008 £435 mitlion) in respect of impaired financial assets Net interest income also includes a credit of
£17 milien (2008 charge of £16 million) transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve (see note 44)
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5 Net fee and commission inceme

2009 2008
£m £m

Fee and commission income
Current accounts 761 707
Insurance broking 125 549
Credit and debit card fees 564 581
Trust and ather fiduciary fees 393 413
Other 978 981
2,821 3,231
Fee and commission expense (680) (694)
Net fee and commission income 2,141 2,537

As discussed 1n accounting policy 2{d), fees and commissions which are an integral part of the effective interest rate form part of net interest income shown 1n note 4

Fees and commissions relating to instruments that are held at fair value through profit or loss are included within net trading inceme shown 1n nete 6

6 Net trading income

2009 2008
£m £m
Foreign exchange translabion gains 74 58
Gamns on foreign exchange trading transactions 382 75
Total foreign exchange 456 133
Investment property losses (ncte 22) (145) {1,058}
Securities and other (losses) gains (see below) 6,903 18,330}
Met trading income 7,214 {9,255)

Secunities and other {losses) gains comprise net gains ansing on assets and habilites held at far value through profit of loss and for trading as follows
2009 2008
£m £m

Net income (expense) ansing on assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Loans and advances o anks and customers 11 20
Debt secunties 537 918
Equity shares 4,929 (7,770
Total net (expense) Income ansing on assets held at fair value through prefit or {nss 5,477 (6,832)
Net expense ansing on liabilities held at farr value through prefit or loss — debt secunties I 1ssue {119) (232)
Total net {losses) gains ansing on assets and habilities held at fair value through profit or loss 5,358 (7.064)
Net (losses) gains on financial instruments held for trading 1,545 (1,266)
Secunties and other {losses} gains 6,903 {8,330
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7 Insurance premtum income

2009 2008
£m £m
Ufe nsurance
Gross premiums 3,753 4,841
Ceded reinsurance premiums (183) (41)
Net earned premiums 3,570 4,800
Non-iife insurance
Gross premiums watten 596 651
Ceded reinsurance premiums {34) (23)
Net premiums 562 528
Change n provision for unearned premiums {note 33(2}) 85 (16)
Change in provision for ceded unearned premiums {nete 33(2)) 11 -
Net eamed premiums 658 612
Total net earned premiums 4,228 5,412
Life insurance gross waiten prermiums can be further analysed as follows 2009 2008
£m £m
Life and pensions 3,278 4,182
Annuities 462 645
Other 13 14
Gross premiums 3,753 4,841
Non-life insurance gross wntien premiums can be further anatysed as follows 2009 2008
£m £m
Credht protection 115 203
Hame 476 441
Health 5 7
596 651
B Other operating income
2009 2008
£m £m
Operating lease rental income 409 392
Rental income from nvestment properties (note 22} 180 209
Other rents receivable 32 32
Gains less losses on disposal of available-for sale financial assets {note 44) 1 19
Movement 1n value of 1n force business {note 24) 510 (325)
(Gain on capital transactions 1,773 -
Qther income 402 201
3,307 528

Dunng 2009, as part of the Group's management of capiial, the Group exchanged certain existing subordinated debt securities for new secunities as described below
These exchanges resulted 1n a gain on extinguishment of the existing habitity of £1 773 million, being the difference between the carrying amount of the secunties
extinguished and the fair value of the new secunties together with related fees and costs

In January 2009, the Bank converted two issues of perpetual capital secunties for preference shares 1ssued by the Bank which resulted in a gain of £859 mullion

In the first half of 2009, undated subordinated notes i1ssued by the Bank were exchanged for innovative tier 1 secunties and senior unsecured notes i1ssued by the
Bank These exchanges resulted n a gain of £652 mulkion

In November 2009, as part of the restructunng plan that was a requirement for EC approval of state aid recerved by Lloyds Banking Group, the Group agreed to
suspend the payment of coupons and dividends on certain of the Group s preference shares and preferred secunties accounted for as debt for the two year perniod from
31 January 2010 %o 31 January 2012 This suspension gave rise to a parbial extinguishment of the onginal hability, equivatent to the present value of the suspended
cash flows and resulted in a gain of £262 mdllion
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9 [Insurance claims

insurance claims compnse
Life insurance and parlicipating investment contract
Claims and surrenders

Change n gross hiabilities

Change in reinsurers’ share

Change 1n insurance and participating investment contract iabilities (note 33(1))
Change in grass habilities
Change In reinsurers’ share

Change in non-participating investment contract hatnlihes
Change in gross labilities
Change n reinsurers’ share of labilites

Change 1n unallocated surplus {note 36)

Total hfe insurance and participating investment contracts

Nan-life insurance
Claims and claims paid
Gross

Reinsurers share

Change in liabilties (note 33(2))
Gross
Reinsurers' share

Total non-hfe insurance

Total insurance claims (expense) credit

Life insurance gross claims can also be analysed as follows
Deaths
Maturities
Surrenders
Annunies
Other

A non-hfe insurance claims development table (s included in note 33

30

2009 2008
£m £m
(4,062) (4,710
76 65
(3,986) (4,645)
(3,178) 4,357
25 a5
(3,153) 4,397
(2,179} 3,016
(2,179) 3,016
(40) 284
(9,358) 3,052
(233) (219
3 7
(230 (212)
(40) 24
(2) (5)
(42) 19
(272) (193)
{9,630) 2 859
(270} (289)
{1,596} (1,888)
{1,589 {1,960
(540) (518)
(&M (57)
(4,062) (4,710)
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10 Operating expenses

2009 2008
£m Em

Staff costs
Salaries 2,364 2,183
Social secunty costs 194 176
Pensions and other post-retirement benefit schemes (note 38} 362 235
Other staff costs 788 337

3,708 2,931
Premises and equipment

Rent and rates 348 318
Hire of equipment 10 16
Repairs and maintenance 175 151
Cther 202 165
735 650
Other expenses

Communicabions and data processing 561 455
Advertising and promotion 188 194
Professional fees 342 224
Qther 516 780
1,607 1,653

Depreciation and amartisation
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (necte 26} 681 648
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 25) 52 38
733 686
Goodwill impairment charge (note 23) 240 100
Total operating expenses, excluding Government Asset Protection Scheme fee and subvention payment 7,023 6,020
Subventon payment (see below) 3,000 -
Government Asset Pratection Scheme fee {see below) 2,500 -
Total operating expenses 12,523 6,020

In the year ended 31 December 2009, the Bank made a payment of £3,000 rmillion (2008 £nil) to its fellow banking subsidiary, Bank of Scotland ple, to support its
financial and reputational pesition and to facilitate the ongeing ntegration of the group’s banking operations

In refation to the Lloyds Banking Group's agreement not to enter inte the Government Asset Protection Scheme, in the year ended 31 December 2009 the Bank pad
a fee of £2,500 million {2008 £ni}) to the UK Government

The average number of persons on a headcount basis employed by the Group during the year was as follows

2009 2008
UK 63,891 64,355
Overseas 2,124 2,118

66,015 66,473

Fees payable to the Bank's auditors

During the year the auditors eamed the following fees 2009 2008
£m £m
Fees payable for the audit of the Bank's current year annual report 45 43
Fees payable for other services
Audit of the Bank's subsidianies pursuant to legislation 36 42
Cther services supplied pursuant to legislation 25 26
Other services relating to taxation 04 05
Services relating to corporate finance transactions 02 04
Al other services 10 10
Total fees payable to the Bank's auditors 122 130

Dunng the year the auditors also earned fees payable by entities cutside the consolidated Lloyds TSB Bank Group inv respect of the following

2009 2008

£m £m

Audits of the Group pension schemes 02 Q2
Audits of unconsolidated Cpen Ended [nvestment Companies managed by the Group 06 05
Reviews of the financial position of corporate and cther borrowers 73 14
Acqusition due diltgence and other work performed in respect of potential venture capital investments 14 10
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11 Impairment

2009 2008
£m £m
Impairment losses on loans and receivables (note 20}
Loans and advances to banks 3 135
Loans and advances to customers 4,248 2,584
Debt secunties classified as loans and receivables 108 157
4,353 2,876
Impatrment of available-for-sale financial assets (note 3} 25 130
Other credit risk provisions (note 40) 38 6
Total impairment charged to the income statement 4,416 3,012
12 Taxation
2009 2008
£m £m
a Analysis of tax credit for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profit (loss) for the year {309) (642)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years (128) (40}
{437) (682)
Double taxation relief - 39
(437 (643)
Foreign tax
Current tax on prefit (loss} for the year {111) (104)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 7 4
(104) (100}
Current tax charge (541) (743)
Deferred tax (note 39)
Ongination and reversal of temperary differences 2,051 614
Ad|ustments in respect of prior years 95 148
2,146 762
Tax credit 1,605 19
The credit for tax on the profit for 2009 1s based on a UK corporation tax rate of 28 O per cent {2008 28 5 per cent)
The above income tax credit on (loss) profit for the year 1s made up as follows
2009 2008
£m £m
Tax (charge) credit atinbutable to policyholders {44) 461
Shareholder tax credit (charge} 1,649 (442)
1,605 19
Before tax After tax
amount Total tax amount
Year ended 31 December 2009 £m £m £m
Movements 1n avallable-for-sale financial assets
Change 1n fair value 1,430 (228) 1,202
Transferred to income statement in respect of dispesals {1} (2} {3)
Transferred to income statement in respect of impairment 44 (6) 38
Other transfers to income statement (29) 8 {21}
1,444 (228) 1,216
Movement in cash flow hedges
Effective porticn of changes in fair value taken to other comprehensive income {4) 1 3
Net gains transferred to the income statement (17 5 (12)
21} 6 (15)
Currency translation differences 313 {182} 131
Other comprehensive income for the year 1,736 (404) 1,332
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12 Taxation {continued)

Year ended 31 December 2008

Movernents in available for-sale financial assets
Change 1n farr value
Transferred to iIncome statement in respect of disposals
Transferred to income statement in respect of iImpairment
Other transfers to Income statement

Movement ¢n cash flow hedges
Effective porticn of changes in fair value taken to other comprehensive iIncome
Net gains transferred to the income statement

Gurrency translation differences
Other comprehensive income for the year

b Factors affecting the tax credit for the year

Before tax After tax
amount Tota! tax amount
£m £m £m
2,721 690 (2,031
(19 - {19
130 (28 102
{91 25 {66
(2,701) 687 (2,014)
{33 9 (24

L6 (4 12
in 5 (12)
(1,3¢1) 942 (359)
(4,019) 1,634 {2,385)

A reconcihiation of the credit (charge) that would result from applying the standard UK corperation tax rate to profit before tax to the tax credit for the year is given

below

Profit (loss) before tax

Tax {charge) credit thereon at UK corporation tax rate of 28 O per cent (2008 28 5 per cent}
Factors affecting credit {charge}

Goodwll

Disallowed and non-taxable items

Overseas tax rate differences

Gains exempted or covered by capital losses

Policyholder interests

Adjustments 1n respect of prévious years

Effect of profit {loss) In joint ventures and associates

Other items

Tax credit on profit (loss} on ordinary activities

33

2009 2008
£m £m
(4,378) 825
1,226 (235)
{67) 28}
463 (122}
(13) (39)
14 25
(32) 330
12 94
1 -
1 (B)
1,605 19
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13 Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Tracing assets

Cther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are compnsed as follows

Leans and advances to customers

Debt secunbes
Government securties
Other public sector securities
Bank and buiiding society certificates of deposit
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed secunties
Other asset-backed secunties
Corporate and other debt secunties

Equity shares
Listed
Unlisted

The Group The Bank

2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
210 857 510 857
48,384 44 258 2,123 2,822
48,894 45,115 2,633 3,679

2009 2008 2009 2008
Other Other Other Other
financial financial financial financial
assets at assets at assets at assets at
fair value fair vatue fair value fair value
Trading through Trading through Trading through Trading through
assets  profit or loss assets  profit or loss assets  profit orloss assets  profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
273 166 283 325 273 166 283 325
72 7.866 38 7,326 72 - 38 -
6 34 - 18 6 - - -
- - - 433 - - - -
- 353 - 369 - - - -
- 1,656 - 1,342 - 247 - 105
159 10,412 536 11,120 159 1,706 536 2,387
237 20,361 574 20,608 237 1,953 574 2,492
- 18,964 - 16,620 - - - -
- 82,893 - 6,705 - 4 - 5
- 27,857 - 23,325 - 4q - 5
510 48,384 857 44,258 510 2,123 857 2,822

At 31 December 2009 £48,307 mikion (2008 £44,097 milhon) of trading and other financial assets at far vatue through profit or loss of the Group and

£2,478 milhon (2008 £3,376 million} of the Bank had a contractual residual matunity of greater than one year

Otrer financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the following assets designated into that category

() financial assets backing insurance contracts and investment contracts which are so designated because the related labilities either have cash flows that are
contractually based en the performance of the assets or are contracts whose measurement takes account of current market condibens and where significant

measurement inconsistencies would otherwise arise,

) certain loans and advances to customers which are econemically hedged by interest rate denivatives which are not in hedge accounting relatonships and
where significant measurement incensistencies woult otherwise arise i the related denvatives were treated as tracing fiabilities and the loans and advances

were carned at amortised cost, and

() certain private equity investments that are managed, and evaluated, on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented nsk management or investment
strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2009 of the loans and advances to custarmers designated at fair value through profit or loss by the Bank and the
Group was £166 milhion {2008 £325 million), the Bank and the Greup do not hold any credit denvatives or other instruments in mitigation of this nsk There was no
significant movement in the fair value of these (oans attnibutabie to changes in credit nsk, this 1s determined by reference to the publicly available credit ratings of the

instruments involved

14 Denvative financial instruments

The Group holds denvatives as part of the following strategies

- Customer driven, where derivatives are held as part of the provision of nsk management products to Group customers,

— Te manage and hedge the Group’s interest rate and foreign exchange nsk ansing from nermal banking business The hedge accounting strategy adopted by the

Group s to utihise a combination of fair value, cash flow and net mvestment hedge approaches as described m Note 50,

— Denvatives held in policyholders funds as permitted by the investment strategies of these funds

Derwatives are classified as trading except those designated as effective hedging instruments which meet the ¢ritena under IAS39 Denvatives are held at fair value on
the Group's balance sheet A description of the methodology used to determine the fair value of dervative financial Instruments and the effect of using reasonably

possible alternative assumptions for those denvatives valued using unobservabie inputs 1s set out in note 50
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14 Denvative financia! instruments {continued)

The principal dernvatives used by the Group are as follows

- Interest rate reiated contracts include interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options An interest rate swap (s an agreement between two parties to
exchange fixed and floating interest payments, based upon interest rates defined in the contract, without the exchange of the underlying principal amounts Forward
rate agreements are contracts for the payment of the difference between a specified rate of interest and a reference rate, applied to a notional pnncipal amount ata
specific date in the future An interest rate option gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the right, but not the obligatien, to fix the rate of interest on a future
lean cor deposit, for a specified period and commencing on a specified future date

- Exchange rate related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and options A forward foreign exchange contract 1s an agreement to
buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified future date at an agreed rate Currency swaps generally involve the exchange of interest payment
obligations denominated s different currencies, the exchange of principal can be notional or actual A currency option gives the buyer, on payment of a premum,
the right, but not the obligation, to sell specified ameunts of currency at agreed rates of exchange on or before a specified future date

~ Credit derrvatives, principally credit default swaps, are used by the Group as part of its trading activity and to manage its own expasure to credit sk A credit default
swap 1s a swap in which one counterparty receives a premium at pre-set intervals in consideration for guaranteeing to make a specific payment should a negative
credit event take place The Group also uses crecit default swaps to secuntise, In combination with external funding, £6,455 milion (2008 £8,360 million) of
corporate and commercial banking loans

- Eguity derivatives are also used by the Group as part of its equity based retail product activity to eliminate the Group’s exposure to fluctuabons in various
international stock exchange indices Index-linked equity options ate purchased which give the Group the night, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specified
amount of equities, or basket of equities, 1n the farm of published indices on or before a specified future date

The fair vatue and netronal amounts of dervative instruments held for trading are set out in the following table

The Group 2009 2008
ConH ac": Fair values Confract/ Farr values
notionad
amount Assets Liabilities amaunt Assets Liabilities
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Trading
Exchange rate contracts
Spet, forwards and futures 139,295 1,571 1,894} 157,572 5,788 4,102
Currency swaps 45,684 2,594 1,485 31,874 4,367 2,409
Options purchased 11,286 684 - 9,185 714 -
QOptions written 11,133 - 437 10,143 - 743
207,398 4,849 3,516 208,774 10,869 7.254
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 507,684 9,727 10,588 || 370,333 11,797 12,990
Forward rate agreements 108,567 70 49| 153,930 405 395
Options purchased 50,339 1,076 ~ 37,175 B43 -
Options written 33,991 - 1,089 33,130 - 627
Futures 635 1 1 587 44 3
701,216 10,874 11,727 595,155 13 089 14,015
Credit denvatives 15,869 1,558 433 32,495 4,257 2,670
Equity and other contracts 14,592 521 355 5,447 234 81
Tota! denvative assets/habilities held for trading 939,075 17,802 16,031 841,871 28,449 24,020
Hedging
Denvatives designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps (including swap options} 24,219 950 492 37,243 434 1,665
Options written 628 - 144 - - -
Denvatives designated as cash flow hedges
tnterest rate swaps 659 1 47 867 1 91
Denvatives designated as net investment hedges
Cross currency swaps 2,507 44 18 6,318 ~ 2,413
Total denivative assetslabilities held for hedging 28,013 995 702 44,428 435 4,169
Total recogrnised denvative assets/liabilities 967,088 18,797 16,733 886,299 28,884 28,189
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14 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

At 31 December 2009 £3,776 million of total recogrised denvative assets of the Group and £3,134 mullion of total recogrised denvative liabilities of the Group
(2008 £16,200 mellion of assets and £15,814 mullion of hatulities) had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

The Bank 2009 2008
Co".t,rac'{ Fair values C:&Ef[g‘; Fair values
amount Assets Liabilities amaunt Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Trading
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 167,889 1,572 1,640 | 165,836 5,783 4,228
Currency swaps 47,703 1,804 1,504 36,549 2,372 4,840
Cptions purchased 11,272 685 - 9,220 722 -
Options wriiten 11,152 439 10,204 - 763

238,016 4,061 3,583 221,809 8,877 9831
Interest rate contracts

Interest rate swaps 509,259 9,739 10,401 374,626 11,663 12,708
Forward rate agreements 108,567 70 48 154,330 405 395
Options purchased 48,083 1,068 - 37.317 859 -
Options written 34,368 - 1,101 33,564 - 639
Futures 4 - 1 - - -
700,281 10,877 11,551 599,837 12,927 13,742
Credit dervatives 15,532 1,558 439 39,888 4,257 3986
Equity and other contracts 10,368 489 484 7,344 208 208
Total derivative assets/liabilibies held for trading 964,197 16,985 16,057 868,878 26,269 27,767
Hedging
Denvatives designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps {(including swap options) 23,219 951 581 38,243 434 1,872
Options written 628 - 144 - - -
Dernvatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 659 1 a7 867 1 91
Total dernvative assets/liabihties held for hedging 24,506 952 772 39,110 435 1,963
Total recognised derivative assers/liabitities 988,703 17,937 16,829 907,988 26,704 29,730

At 31 December 2009 £2,478 million of total recogmsed dernvative assets of the Bank and £4 225 milhon of total recogrised denvative hiabilities of the Bank
{2008 £14,187 milhon of assets and £15,796 milhon of habihties) had a contractual residual matunity of greater than one year

The principal amount of the contract does not represent the Group's real exposure to credit nisk which 1s imited to the current cost of replacing contracts with a
positive value to the Group and Bank should the counterparty default To reduce credit nisk the Group uses a varniety of credit enhancement techniques such as netting
and collateralisation, where secunty 1s provided against the exposure Further details are provided in Note 51

15 Loans and advances to banks

The Groug The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Lending to banks 153,826 3,056 169,882 12,293
Maoney market placerments with banks 21,877 35812 6,823 24 810
Total loans and advances fo banks 175,703 38,868 176,705 3z7.1c3
Allowance for impairment losses (note 20) (149) {135 (149} (135)

175,554 38,733 176,556 36,968

At 31 December 2009 £3,174 million (2008 £5,459 mullion) of loans and advances to banks of the Group and £3,789 million {2008 £4,460 million) of the Bank
had a contractual residual matucity of greater than one year

The Group and the Bank hold coflateral with a fair value of £4,171 milion (2008 £10,73S milliory, which they are permitted to sell or repledge, of which
£4,171 million (2008 £5,492 millien) was repledged or sold to third parties for periods not exceeding three months from the transfer The Bank and the Group are
ohliged to return collateral with a fair value of £4,171 million (2008 £5,492 millien)
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16 Loans and advances to customers

Agncutlture, forestry and fishing
Energy ang water supply
Manufacturing
Construction
Transpoert, disiribution and hotels
Pestal and telecommunications
Property companies
Financial, business and other services
Personal

Mortgages

Otner
Lease financing
Hire purchase
Due from fellow Greup undertakings

Allowance for impairment losses (note 20}

The Group The Bank

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m
4,457 3969 2,198 2,017
2,085 2,598 2,056 2,577
8,807 12,067 7,880 11,074
2,842 3,016 2,427 2,654
12,280 14,664 10,357 12,773
833 1,060 790 951
23,110 23,318 21,439 21,610
32,889 33,319 27,200 25,414
115,349 114,643 101,922 100,925
23,658 25,318 18,734 20,575
4,317 4,546 483 590
5,224 5,295 528 576
14,188 - 60,692 50,287
250,039 243,803 256,706 252,063
(4,813) {3,459) {3,595) (2,700)
245,226 240,344 253,111 249,363

At 31 December 2009 £190,831 million (2008 £180,197 milhon) of feans and advances to customers of the Group and £163,544 million
(2008 £158,176 millhon} of the Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

The Group and the Bank hold collateral with a fair value of £1,110 milion (2008 £1,736 million) which they are permitted to sell or repledge, of which
£1,102 milhon (2008 £366 million) was repledged or sold to third parties for periods not exceeding three meonths from the transfer The Group and the Bank are
abliged to return collateral with a fair value of £1,102 million {2008 £386 million)

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease recevables, which may be analysed as follows

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Gross investment in finance leases, receivable
Not later than 1 year 648 541 48 54
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,473 1,775 148 205
Later than 5 years 4,922 5,570 638 748
7,043 7.886 834 1,007
Unearned future finance income on finance leases {2,599) (3,038) (353) (4186)
Rentals received (n advance {119} (128) 2 (1)
Commitments for expenditure 1n respect of equipment to be leased (8) (174) - -
Net investment in finance leases 4,317 4,546 483 580
The net Investment in finance leases represents amounts recoverable as follows
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Not later than 1 year 364 328 21 25
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 892 974 84 116
Later than 5 years 3,061 3,244 378 449
4317 4,546 483 590

Equipment leased to customers under finance leases pnmarnly relates to structured financing transactiens to fund the purchase of awrcraft, ships and other large
individual vatue items Dunng 2009 and 2008 nc contingent rentals in respect of finance leases were recognised In the income statement The allowance for

uncollectable finance lease recewvatles included n the allowance for iImpairment losses 15 £19 mullion for the Group (2008 £15 million)
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16 Loans and advances to customers (continued}

The unguaranteed residual values included in finance lease receivables were as follows

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Not later than 1 year 4 1 - -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 46 29 17 15
Later than 5 years 5 3 - -
Total 55 33 17 15

17 Secuntisations and covered bonds

Loans and advances to customers include balances that have been secuntised but not derecogrised, including residential mortgages and commercial banking leans,
the carrying values of which are set out below together with any related habilities Residential mortgages are not derecognised because the Group remains exposed to
the majonty of the nisk of any default in respect of them, commercial banking loans are not derecogmised because the Group has not transferred the contractual rights
o receve the cash flows from those loans nor has it assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows from those loans to a thirg party

Beneficial interests 1n certain residential mortgages have been transferred to specal purpose entities which issue floating rate debt secunties Neither the Group nor
any entities 1n the Group are obliged to support any losses that may be suffered by the note holders and de not intend to offer such support The floating rate note
halders only receive payments of interest and principa! to the extent that the special purpose entibies have recerved sufficient funds from the transferred mortgages and
after certain expenses have been met In the event of a deficiency, they have no recourse whatsoever to the Group

The Group’s principal secuntisation and covered bonds programmes, together with the balances of the advances subject to notes in 15sue at 31 December, are hsted
helow The notes in 1ssue are reported in note 32

2009 2008
Gross
assets Notes in  Gross assets Notes 0
secunbised 1ssue securntised issue
Securibsation Type of loan £m £m £m £m
Arkle UK residential mortgages 32,070 18,420 34,293 27,189
Coopers Hill UK residental mortgages 11,383 12,000 - -
Highland UK residential mortgages 5,937 6,050 - -
Ascot Black? Commercial loans 1,220 - 1,434 -
Goodwood Gold! Commercial loans 2,932 119 2 909 127
Doncaster Gold® Commercial loans 831 &0 950 48
Exeter Blue' PPP/PFI and project fingnce loans B77 45 859 48
Kelso! Corporate ioans and revolving credit faciities 595 7 1,158 3
Morse! Corporate loans and revolving credit faciities - - 1,050 -
Chepstow Blue Commercial loans 3,959 4,050 - -
Derby Blue Commercial loans 3,231 3,250 — -
63,035 44,001 42,653 27,415
Less held by the Group (37,428) {17,365)
Total secuntisations 6,563 10 G50
Covered bonds
Residential mertgage-backed covered bonds 38,753 29,000 40,608 24,000
Less held by the Group (29,000) (24,000}
Total covered bonds - -
Total secuntisations and covered bends 6,563 10,050

1Secuntisations using a combination of externat funding and credit default swaps

Cash deposits of £7,209 milhon (2008 £1,846 millon) held by the Group are restncted in

entities and other legal obligations
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18 Special purpose entities

In addition 1o the speciat purpose entities disclosed in note 17, which are used for secuntisation and covered bond programmes, the Group sponsors Cancara, an
asset-backed conduit which invests in debt secunities and chent receivables The total exposures in Cancara, all of which ae consolidated n the Group's financial

statements, are set out in the table below

Loans and advances {note 16)

Debt securities

Classified as loans and recevables {note 19)
Classified as avaslable-for-sale (note 21)

2009 2008
£m £m
3,692 5,905
10 437
5,382 6,273

Total exposure

9,084 12,615

Other special purpose entities

During 2009, the Group estabhshed Lioyds TSB Pension ABCS {No 1) LLP and Lloyds TSB Pension ABCS (No 2) LLP and transferred approximately £5 billion of
assets, pnmanly compnsing notes in certain of the Group’s securitisation programmes, In aggregate to these entiies The Group transferred interests in these LLPs
with a fair value of approximately £1 bilkon in aggregate to the Lloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme Mo 1 and the Lloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme No 2 entitling

those schemes to annual payments of approximately £215 mullion in aggregate until 31 December 2014 (see note 38)

19 Debt secunties classified as loans and recesvables
Debt secunties accounted for as oans and receivables compnse

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m

Asset-backed secunties

Mortgage-backed securities 600 478 590 -
Other asset-backed securties 313 540 518 540
Corporate and other debt secunties 1,968 3,531 1,967 3,456
2,881 4,549 3,075 3,996
Allowance for impairment losses (see note 20) (245) (133} (245) (133)
2,636 4,416 2,830 3,863

Included above are £10 milion {2008 £437 million} held in Cancara, the Group's asset-backed commercial paper conduit {see note 18)
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20 Allowance for impairment losses on loans and recewables
Loans and Loans and

advances to  advances to Deht

customers hanks secunties Total
The Group £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2008 2,408 - - 2,408
Exchange and cther adjustments 43 - - 43
Advances written off (1,586} - {24) 1,610
Recoveries of advances waiten off in previous years 112 - - 112
Unwinding of discount (102} - - (102}
Charge to the income statement 2,684 135 157 2,876
At 31 December 2008 3,459 135 133 3,727
Exchange and other adjustments (17 17 4 4
Advances written off (2,8986) - - {2,896)
Recoveries of advances wntten off In previcus years 110 - - 110
Unwinding of discount (28] - - (s1)
Charge (credst) to the income statement 4,248 (3) 108 4,353
At 31 December 2009 4,813 149 245 5,207

Loans and Loans and

advances fo  advances to Debt

customers banks secunties Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2008 1,855 - - 1,855
Fxchange and other adjustments 43 - - 43
Advances written off {1,397) - - (1,397
Recovenes of advances wntten off in previous years 103 - - 103
Unwinding of discount (108) - - (108)
Charge to the (ncome statement 2,204 135 133 2,472
At 31 December 2008 2,700 135 133 2,968
Exchange and other adjustments (20) 17 {1) 4)
Advances wnitten off (2,619 - - (2,619)
Recoveries of advances written off In previous years 107 - - 107
Unwinding of discount (98) - - {98)
Charge (credit} to the income statement 3,525 (3) 113 3,635
At 31 December 2009 3,595 149 245 3,989
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21 Avallable-for-sale financial assets

2009 2008
The Group Cancara Other Total Cancara Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Debt securies
Government secunties - 8,342 8,342 - 868 868
Cther public sector securnities - 31 31 - 12 12
Bank and buillding society cemficates of deposit - 729 729 - 9,602 9,602
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securites 3,481 1,283 4,764 3,929 1,771 5,700
Other asset-backed secunties 1,901 5,660 7,561 2,344 5,748 8,092
Corporate and other debt secunties 2,049 2,049 2,183 2183

5,382 18,094 23,476 6,273 20,184 26,457
Equity shares

Listed - 4 4 - 3 ~ 3

Unlisted - 77 77 - 38 38
- 81 81 - 41 11

Treasury bills and other bills

Treasury bills and stmilar secunties - 2,532 2,532 - 2,402 2,402

Other bills - - - - 26,807 26,807
- 2,532 2,532 - 29,209 29,209

5,382 20,707 26,089 6273 49,434 55,707

The Bank 2009 2008
£m £m

Debt securnhes

Government secunties 8,200 510
Other public sector secunties 31 12
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 463 7,663
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed secunties 1,080 19,276
Other asset-backed secunties 2,122 3,576
Corporate and other debt secunties 1,471 514

13,367 31,551
Eguity shares

Listed 1 -

Unlisted 75 36
76 36

Treasury bills and cther bills

Treasury bilis and similar secunties 71 50

Gther tifls - 26,807
71 26,857

13,514 58,444

Details of the Group’s asset-backed conduits shown n the table above are included n note 18
Further information on asset-backed secunity exposures 1s provided in note 51

At 31 December 2009 £21,352 mullion (2008 £15,627 million) of available-for-sale financial assets of the Group and £12,546 millien (2008 £17 331 mullion)
of the Bank had a contractual reskiual matunty of greater than one year

All assets have been individually assessed for impairment The ¢ntena used to determine whether an impairment loss has been incurred are disclosed in accounting
policy 2(hX2) Included in available-for-sale financial assets at 31 December 2009 are debt secunties indivicually determined to be impaired whose gross amount
before impanment aliowances was £32 mithon (2008 £282 milion) and tn respect of whith no collateral was held In addition, intluded n available-for-sale
financial assets at 31 December 2009 are equity securities individually determined to be impaired whose gross amount before impairment allowances was £nil
(2008 £31 milhon)

At 31 December 2009, the Bank had sold £1,277 milhon (2008 £478 million) of debt secunties to two of its subsidiary undertakings, however the retated
agreements are such that the Bank has retained substanhally all of the nsks and rewards of ownership and, as a consequence, the debt securities continue to be
recognised on the Bank's balance sheet
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22 Investment properties of the Group

2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 January 2,631 3,722
Exchange and other adjustments {15) 66
Additions
Acquisiions of new properties 82 85
Additional expenditure on existing properties 67 116
Total additions 148 201
Disposals {280) (300}
Changes in far value (note B) {145) {1,058)
At 31 December 2,340 2,631

The investment properties are valued at least annuaily at open-market value, by independent, professtonally qualified vaiuers, who have recent expenence in the
location and categones of the investment properties being valued

In addition the following amounts have been recogrised in the iIncome statement 2009 2008

£m £m
Rental income 180 209
Direct operating expenses ansing from investment properties that generate rental income 37 29
Capital expenditure in respect of investment properties 2009 2008

£m £m
Capital expendiiure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recogmised in the financial statements 9 82

23 Goodwill of the Group

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January 2,256 2 358
Exchange and other adjustments - (2}
tmpairment charged to the ncome statement (240) (100)
At 31 December 2,016 2,256
Cost* 2,362 2,362
Accumulated impairment losses (346) {106)
At 31 December 2,016 2,256

*For acquisitions made prior to 1 January 2004, the date of transibon to IFRS cost ss tncluded net of amounts amortised up 1o 31 December 2003

The goodwill held in the Group's balance sheet 1s tested at least annually for impawrment For the purposes of impairment testing the goodwill 1s allocated to the
appropnate cash generating unit, of the total batance of £2,016 millilon {31 December 2008 £2,256 mullion), £1,836 million (or 91 per cent of the total} has been
allocated to Scottish Widows and £170 millson (or 8 per cent of the total) to Asset Finance

The recoverable amount of Scothish Widows has been based on a value-in-use calculation The calculation uses projections of future cash flows based upen budgets
and plans approved by management covering a five-year penod, and a discount rate of 12 per cent (gross of tax}) The budgets and plans are based upon past
expenence adjusted to take into account anticipated changes (n sales volurnes, product mix and margins having regard to expected market conditions and competitor
activity The discount rate 1s determined with reference to internal measures and avalakle industry information Cash flows beyend the five-year penod have been
extrapolated using a steady 3 per cent growth rate which does not exceed the kong-term average growth rate for the life assurance market Management beleves that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would nat cause the recoverable amount of Scotssh Widows to fall below its balance sheet carryng value

In 2009, the markets in which the Consumer Finance unit of Asset Finance operate have deteriorated further with both macroeconomic and market condiions
worsening, leading to a fall off in demand and increasing arrears This, together with continuing uncertainties over the hikely short-term macroeconemic environment,
has resulted in a reassessment of the carrying value of the consumer finance cash generating unit and the recegnition of a gocdwill impairment charge of
£240 millien 10 the year ended 31 December 2009 reflecting the write down of the entire balance of goodwill allocated to the Consumer Finance unit of Asset
Finance leaving goodwill of £170 milion in the Autolease unit of Asset Finance

The recaverable amount of Asset Finance has alsc been based on a value in use calculatien using cash flow projections based on financial budgets and plans
approved by management covening a five-year penod and a discount rate of 18 75 per cant (gross of tax) The cash flows beyond the five-year penod are extrapolated
using a growth rate of 0 5 per cent which does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the markets in which Asset Finance participates
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24 Value of in-force business of the Group

The movement n the value of in force insurance and participating investment contracts over the year 15 as follows 2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 January 1,893 2,218
Movements in the year
New business 201 368
Existtng business
Expected retumn {111} (112)
Expenence vanances (28) (46)
Assumption changes 16 (32)
Economic variance 432 (443)
Mavement in value of in force business taken to income statement {note 8) 510 {325)
At 31 December 2,403 1,893

This breakdown shows the movement in the value of in-force business only, and does not represent the full contnbution that each item 1n the breakdown contnbutes
to profit before tax, which weuld also contain changes 1n the other assets and habilities of the relevant businesses Economic vanance I1s the element of earnings
which 15 generated from changes to economic expenence in the penod and te assumptions ever ime  The presentation of eccnomic vanance includes the impact of
financial market conditions being ditferent at the end of the reporting period from these included in assumptions used to calculate new and existing business returns

The principal features of the methodology and process used for deterruning key assumptions used in the calculation of the value of in-force business are set out
below

Economic assumptions

Each cash flow 1s valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets (n practice, to achieve the same result, wherg
the cash flows are either independent of or move hnearly with market movements, a method has been applied known as the certainty equivalent’ approach whereby
1115 assumed that all assets earn the nsk-free rate and ail cash flows are discounted at the nsk-free rate

A market consistent appreach has been adopted for the valuation of financial options and guarantees, using a stochastic opticn pricing technigue calibrated to be
consistent with the market pnce of relevant options at each valuation date The nsk-free rate used for the value of financial options and guarantees 1s defined as the
spot yielkd derived from the relevant government bend yield curve (n hne wath FSA realistic balance sheet assumptions

The hahlines 10 respect of the Group s UK annuity business are matched by a portfolic of fixed interest securibies, including a large proportien of corperate bonds In
accordance with the approach adopted 1in December 2008, the value of the in-force business asset for UK annuity business has been calculated after taking into
account an estimate of the market premium for 1llquidity 1n respect of these corporate bond holdings The iliquidity premium 1s estimated to be 75 basis points as at
31 December 2009 (31 December 2008 154 basis paints) The reduction in the iiliquidity premium over 2009 has offset gains made on the assets backing the
annuity habilites, reducing the benefit within the results from the reduction in corporate bend spreads

The risk-free rate assumed n valuing the non-annuity (n-force business 1s the 15 year government bond yield for the appropnate terntary The nsk-free rate assumed
in valuing the 1n-force asset for the UK annuity business 1s presented as a single nisk free rate to allow a better companson to the rate used for ather business That
single nisk-free rate has been derived te give the equivalent value to the UK annuity book, had that book been valued using the UK gilt yield curve increased to reflect
the iliguidity premium described above

The table below shows the range of resuling wields and other key assumptions at 31 December for UK business 2009 2008

% %
Risk-free rate (value of in-force nen-annuity business) 445 374
Risk-free rate (valug of in force annuity business) 505 522
Risk-free rate (financial options and guarantees) 0B87tod476 111t0424
Retail orice inflation 364 275
Expense inflation 442 350

Naon-market nsk

An allowance for non-market risk 15 made through the choice of best estimate assumptions based upon expenence, which generally will give the mean expected
finangial outcorne for shareholders and hence no further allowance for nen-market nsk 1 required  However, in the case of operatienal nsk and the With Profit Fund
these can be asymmetric in the range of potential outcomes for which an explicit allowance 1s made

Non-ecenomic assumphions
Future mortality, morbidity, lapse and paid-up rate assumptions are reviewed each year and are based on an anafysis of past experience and cn management's view
of future expenence These assumptions are intended to represent a best estimate of future expenence

Further information about the effect of changes 1n key assurmphiens 1$ given in note 34
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25 Other intangible assets

The Group The Bank
Capitalised Capitalised
Customer soltware software
related enhance enhance-
intangibles ments Total ments
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 57 240 297 156
Addtions 6 80 86 65
At 31 December 2008 63 320 333 221
Additions - &0 60 38
Disposals - (69) (69) (69)
At 31 December 2009 63 311 374 190
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2008 5 143 148 103
Charge for the year 7 31 38 18
At 31 December 2008 12 174 186 121
Charge far the year 6 46 52 27
Disposals - (69) (69) (69}
At 31 December 2009 18 151 169 79
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2009 45 160 205 111
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2008 51 146 197 100
Capitalised software enhancements of the Bank and the Group principally compnse identifiable and directly associated internal staff and other costs
26 Tangible fixed assets
The Group The Bank
Qperating Total Total
lease tangible tangible
Premises Equipment assefs  fixed assets Premises Eguipment  fixed assets
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 1,437 2,871 1,431 5,739 1,083 2,426 3,509
Exchange and other adjustments 2 18 70 90 2 18 20
Additions g6 341 556 Q993 91 316 407
Disposals (19 (82) (493) (5G4) {16) (40) (56)
At 31 December 2008 1,516 3,148 1,564 6,228 1,160 2,720 3,880
Exchange and other adjustments - (28) 358 330 (2} (8) {10}
Additions 53 1,200 584 1,837 49 354 403
Disposals (25) (93) {422) (540) 23 (83) (106)
At 31 December 2009 1,544 4,227 2,084 7,855 1,184 2,983 4,167
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2008 718 2,007 175 2,900 637 1,637 2,274
Exchange and other adjustments 1 10 21 32 1 10 11
Charge for the year 81 254 313 648 71 228 299
Disposals {11} (63) {243) (317) {9) {28) (37)
At 31 December 2008 789 2,208 266 3,263 700 1,847 2,547
Exchange and other adjustments - G 108 104 {3) (4) (7)
Charge for the year 83 265 333 681 72 240 312
Disposals (18) {49) {251) (318) (18) {41} (59)
At 31 December 2009 854 2,420 456 3,730 751 2,042 2,793
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2009 890 1,807 1,628 4,125 433 941 1,374
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2008 727 940 1,298 2,965 460 873 1,333
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26 Tangble fixed assets (continued)

At 31 Decernber the future mimimum rentals recevable by the Group under non canceltable operating leases were as follows 208: 2085
Receivable within 1 year 418 294
1to 5 years 562 320
Qver 5 years 37 9

1,017 623

Equipment leased to customers under operating feases primarily refates to vehicle contract hire arrangements Dunng 2008 and 2009 no contingent rentals in
respect of operating leases were recognised 1in the income statement

In addition, total future mimimum sub-lease income of £7 2 million for the Group and £64 million for the Bank at 31 December 2009 (£102 millon for the Group and
£93 milhon for the Bank at 31 December 2008) 1s expected to be recewed under non-cancellable sub-leases of premises

27 Investment in subsidiary undertakings of the Bank

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January 15,992 16,137
Additions - 817
Additional capital injections and transfers 1 50
Capital repayments - {805)
Disposals (33) {187)
Permanent diminution i value - (20)
At 31 December 15,960 15,992

The principal group undertakings, all of which have prepared accounts to 31 December and whose results are included n the consolidated accounts of Lioyds TSB
Bank plc, are

Country of Percentage of equity
registration/ share capital ang
Incorporaton voling rights held  MNature of business
Lloyds TSB Scotland plc Scotland 100% Barking and financtal services
Scotuish Widows plc Scotland 100%* Life assurance

*Indirect interest

The principal area of aperation for each of the above group undertakings 1s the United Kingdom

In November 2009, as part of the restructuring plan that was a requirement for European Cemmunity (EC) approval of state ard recewved by the Group,
Lioyds Banking Group agreed to suspend the payment of coupens and dividends on certain of the Group preference shares and preferred securities for the two year
penod from 31 January 2010 to 31 January 2012 The Group has agreed to temporanly suspend and/or wave dividend payments on certain preference shares
which have been 1ssued intra-group Conseguently, In accordance with the terms of sorme of these instruments, subsidianes may be prevented from making dividend
payments on ordinary shares durng this penod In addition, centain subsidiary companies currently have insufficient distnbutable reserves to make dwidend
payments

Subject to the foregoing, there were no further significant restnctions on any of the parent company's subsidianes in paying dwidends or repaying loans and advances
All regulated banking and insurance subsicharies are required to mawstain capital at Jevels agreed with the regulators, this may impact those subsidianies ability to
make distributions

See note 55, post balance sheet events, for details of the acquisiticn of HBOS pic on | Jan 2010
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28 Other assets

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Assets arising from remnsurance contracts held (nete 33) 419 385 - -
Deferred acquisition and origination costs las 196 - -
Settlement balances 152 751 13 493
Other assets and prepayments 4,223 4,432 803 1,999
4,982 5,764 816 2,492
2009 2008
£m £m
Deferred acquistion and onginatien costs of the Group
At 1 January 196 212
Acquisition and ongination costs deferred, net of amounts amortised 1o the income statement (8) (16)
At 31 December 188 196
29 Deposits from banks
The Group The Bark
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Liabiities 1n respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements 48,803 24,888 48,803 24,888
Other deposits from banks 90,754 41,626 111,625 55,641

139,557 66,514 160,428 80,529

At 31 December 2009 £911 million (2008 £1,956 miflion) of deposits from banks of the Group and £2,769 million (2008 £2,489 mullon) of the Bank had a
contractual residual matunty of greater than ane year

Included in deposits from banks, for both the Group and the Bank, were deposits of £1,834 million (2008 £2,574 mithon) held as coliateral, principally in relation
to denvative contracts The fair value of those deposits approximates the carrying amount

30 Customer deposits

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em £m £m £m
Non-interest beanng current accounts 6,793 4,176 6,272 3,936
Interest beanng current accounts 47,738 47,109 45,109 44,101
Savings and investment accounts 75,682 76,144 67,168 64,653
Liabilities 1n respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements 224 gz 226 92
Other customer depasits 62,608 44,843 82,278 71,259
Custormner deposits 193,045 172,364 201,053 184,041

At 31 December 2009 £19,005 milion (2008 £3,166 milfion} of customer deposits of the Group and £22,928 million {2008 £9,476 million} of the Bank had a
contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Included in customer deposits were deposits of £651 million (2008 £1,002 millien} of the Group and £651 milhion {2008 £982 million) of the Bank held as
collateral, principally 1n relaticn to derivative contracts The fair value of those deposits appreximates the carrying amount
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31 Trading and cother financial liabibties at fair value through profit or loss

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (debt securnities) 6,160 6,748 6,160 6,748
Trading habilties — short positions in securities 202 6 202 &
Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 6,362 6,754 6,362 6,754

At 31 December 2009, for both the Group and the Bank, £4,057 milion {2008 £6,525 muillion) of trading and other liabilites at farr value through profit or less had
a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

The amount contractually payable on matunty of the debt secunties held at far value through profit or loss at 31 December 2009 was £5,866 million
(2008 £6,517 million), which was £294 million tower than the balance sheet carrying vatue (2008 £231 milion) At 31 December 2009 there was a curnulative
£55 million decrease n the fair value of these hatihties aitnbutable to changes in credit spread nisk, s s determined by reference to the quoted credst spreads of the
Bank Of the £55 million, £11 million argse in 2009 and £36 million arcse in 2008

Liabelities designated at fair value through profit or loss represent debt secunties in 1ssue which either contain substantive embedded denvatives which would
atherwise need to be recogrised and rmeasured at fair value separately from the refated debt secunties, or which are accounted for at fair value to significantly reduce
an accounting mismatch

32 Debt secunties in 1ssue

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Medium-term notes issued 47,786 9.179 47,791 9178
Certficates of deposit 1ssued 44,508 33,207 44,494 33 060
Secuntisation notes (see note 17) 6,563 10,080 3,404 24,457
Commercial paper 21,862 20,630 14,181 7,864
Total debt secunities 1n 1ssue 120,719 73,066 109,870 74,559

At 31 December 2009 £52,690 million (2008 £16,121 milhon) of debt secuntees in issue of the Group and £49,554 million (2008 £26,231 miilion) of the Bank
had a contractual residual matunity of greater than one year

33 Liabilities of the Group arising from insurance contracts and parbicipating investment contracts
Insurance contract and partcipating investment coniract hatilities are comprnised as follows

2009 2008
Re- Re-
Gross insurance® Net Gross nsurance® Net
£m £m £m £m Em £m
Life insurance {see (1) below)

Insurance contracts 24,077 (405) 23,672 21,553 (380) 21,173
Participating investment contracts 12,273 - 12,273 11 619 - 11,619
36,350 (405) 35,945 33,172 (380) 32,792

Non-life insurance contracts {see (2) below)
Unearned premiums 387 {11) 376 472 - 472
Claims outstanding 223 (3) 220 183 (5} 178
610 (14) 596 655 (5) 650
36,960 (419) 36,541 33,827 (385) 33,442

Reinsurance balances are reported within cther assets (note 28)

At 31 December 2009 £33,303 mullon (2008 £30,002 million} of habiities ansing from insurance contracts and parbicipating investment contracts had a
contractual residual maturity of greater than one year
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33 Liabilities of the Group arising from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts {continued)

{1) Life insurance
The movement In Iife insurance contract and participating investment contract llabiliies cver the year can be analysed as follows

Participating

Insurance Investment
contracts cantracts Gross  Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 22 655 14,874 37,529 (340) 37,189
New business 2,915 208 3,123 (32) 3,091
Changes 1n existing business (4,017) (3,463) (7,480) (8) (7,488)
Change 1n hiabilihes charged to the income statement (note 9) (1,102} {3,255) (4,357) (40} (4,397)
At 31 December 2008 21,553 11,619 33,172 (380) 32,792
New business 2,182 98 2,280 {27 2,253
Changes 1n existing business 342 556 898 2 900
Change In liabilities charged to the wncome statement (note 9) 2,524 654 3,178 (25) 3,153
At 31 December 2009 24,077 12,273 36,350 {405) 35,945

Liabihbes for [fe insurance contracts and participating investment contracts can be sphit inte with profit fund habilities, accounted for using the FS$A’s realistic capital
regime (realistic labilities) and non-profit fund habilties, accounted for using a prospective actuanal discounted cash flow methodology, as follows

2009 2008
With profit Non profit With-profit Non-profit
fund fund Total fund fund Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Insurance contracts 7,641 16,436 24,077 7,492 14 061 21 B53
Participating investment contracts 5,720 6,553 12,273 5,836 5783 11 619

13,361 22,989 36,350 13,328 19,844 33,172

With-profit fund realistic habilities
(1) Business description
The Group has with-profit funds within Scottish Widows plc containing both insurance contracts and pariicipating investment contracts

The primary purpose of the conventional and umtised business wntten in the wath profit funds 1s to provide a long-term smoothed investment vehicle to the
policyholders, protecting them against short-term market fluctuations  With-profit policyhelders are entitled to at least 9C per cent of the distnbuted profits, the
shareholders receving the balance The pohcyholder 1s also usually insured against death and the policy may carry a guaranteed annuity option at maturity

(1) Method of calculation of Habilities
With-profit habilities are stated at their realistic value the main companents of which are

+ With-profit benefit reserve, 1 @ the total asset shares for with-profit pohicies,
= Cost of options and guarantees

« Deductions levted against asset shares, and

« Impact of the smooth:ng policy

The realistic assessment 1s carfied out using a stochashic simulation model which values habihities on a market consistent basis The calculatien of realistic labilities
uses best estimate assumptrons for mortality, persistency rates and expenses These are catculated in a similar manner to those used for the value of In force business
as discussed (n note 24

{1} Assumptions
Key assumptions used 1n the calculation of with-profit labilities, and the pracesses for determining these, are

Investment returns and discount rates

The realistic capital regime dictates that with-profit fund habilities are valued on a market-consistent basis This 15 achieved by the use of a valuation model which
values liabilities on a basis calibrated to tradable market option contracts and other observable market data The with-profit fund financial options and guarantees are
valued using a stochastic simulation model where all assets are assumed to earn, on average, the nsk free yield and all cash flows are discounted using the nsk-free
yield The nsk-free yield 1s defined as the spot yield denved from the relevant government bond yield curve

Guaranteed annuity options

Certain pension contracts contain guaranteed annuity options that allow the pelicyholder to take an annuity benefit on retirement at annuity rates that were
guaranteed at the outset of the contract For contracts that contain such oplions, key assumptions in determining the costs of the options are economic conditions in
which the option has value, mortality rates and take-up rates of the options The financial impact 1s dependent on the value of corresponding Investments, interest
rates and longevity at the time of the claim

Investment volatility
The calibration of the stochastic simulation moedel uses implied volatiities of dernvatives where possible, or histornical volatility where it 1s not possible to abserve
meaningful pnces
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33 Lwabilities of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued}

Mortality
The mortalty assumptions, including allowances for impravements In longevity for annuitants, are set with regard to the Group's actual expenence where this i1s
significant, and relevant industry data otherwise

Lapse rates (persistency)
Lapse rates refer to the rate of policy termination or the rate at which policyholders stop paying regular premiums due under the contract

Histonical persistency expernience 1s analysed using statistical techmgues As expenence can vary considerzbly between different product types and for contracts that
have been n force for different penods, the data 1s broken down into broadly homogencus groups for the purposes of this analysis

The most recent experience 1s considered along with the results of previous analyses and management's views on future expenence, taking into consideration
potentizl changes in future experience that may result from guarantees and options hecoming more valuable under adverse market conditions, in order to determine a
"oest estimate’ view of what persistency will be In determining this best estimate view a number of factors are considered, including the credibility of the results
{which will be affected by the volume of data available), any exceptionat events that have occurred dunng the pencd under consideration, any known or expected
trends in underlying data and relevant published market data

Non-profit fund habilihies

{1} Business description

The Greup principally wnites the following types of life insurance contracts wittun its nen-profit funds Shareholder profiis on this type of business arise from
management fees and cther policy charges

Unit-linked business — This ncludes unit-knked pensions and umit-linked bonds, the pnmary purpose of which 1s to provide an investment vehicle where the
palicyholder 1s also insured against death

Life insurance ~ The policyholder is insured against death or permanent disability, usually for predetermined amounts Such business includes whale-of-life and term
assurance and long-term credtor policies

Annuities — The policyholder 1s entitled to payments for the duration of their Iife and is therefore insured against surviving longer than expected

(1) Method of Calculation of rabilities
The non-profit fund habilities are determined en the basis of recognised actuanal methods and consistent with the approach required by regulatory rules The
methods used involve estimating future pelicy cash flows over the duration of the in-ferce book of policies, and discounting the cash fiows back to the valuation date
allowing for probabilities of cccurrence

(n} Assumptions

Generally, assumptions used to value non-profit fund habilities are prudent in nature and therefore contain a margin for adverse deviation This margin for adverse
deviation Is based on management's jJudgement and reflects management's views on the inherent level of uncertainty The key assumptions used n the measurament
cf non-prefit fund liabilities are

Interest rates
The rates used are denved n accordance with the guidelines set by local regulatory bodies These limit the rates of interest that can be used by reference to a number
of factors including the redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation date

Margins for nsk are allowed for in the assumed interest rates These are derwved from the limits in the gutdelines set by local regulatory bodies, including reducticns
made to the avallable yields to allow for default nsk based upon the credit rating of the secunties allocaled to the insurance hability

Mortality and mortadity
The mortality and morbidity assumptions, including allowances fer improvements in longevity for annuitants, are set with regard to the Group's actual experience
where this provides a reliable basis, and relevant industry data otherwise, and include a margin for adverse dewiaticn

Lapse rates (persistency)
Lapse rates are allowed for on some non-profit fund contracts The process for setiing these rates is as described for with-profit latnlihes, however a prudent scenano
1s assumed by the inclusion of @ margin for adverse deviation within the non-profit fund liabitities

Maintenance expenses
Allowance 1s made for future policy cests exphaitly Expenses are determined by reference to an internal analysis of current and expected future costs ptus a margin for
adverse dewiation Explicit allowance 1s made for future expense inflation

Key changes in assumptions
A detailed review of the Group’s assumptions in 2009 resulted 1n the following key impacts on profit before tax

- Change In persistency assumptions {(£66 millicn decrease)
- Change In the key assumption n respect of future mortality rates {£2 milion increase)

These amounts include the impacts of movernents in labilities and value of the in force business in respect of Insurance contracts and participating iInvestment
contracts
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33 Liabilities of the Group arising from nsurance contracts and participating investment contracts {continued)

(2) Nen-life insurance

Gross non-ife insurance contract habilikes are analysed by hine of business as follows 2009 2008
£m £m

Credit protection 228 293
Home 379 359
Health 3 3
610 655

For non-life insurance contracts, the methodciogy and assumptions used In relation to determining the bases of the earnec premium and claims provisioning levels
are derived for each individuat underwntten product Assumptions are intended to be neutral estmates of the most likely or expected cutcome There has been ne

significant change (in the assumptions and methodologies used for setting reserves

The reserving methedclogy and associated assumptions are set out below

The unearned premium reserve 1s determined on a basis that reflects the length of ime for which contracts have been in force and the projected incidence of nisk over

the term of each contract

Claims outstanding comprise those claims that have been notfied and those that have been incurred but not reported Claims incurred bt not reported are
determined based on the historical emergence of claims and their average cost The notified claims element represents the best estimate of the cost of claims reported

using projections and estimates based on tustorical experience

The movements n non-bfe 1nsurance contract habilities and reinsurance assets over the year have heen as follows

Provisions for unearned premnums Gross  Remnsurance Net
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 4586 - 456
Increase n the year 651 (23} 628
Release In the year (635) 23 (612)
Change in provision for unearned prermiums charged to income statement (note 7) 16 - 16
At 31 December 2008 472 - 472
Increase In the year 596 (34) 562
Release In the year {681) 23 (658)
Change in provision for unearned premiums charged to income statement {note 7) (85) an {96)
At 31 December 2009 387 1n 376
These provisiens represent the habihity for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group s obligatons are net expired at the year end
Claims and Joss adjustment expenses Gross  Relnsurance Net
£m £m £m
Notified clams 188 {10 178
Incurred but not reported 19 - 19
At 1 January 2008 207 (10) 197
Cash paid {for clams settled in the year {245) 7 (238
Increase (decrease) in habilities
Arising from current year claims 221 - 221
Arising from prior year claims - (2) (2)
Change n liabilities charged to income statement (note 9} (24) 5 (19)
At 31 December 2008 183 (5} 178
Cash paid for claims settled in the year {234) 2 (232)
Increase (decrease} 1 habiliies
Ansing from current year claims 287 - 287
Ansing frem prior year claims {13) - (13)
Change n llabilities charged to income statement (note 9) 40 2 42
At 31 December 2009 223 [} 220
Notified claims 165 &3] 162
Incusred but not reported 58 - 58
At 31 December 2009 223 (3} 220
Notified claims 160 (8) 155
Incurred but not reported 23 - 23
At 31 December 2008 183 (5) 178
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33 Liabilities of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

Non-life insurance claims development table

The development of insurance liabilties provides a measure of the Group's abslity to estimate the ultimate vatue of claims The top half of the table below dlustrates
how the Group's estimate of total claims outstanding for each accident year has changed at successive year ends The bottom half of the table reconciles the
cumulative claims to the ameount appeasning 1n the balance sheet The accident year basis 1s considered the most appropriate for the business written by the Group

Naon Iife insurance all nsks — gross Accident year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m

Estimate of ultimate claims costs

At end of accident year 211 208 317 205 262 1,203

One year later 207 206 311 199

Two years later 204 204 299

Three years later 202 204

Four years later 201

Current estimate of cumulative claims 201 204 299 199 262 1,165

Cumulative payments to date (198) (158) (278) (171) (114) (959)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 3 6 21 28 148 206

Liability 1n respect of earher years 7

Total tability inctuded in the balance sheet 213

The tabiiity of £213 millon shown in the above table excludes £1C millien of unallecated claims handhng expenses

34 Insurance sensitivity analysis of the Group

The following table demenstrates the eflect of changes 1n key assumptions on profit before tax and equity disclosed n these financial statements assuming that the
other assumptions remain unchanged In practice this s unlikely to occur, and changes in some assumptions may be correlated These amounts include movements
In assets, habimes and the value of the in-force business (n respect of Insurance contracts and participating investment contracts The impact 1s shown 10 one
direction but can be assumed to be reasonably symmetrical

Increase/(reduction) Increase/{reduction)

in profit before tax 1n equity

Change in vanable £m £m

Non-annuitant mortaliy! 5% reduction 26 19
Annuttant mortality® 5% reduction (82) {59)
Lapse rates® 10% reduction 39 28
Future maintenance and investment expenses® 10% reduction 96 69
Risk-free rate® 0 25% reduction 48 a5
Guarantesd annurty option take-up® 5% addition {5) (3)
Equity investment volatility” 1% addition (9) 6)
widening of credit default spreads on corporate bonds® 0 25% addition (105) (76)
Increase in hquichty premia® 0 10% addition 56 11

Assumptions have been flexed on the basis used to calculate the value of in-force business and the realistic and statutory reserving bases
This sensitvity shows the impact of reducing mortality and morbidity rates on non-annuity business to 95 per cent of the expected rate
2This sensitivity shows the impact on the annuity and deferred annuity business of reducing mortality rates to 95 per cent of the expected rate
3This sensitvity shows the impact of reducing lapse and susrender rates to 90 per cent of the expected rate
“This sensitivity shows the impact of reducing maintenance expenses and investment expenses to 90 per cent of the expected rate

5Thus sensitivity shows the impact on the value of in force business, financial options and guarantee costs, statutory reserves and asset values of reducing the risk-free
rate by 25 basis points

5This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 5 per cent addition to the expected rate
This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 1 per cent additan to the expected rate

8Thig sensitvity shows the impact of a 25 basis point increase in credit default spreads on corporate bonds and the corresponding reduction 1n market values
Government bond yields, the non-annuity nsk-free rate and lhquidity premia are afl assumed to be unchanged

9This sensitivity shows the impact of a 10 basis point increase in the allowance for iliquidity premia It assumes the overall corporate bond spreads are unchanged and
hence market values are unchanged Government bond yields and the nisk-free rate are both assumed to be unchanged The increased illiguidity premium increases
the annuity nsk-free rate
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35 Liabihties of the Group ansing from non-participating investment contracts
The movement in habikties ansing from non-participating investment contracts may be analysed as follows

Gross  Reinsurance Net
Em £m £m
At 1 January 2008 18,197 - 18,197
New Dusiness 560 - 660
Changes in existing business (4,614) - {4,614)
At 31 December 2008 14,243 - 14,243
New business 242 - 242
Changes in existing business 1,249 - 1,249
At 31 December 2009 15,734 - 15,734
36 Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses for the Group
The movement in the unallocated surplus within long-term insurance business over the year can be analysed as follows
2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 January 270 554
Change In unallocated surplus recognised in the iIncome statement (note 9) 40 {284)
At 31 December 310 270
37 Other liabilities
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Settlement balances 361 891 101 548
Unitholders’ interest in Open Ended Investment Companies 5,908 4,336 - -
Other creditars and accruals 5,994 6 267 3,336 4,407
12,263 11,494 3,437 4,955

At 31 December 2009 £7,796 million (2008 £5,481 millon) of other abihties of the Group and £1,032 million (2008 £56 million} of the Bank had a contractual

residual matunty of greater than one year

38 Retirement benefit ocbligations
Charge to the Group 1ncome statement

2009 2008
£m £m
Defined benefit pension schemes 267 157
Other post-retirement benefit schemes 7 7
Total defined benefit schemes 274 164
Defined contnbution pension schemes B8 71
362 235

Amounts recognised In the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Defined benefit pension schemes 360 1,657 17 1,240
Other post-rebirement benefit schemes 114 114 114 114
474 1771 131 1354

For accounting purpeses, the assets and habiities of the Group’s post-retrement benefit schemes are allocated between the paricipating employers, including the

Bank, in propertion to the cash contribuficns made to the schemes
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38 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Pensicn schemes

Defined berelit schemes

The Greup has established a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK and overseas, the most significant being the defined benefit sections of the
Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2 These schemes provide retirement benefits calculated as a percentage of final salary depending upon the length of
service, the mimmum retirement age under the rules of the schemes 1s 50

The latest full valuations of the two main schemes were carned out as at 30 June 2008 The provisional results have heen updated to 31 December 2009 by
qualified independent actuanes The last full valuaticns of other Group schemes were carmed out on a number of different dates, these have been updated to
31 December 2009 by qualified \ndependent actuares or, in the case of the Scottish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a quatfied actuary employed by
Scottish Widows

The Group’s and the Bank’s obligations n respect of defined benefit schemes are funded Ouring 2009, the Group's contributions to its defined benefit schemes of
£1,567 milon included one-cff contnbutions to the Lloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme Ne 1 and Lleyds TSB Group Pensicn Scheme No 2 of approximately £1
bilhon in aggregate These contnbutions tock the form of interests in mited liabilty partnerships for each of the two schemes which contain assets of approximately
£5 bilhon in aggregate entithng the schermes to annual payments of approximately £215 million in aggregate until 31 December 2014 Thereafter, assurming that all
distributions have been made, the value of the partnership interests will equate to a normiral amount  The rmited hability partnerstups are fully consolidated in the

Group's halance sheet (see note 18)

The Group currently expects to pay contributions of at least £260 million {the Bank at least £190 million} to 1ts defined benefit schemes in 2010

Amounts included in the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2008 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Present value of funded obligations 18,796 15,617 14,363 12,015
Fair value of scheme assets (16,075) (13.693) (12,507) (10,488}
2,721 1,924 1,856 1,627
Unrecognised actuanal losses (2,361) (267) (1,839 (287)
Liabiltty 1n the balance sheet 360 1,657 17 1,240
Movermnents in the defined benefit obligation The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 15,617 16,795 12,015 12,899
Current service cost 216 258 158 188
Interest cost 956 957 732 747
Actuarial losses (gains) 2,649 (1,928) 1,938 (1,478)
Benefits paid (647) (557} {494) (470
Past service cost 31 21 26 22
Curtallments - 6 - -
Exchange and other adjustments {26) 105 (12) 105
At 31 December 18,796 15,617 14,363 12,015
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 13,693 16,112 10,488 12,410
Expected return 936 1,085 720 835
Employer contnibutions 1,567 541 1,419 403
Actuarnal gams (losses) 542 (3,520} 376 (2,762)
Benefits paid (647) (597} (494) (470)
Exchange and other adjustments {16) 72 2) 72
At 31 December 16,075 13,693 12,507 10,488
Actual return on scheme assets 1,478 (2,435 1,096 (1,927)
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38 Retirement benefit obligattons (continued)

Assumptions
The principal actuanal and financial assumptions used in the valuations of the defined benefit pensicn schemes were as follows

2009 2008
% %
Discount rate 570 6 30
Rate of inftation 340 300
Rate of salary increases 375 375
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 320 2 80
Years Years
Life expectancy for member aged 60, on the valuation date
Men 271 264
Women 282 272
Life expectancy for member aged 60, 15 years after the valuation date
Men 287 273
Women 298 281

The mortality assumptions used In the scheme valuations are based on standard tables published by the Institute and Faculty of Actuanes which were adjusted in line
with the actual expenence of the relevant schemes The table shows that a member retinng at age 60 as at 31 December 2009 s assumed to live for, on average,
27 1 years for a male and 28 2 years for a female In practice there will be much vanation between indrvidual members but these assumptions are expected to be
appropnate across all mermbers 1t s assumed that younger members will ive longer 1n retirement than those retinng now  This reflects the expectation that mortaiity
rates will continue to fall over time as medical science and standards of iving improve To illustrate the degree of improvement assumed the table also shows the life
expectancy for members aged 45 now when they retire in 15 years time at age 60

An analysis of the impact of a reasonable change in these assumptions I1s provided in note 3

The expected return on scheme assets has been calculated using the following assumphens 2009 2008
% %
Equities 84 82
Fixed interest gilts 37 45
Index linked gilts 40 44
Non-Government bonds 67 60
Propery 64 67
Money market instruments and cash 38 48
The expected return on scheme assets in 2010 will be calculated using the following assumptions 2010
%
Equiies and alternative assets 83
Fixed interest gilts 45
Index linked gilts 41
Nen-Government bonds 60
Property 75
Money market instruments and cash 43
Composition of scheme assets The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2008 2008
£m £m £m £m
Equities 7,689 7,040 5,932 5,404
Fixed interest giits 1,327 1,452 1,071 1,157
Index linked gilts 1,510 1,326 1,007 890
Non-Government bonds 1,917 1,721 1,491 1,323
Property 1,391 1,485 1,129 1,182
Monay market instruments, cash and other assets and labilities 2,241 669 1,877 522
At 31 December 16,075 13,693 12,507 10,488

The assets of all the funded plans are held independently of the Group's assets In separate trustee admiristered funds

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy Expected
yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields at the balance sheet date at a terrn and credit rating broadty appropnate for the bonds held
Expected returns on equity and property investment are long-term rates based on the views of the plans’ independent investment consultants The expected return on
equities allows for the diferent expected returns from the private equity, infrastructure and hedge fund investments held by some of the funded plans Some of the
funded plans also invest In certain money market nstruments and the expected return on these investments has been assumed to be the same as cash
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38 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Expenence adiustments history

The Group 20039 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligation 18,796 15,617 16,795 17,378 17,320
Fair value of scheme assets (16,075) (13,693) (16,112) {15,279} (14,028)
2,721 1,924 683 2,099 3,294
Experience losses on scheme habilities (14) (39) (185) (50) (69)
Experience gains (losses) on scheme assets 542 (3,520) 139 314 1,638
The Bank 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m £m

Presert value of defined benefit obligation 14,363 12,015 12,895 13,166 13,134
Fair value of scheme assets (12,507) (10,488) (12,4100 {11,579) (10,619
1,856 1,527 489 1,587 2,515
Experience losses on scheme habihities {4 (23) (150) (42) (53)
Expenence gains (losses) on scheme assets 377 (2,750 114 243 1,166
The expense recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December comprises 2009 2008
Em £m

Current service cost 216 258
Interest cost 956 957
Expected return on scheme assets (936) {1,085}
Curtailments - 6
Past service cost 31 21
Total defined benefit pension expense 267 157

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes in the UK and overseas, principzlly the defined contribution sections of the Lloyds TSB Group

Pension Schemes Neo's 1 and 2

Duning the year ended 31 December 2009 the charge to the Income statement in respect of these schemes was £88 million (2008 £71 mullion), representing the
contributions payable by the emplayer in accordance with each scheme's rules

Other post-retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a number of schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits and concessionary mortgages to certasn employees, retired employees
and therr dependants The principal scheme relates to former Lloyds Bank staff and under this scheme the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retirement
healthcare for alt eligible former employees {(and therr dependants} who retired prior to 1 January 1996 The Group has entered into an insurance contract to provide
these benefits and a provision has been made for the estimated cost of future INsurance premiums payable

For the pnncipal post-rebrement healthcare scheme, the latest actuanal valuation of the liability was carnied out at 30 June 2008, this valuation has been updated to
31 December 2009 by quaiifled independent actuaries The principal assumptions used were as set out above, except that the rate of increase 1n healthcare
premiums has been assumed at 7 33 per cent (2008 7 50 per cent)

Amount included 1n the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Present value of unfunded obligations 120 118 120 118
Unrecognised actuarnal losses (6) (4} (6) (4)
Liabity in the balance sheet 114 114 114 114
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38 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Movements In the other post-retirement benefits obiigation The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 118 123 118 123
Exchange and other adjustments (48] 2 {1) 2
Actuanal loss (gain) 2 (8} 2 (8)
Insurance premums paid (6) (6) (6) (6)
Charge for the year 7 7 7 7
At 31 December 120 118 120 118
39 Deferred tax baiances
The movement 1n the net deferred tax kalance 15 as follows
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Asset (hability) at 1 January 837 (949) 1,161 619
Exchange and other adjustments 1 (1} - 48]
Disposals 12 96 - -
Income statement credit (note 12) 2,146 762 1,475 538
Amount credited (charged) to equity
Available-for-sale financial assets (nete 44) (206) 566 30 -
Net investment hedges (note 44} (358) 358 - -
Cash flow hedges (note 44} 6 5 6 5
(558) 929 36 5
Asset at 31 December 2,438 837 2,672 1,161

The statutory pesition refiects the deferred tax assets and habilities as disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet and takes account of the inability to offset assets and
liabiliies where there 1s no legally enforceable night of offset The tax disclosure of deferred tax assets and habilities ties to the amounis outined in the table below

which sphts the deferred tax assets and habilities by type

Statutory position
Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax habilities

Net deferred tax asset

Tax disclosure
Deferred tax asset
Creferred tax habilities

Net deferred tax asset

The deferred tax credit in the consolidated income statement comprises the following temporary differences

Accelerated capital allowances

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
Investment reserve

Allowances for impairment losses
Unrealised gains

Tax on value of in-force business

Trading losses

Other temporary differences
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The Group The Bank

2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
2,438 837 2,672 1,161
2,438 837 2,672 1,161
3,420 2,293 2,723 1,181
{982) {1,456) (51) (20)
2,438 837 2,672 1,161
2009 2008

em £m

492 318
{191) (118)
9 (32)

(15) ?

59 387

(160) 193

1,810 g7

142 {85)

2,1a6 762
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39 Deferred tax balances {continued}

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised as follows

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 311 503 225 364
Allowances for impairment losses B8 103 85 as
Other provisions 159 51 155 38
Dervatives 91 99 97 85
Available-for-sale asset revaluation 324 567 - -
Tax losses carned forward 2,316 856 1,970 476
Accelerated capital allowances - - 158 78
Other temporary differences 131 114 a3 41
3,420 2,293 2,723 1,181

Deferred tax habilities
Accelerated capital allowances {56) (561} - -
Investment reserve {142) (151 - -
Unrealised gains - (45) - -
Tax on value of In-force business (618) {459) - -
Other temporary differences (166} {240} {51) (20
(982) (1,456} {51) (20}

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recogmised for tax losses cammed forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits 1s probable
Group cormpanies have recognised deferred tax assets of £2,316 mullion {2008 £856 million) in refation te tax losses camed forward  After reviews of medium-term
profit forecasts, the Group considers that there will be sufficient profits in the future against which these losses will be offset

Deferrect tax assets of £91 million far the Group and £55 million for the Bank (2008 £252 mullion for the Group and £55 millien for the Bank) have not been
recogrised 1n respect of capital losses carried forward as there are no predicted future capital profits Capital losses can be carried forward indefinitely

In addition, deferred tax assets have not been recegnised in respect of unreheved foreign tax carned forward as at 31 December 2009 of £13 mullion for the Group
and the Bank (2008 £60 million for the Group and £1 2 milhon for the Bank), as there are no predicted future taxable profits against which the unrelieved foreign tax
credits can he ubihsed These tax credits can be carned forward indefinitely

Deferred tax habiies

Future transfers from Scotish Widows plc's long-term business funds to its Shareholder Fund will be subject to a shareholder tax charge Under 1AS 12, no provision
1s required to be made to the extent that the tming of such transfers 1s under Scotish Widows plc's control  Accordingly, deferred tax habibities of £90 million
(2008 £90 million} have not been recogrnised

Scottish Widows plc has a taxable difference of £152 million (2008 152 mullion) in repect of its holding of a life insurance subsidiary No deferred tax habilty 1s
reguired to be recognised in respect of this taxable temporary difference under IAS 12 as Scottish Widows plc does not intend to dispose of this subsidiary company

40 Other provisions

Provisions for

contingent Customer Vacant

habilties and  remediabon  Restructunng leasehold
commitments provisions provisions property Other Total
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 30 34 14 28 124 230
Exchange and other adjustments (1) 1 - - 6 6
Transfers - 157 - - - 157
Provisions applied - (5) (1) (1Q) (2) (18)
Amortisation of discount - - - 2 - 2
Charge for the year 38 {1) 101 18 14 170
At 31 December 2009 67 186 114 38 142 547
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40 Other provisions (continued)

Provisions for

contingent Customner Yacant

habilbes and  remedation  Restructunng leasehold
commitments provisions provisions property Other Total
The Bank £m £m £Em £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 54 31 14 27 80 206
Exchange and other adjustments - 1 - - 10 11
Transfers - 157 - - - 157
Provisions applied - (4) (1) {9) (1) (15)
Amorhisation of discount - - - 2 - 2
Charge for the year 42 (1) 101 18 12 172
At 31 December 2009 96 184 114 38 101 533

Prowvisions for contingent habiities and cormimitments
Provisions are held in cases where the Group 15 irrevocably commutted to advance additional funds, but where there 1s doubt as to the customer's ability to meet its
repayment chligations

Customer remediation provisions

The Group establishes pravisions for the estimated cest of making redress payments to customers n respect of past product sales, 1n those cases where the onginal
sales processes have been found to be deficient Cunng 2009 management has reviewed the adequacy of the provisions held having regard to current complaint
volumes and the level of payments being made and are satisfied that no additonal charge 1s required At 31 December 2009 the remaining provisions held relate to
past sales of a number of proeducts, including mertgage endowment policies, sold through the branch networks

Restructunng
Provisions are made for staff and other costs related to Group structuning inthiatives at the point at which the Group becomes revacably commitied to the expenditure

Vacant leasehold property

Vacant leasehold property provisions are made by reference to a prudent estimate of expected sub-let income, compared to the head rent, and the possibility of
thsposing of the Group s interest in the lease, taking into account condibions in the property market These provisions are reassessed on a bienmal basis and will
normally run-off over the penied of under-recavery of the leases concerned, currently averaging five years, where a property 1s disposed of earlier than anticipated, any
remaining balance in the prowision refating to that mroparty 15 released

Other

Included within other are provisions which the Group carries In respect of its obligations relating to UIC Insurance Company Lirmited (UIC), which 15 10 provisional
liquidation The Greup has indemnified a third party against losses 1n the event that UIC does not honour 1ts obhigations under a reinsurance contract, which is subject
to asbestesis and pollutien clams in the US The ultimate cost of setthing the Group's exposure in respect of the insurance business of UIC and the ttming remains
uncertain The provision held represents management’s current best estimate of the cost after having regard te the financial condition of UIC and actuarial estimates of
future claims

41 Subordinated habiities

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Preferred secunties 4,029 5,375 4,025 5,375
Undated subordinated habiiities 5,782 5,641 5,235 5,105
Dated subcrdinated habilities 6,188 6,373 6,192 6,373

15,999 17,389 15,456 16,853

These hatihties will, in the event of the winding-up cf the 1ssuer, be subordinated to the claims of the depositors and all other creditors of the issuer, other than
creditors whose claims rank equally with, or are junior to, the claims of the holders of the subordinated liabilities The subordination of the specific subordinated
lrabifities 1s determined 1n respect of the issuer and any guaranters of that lability The claims of holders of preferred shares and secunities are generally junior to those
of the holders of undated subordinated habilites, which in turn are junior to the claims of the holders of the date¢ subordmated habitiies Neither the Group nor the
Bank has had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its suberdinated liabilities duning the year (2008 none) No repayment or purchase
by the 1ssuer of the subordinated llabilities may be made prior to their stated matunty without the consent of the Financial Senices Authonty
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41 Subordinated habilities (continued)

The Group
2009 2008
Nate £m £m
Preferred secunties
6 90% Perpetual Capital Securities {US$1,000 rmilhon} 645 756
Floatng Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2015 (£60C mithon) a 565 600
Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2016 (US$1,000 millson) a 590 687
6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares b - -
Euro Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunties callable 2012 (€430 million) 428 459
7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (€500 million) 146 472
7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (US$1,250 million) 246 921
6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secuntes callable 2013 (€500 million) 456 51z
Sterling Step-up Nen-Voting Non-Cumuiative Preferred Secunities callable 2015 (£250 milhon) 248 248
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securtties callable 2017 (€750 millicn) 705 720
4,029 5,375
Undated subordinated habilities
Primary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes
Senes 1 (US$750 mullion} 408 515
Senes 2 (US$500 mullion) 262 343
Senes 3 (US$800 mullion) 326 412
11%.% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (E100 milhon) 102 100
5%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 million) - 1212
Undated Step up Floating Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 millien) - 144
6%3% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2018 (£410 million) 157 409
5 125% Step-up Perpetual Subordinated Notes callable 2015 (£560 millien) (Scottish Widows plc) d 547 536
5 57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20,000 mullion) 165 189
5 125% Undated Suberdinated Step-up Notes cailable 2016 (£500 miilion) 140 455
6Y,% Undated Subardinated Step-up Notes callable 201 {£270 millien) 89 241
13% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2019 (E£784 million) 827 -
13% furo Step-up Perpetuat Capital Secunties callable 2019 (€532 million) 510 -
8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 million) 64 186
12% Fixed to Floating Rate Perpetual Tier 1 Caprtal Secunties callable 2024 (US$2,000 millicn) 1,235 -
13% Sterling Step-up Perpetual Capital Secuntes callable 2029 (£700 millan) 738 -
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (E450 million) 103 444
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2G32 (500 million) 109 455
5,782 5,641
Dated subordinated habilities
9'%% Subordinated Bonds 2009 (£100 million) - 100
6% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 mullion) 375 404
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 (£100 million) c 116 107
4%,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 million) 771 836
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£150 millon} 150 150
Subordinated Floating Rate Motes 2011 (E100 million) 100 100
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 (£20C million) 200 200
Subcrdinated Floating Rate Motes 2013 (E150 mullion) 150 150
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (E464 million) 465 464
5%3% Subordinated Notes 2014 (£150 million} 154 149
6%% Subordinated Notes 2015 (£350 million} 335 32¢
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£30C milbon) 296 300
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 million) 445 480
Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2018 callable 2013 (€1,000 mithon) 979 992
Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2020 callable 2015 (£750 milian) 758 754
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€10C million) 89 98
5 75% Subordinated Step up Motes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 millien) 322 309
9%% Subcrdinated Bonds 2023 (£300 miliion) 333 312
Subordinated Non-Interest Bearing Loan on rolling 6 year notice (£150 milhon} 150 150
6,188 6,373
Total subordinated liabilities 15,999 17,389

At 31 December 2009 £15,624 million (2008 £17,28% million) of subordinated habiities had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year
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41 Subordinated habilihes {continued)
The Bank

Preferred secunties

6 90% Perpetual Capital Secunties (US$1,000 million)

Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2015 {£600 million)
Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2016 (US$1,00C million)
6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Eurc Step-up Non-Veting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunties callable 2012 (€430 miilion)
7 875% Fixed/Floating nen-cumulative preference shares (€500 millicn}

7 875% Fixed/Floating non-cumulative preference shares (US$1,250 milhon)

6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2013 (€500 million}

Sterling Step-up Nen-Voling Non-Cumulative Preferred Securities callable 2015 (£250 million)
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securnities callable 2017 (€750 millon)

Undated subordinated habilities

Prirmary Capital Undiated Floating Rate Notes

Senes 1 (US$75C million}

Series 2 (US$500 million)

Senes 3 (US$600 mullion)

11%,% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (£100 millicn)

5%.% Undated Subocrdinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 mullion}

Undated Step-up Floating Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 million)

6%,% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 (£410 million)

5 57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (320,000 mithon)
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 (£500 million)

6Y%,% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 (£270 million)

13% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunities callable 2019 (£784 miliion)

13% Eurc Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2019 (€532 mulhon)

8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 million)

12% Fixed to Floating Rate Perpetual Tier 1 Capitai Secunties callable 2024 (US$2,000 mithon)
13% Sterling Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities caliable 2029 (£7C00 million)

6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes caliable 2029 (£450 mulion}

6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£500 milhon}

Dated subordinated habiities

91!2% Subordinated Bonds 2009 (£100 milhon}

6'/4% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 million)

12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 {£10C million)

4%,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 myllion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£150 miliion)

Suberdinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£100 muthon)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 (£200 mitlion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2013 (£150 muilion)

Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (£464 rmullion)

5%% Subordinated Notes 2014 (£150 millon)

6%% Subordinated Notes 2015 (£350 millon)

Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 201 1 {(£300 million)
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 milhon)
Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2018 callable 2013 (€1,000 million}
Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes due 2020 callable 2015 (E750 million)
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 miillion)

5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 million)

9%,% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 mullien)

Subordinated Non-interest Beanng Loan on rolling 6 year notice (£150 million)

Total subordinated liabilities

2009 2008
Note £m £m
645 756
565 600
580 687
428 459
146 472
246 921
456 512
248 248
703 720
4,029 5,375
408 515
262 343
326 412
102 100
- 1,212

- 144
157 409
165 189
140 455
89 241
827 -
510 -
64 186
1,235 -
738 -
103 444
109 455
5,235 5,108
- 100
375 404
116 107
771 836
150 150
100 100
200 200
150 150
465 464
154 149
335 320
300 300
445 480
97% 992
758 754
89 96
322 309
333 312
150 150
€,192 6,373
15,456 16,853

At 31 December 2009 £15,081 million (2008 £16,753 miltion) of subordinated labilities had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

a) In certain circumstances, these preference shares may be mandatonly exchanged for qualifying non innovative tier 1 secunties The Bank may declare no dividend or
a partial dividend on these preference shares Dividends may be reduced if the distnibutable profits of the Bank are insufficient to cover the payment in full of the

dividends and also the payment in full of all other dividends on shares 1ssued by the Bank

b) Since 2004, the Bank has had in 1ssue 100 6 per cent non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each The shares, which are redeemable at the option of
the Bank at any time, carry the rights to a fixed rate non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, no dividend shall be payable in the event
that the directors determine that prudent capital ratios would not be maintained if the dividend were paid Upon winding up, the shares rank equally with any other
preference shares 1ssued by the Bank The holder of the 100 £1 6 per cent preference shares has waived its nghts to payment for the penod from 1st March 2010 to

1st March 2012
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41 Subordinated habilities (continued)

¢} Guaranteed by Lloyds Banking Group plc on a subordinated basis
d) Scotsh Widows plc may elect to defer interest on these secunties although in that event Scottish Widows ple cannot dectare or pay a dividend on any ordinary share
capital until any deferred payments have been made

42 Share capital

(1) Authonsed share capital Group and Bank
2009 2008
£m £m
Sterting
1,650 milhon ordinary shares of £1 each 1,650 1,650

1 cumulative floating rate Preference share of £1 - -
100 6 per cent Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of £1 each - -

175 million Preference shares of 2bp each 44 44
1,694 1,694

US dollars Us$m 1JS$m
160 million Preference shares of 25 cents each 40 40
Ewro €m €m
160 million Preference shares of 25 cents each A0 40
Japanese yen ¥m ¥m
50 milhion Preference shares of ¥25 each 1,250 1,250
2009 2008 2009 2008

Number of shares Number of shares £m £m

{2) issued and fully pard ordinary shares

Sterhng

Ordinary shares of £1 each

At 1 January 1,541,680,932 1,541,680,932 1,542 1,542
Issued in the year 5,600,000 - 5 -
At 31 December 1,547,280,932 1,541,680,932 1,547 1,542

Issue of ordinary shares
On 14 December 2009, the Bank 1ssued 5 6 million ordinary shares to its ultimate parent undertaking for a total consideration of £5,600 miliion, these shares were
1ssued in order to maintain the Bank’s capital following payment of the Government Asset Pratection Scheme fee and the subvention payment (note 10)

Issued and fully paid preference shares
The Bank has in 1ssue various classes of preference shares which are all classified as habiliies under IFRS and details of which are shown 1n note 41

43 Share premium account
Group and Bank

2009 2008

Em £m

At 1 January and 31 December 2,960 2,960
Premiutm anising on shares 1ssued n the year (see note 42) 5,595 -
At 31 December 8,555 2 960
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44  Other reserves
Other reserves comprise

Revaluation reserve In respect of available-for-sale financial assets
Cash tlow hedging reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve

Movements in other reserves were as follows

Revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets
At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments

Change n fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Change In fair value attnibutable to minonty interests

Deferred tax

Current tax

Income statement transfers
Disposals (see note 8)
Deferred tax

Impairment
Deferred tax
Current tax

Other transfers
Deferred tax
Current tax

At 31 December

Cash flow hedging reserve

At 1 January

Change in fair value of hedging derivatives
Deferred tax

Income statement transfer {note 4)
Deferred tax

At 31 December

Foreign currency translation reserve
At 1 January
Currency translation differences ansing in the year

Foresgn currency losses on net investmant hedges

Amounts transferred to the income statement in respect of hedge neffectiveness
Current tax

Deferred tax

At 31 December
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The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
(1,572} (2,982) (399) (361)
(30) (15} (30) (15)
129 173 a9 127
{1,473) (2,824) (3300 (249)
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
(2,982) (399) (361) (49)
175 (541) 17 {85)
1,430 (2,721 {41) (335}
(1) 2 - -
{206) 566 20 -
(2) 94 - 91
1,221 {2,059) (21) (244)
(1) (19) (1) (19
(2) - (2) ~
(3) (19) 3) (19)
44 130 15 13C
(6) - 4) -
- {28) - (28)
as 102 11 102
{29) 1 {58) {91)
8 - 16 -
- 25 - 25
21) (66) (42) (66}
{1,572) (2,982} {399 (361)
(15) 3) (15) {3)
(4) (33) {4) (33)
1 9 1 9
(3) (24) {3) (24)
an 16 (17) 16
5 (4) 5 {4)
(12} 12 (12) 12
(30) (13) 30 (15)
173 [&2)] 127 3
(676} 2536 (28} 119
814 {3.310) - -
- 14 - -
176 584 - -
(358) 358 - -
632 {2,354) - -
129 173 99 127
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45 Retained profits

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em £m £m Em
At 1 January 7,588 5,064 2,960 5,672
Profit {loss) for the year* (2,797) 818 {1,909) (418)
Dividends - {2,294) - {2,294)
At 31 December 4,791 7,588 1,051 2,960
*No income statement has been shown for the Bank, as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
46 Ordinary dividends
2009 2008
£m £m
Final dwidend for previous year paid dunng the current year - 1,646
Intenim dividend - 648
- 2,294
47 Share based payments
Charge to the income statement
The charge to the iIncome statement 15 set out below
2009 2008
Em £m
Deferred bonus scheme 18 -
Executive and SAYE schemes
Ophons granted in the year 13 I 28
Opbons granted in prior years 61 31
74 59
Share incentive plan
Shares granted in the year 3 10
Shares granted in prior years 14 21
17 31
109 90

Share based payment scheme details

Durng the year ended 31 December 2009 Lloyds Banking Group plc operated the following share based payment schemes for which employees of the
Llcyds TSB Bank Group were eligible and all of which are equity settled

Executive schemes

The executive share ophion schemes were long term incentive schemes available to certain sentor executives of the Group, with grants usually made annually Options
were granted within hmits set by the rutes of the schemes relating to the number of shares under option and the pnce payable on the exercise of options The last grant
of executive options was made in August 2005 These options were granted without a performance multipher and the maxgmum hmit for the grant of options in
normal circumstances was three imes annual salary Between Apnit 2001 and August 2004, the aggregate value of the award based upon the market pnce at the
date of grant could not exceed four times the executive’s annual remuneration and, normally, the imit for the grant of options to an executive in any one year would be
equal to 1 5 tmes annual salary with a maximum performance multiplier of 3 5 Pnor to 18 Apnl 2001 the normal limit was equal {o one year's remuneration and

no performance multtplier was applied
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Performance conditions for executive oplions
For options granted up to March 2001

Qptions granted Performance conditions

March 1999 — August 1999 Growth In earmings per share which 1s equal to the aggregate percentage change in the Retail Price Index plus two
percentage points for each complete year of the relevant penod together with a further condition that Lioyds Banking Group
plcs ranking based on sharehalder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) over the
relevant period should be in the top fifty companies of the FTSE 100

March 2000 ~ March 2001 As for March 1999 - August 1999 except that there must have been growth in the earnings per share equal to the change In
the Retall Price Index plus three percentage points for each complete year of the relevant penod

In respect of options granted between March 1999 and March 2001, the relevant peniod for the performance conditions began at the end of the financial year
preceding the date of grant and continued until the end of the third subsequent year following commencement or, if not met, the end of such later year in which the
conditions were met Once the conditions were satisfied the options remain exercisable without further conditions | they were not satisfied by the tenth anniversary of
the grant the opiions would lapse

For options granted from August 2001 to August 2004
The performance cendition was linked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc’s total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and
growth in share price) against a comparator group of 17 companies including Lloyds Banking Group plc

The performance condition was measured over a three year which commenced at the end of the financal year preceding the grant of the option and continued until
the end of the third subsequent year If the performance condition was not then met, it was measured at the end of the fourth financial year If the condition was nct
then met, the options weuld iapse

To meet the perfermance conditions, Lloyds Banking Group plc's ranking against the comparator group was reguired to be at least minth The full grant of options only
became exercisable if Lloyds Banking Group plc was ranked first A performance mulhphier (of between il and 100 per cent) was applied below this level to calculate
the number of shares in respect of which options granted to executive directors would become exercisable, and were calculated on a shding scale If Lioyds Banking
Group plc was ranked below median the options would not be exercisable

Options granted to senor executives other than executive directors were not so highly leveraged and, as a result, different performance muttipliers were applied to
their cptions  For the majonty of executives, options were granted with the performance condition but with no performance multipher

Options granted 1n 2004 became exercisatle as the performance condition was met on the re-test The performance condition vested at 14 per cent for execltive
directors, 24 per cent for managing directors, and 100 per cent for ail other executives

For aptions granted in 2005
The same conditions applied as for grants made up to August 2004, except that

~- the performance condition was linked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group pic's total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and
growth 1n share price} against a comparator group of 15 companies including Lloyds Banking Group plc,

—1If the performance condiion was not met at the end of the third subsequent year, the options would lapse, and

— the full grant of options became exercisable enly if Lioyds Banking Group plc was ranked in the top four places of the comparator group A shding scale apphed
between fourth and eighth positions If Lloyds Banking Group ple was ranked below the medsan (ninth or below) the options would lapse

Options granted 1n 2005 became exercisable as the performance condition was met when tested The performance condition vested at 82 5 per cent for all options
granted

Movements in the number of share ephions outstanding under the executive share option schemes during 2008 and 2009 are set out below

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

2009 average exercise 2008 average exercise

Number of options price {pence} Number of options price (pence}

Qutstanding at 1 January 11,203,628 490 05 20,621,774 480 57
Exercised - - {137,431) 419 25
Forfeited {2,418,650) 536 46 (9,280 715) 470 02
Qutstanding at 31 December 8,784,978 476 56 11,203,628 490 056
Exercisable at 31 December 8,784,978 476 56 9,132,197 453 77

The weighted average share price at the time that the options were exercised during 2008 was 453 42 pence The weighted average remaining contractual life of
options outstanding at the end of the year was 4 3 years (2008 5 1 years)
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Save-As You-Earn schemes

Eligible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-You-Eam (SAYE) schemes to save up to £250 per month and, at the expiry of a fixed term of three,
five or seven years have the option to use these savings within six months of the expiry of the fixed term to acquire shares in Lioyds Banking Group plc at a discounted
price of no less than 80 per cent of the market price at the start of the invitation

Movements in the number of share options outstanding under the SAYE schemes are set out below

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

2009 average exercise 2008 average exercise

Number of options pnce (pencel  Number of options price (pence)

Outstanding at 1 January 190,478,449 152 54 85,673,227 342 49
Granted - - 215,737,733 17380
Exercised - - (40,612,608) 290 77
Forfeited (4,436,478} 180 34 (2,394,415) 388 11
Cancelled (68,822,665) 144 31 (62,963,491) 37321
Expired (5,063,534} 34751 (4,961,997) 311 47
Qutstanding at 31 December 112,155,772 147 69 190,478,449 152 54
Exercisable at 31 December 754,554 317 32 3,157,524 33212

The weighted average share pnice at the ime that the ophons were exercised duning 2008 was 370 29 pence The weighted average remaining contractual life of
aptions outstanding at the end of the year was 2 5 years (2008 3 4 years)

The weighted average fair value of SAYE options granted during 2008 was £0 61 The values for the SAYE cpotions have been determined using a standard Black-
Scholes model

Other share eption plans

Loyds T5B Group Executve Share Plan 2003

The plan was adopted in December 2003 and under the plan share options may be granted to senior employees Options granted under this plan have been granted
specifically to facilitate recruitment and as such were granted not subject 10 any performance condiions The Plan has now been extended to not only compensate
new recruds for any lost share awards but also to make grants to key mdmiduals for retention purposes for within some instances the grant being made subject to
indwidual performance conditions

2009 2008

Weightsd Weighted

2009 averzge exercise 2008 average exercise

Number of options pnce (penca) Number of options price {pence)

Cutstanding at 1 January 857,611 Nu 308,718 Nil
Granted 24,704,070 Nil 681,931 Nil
Rebasement adjustment 1,876,005 Nil - Nil
Exercised (157,105) Nil (117,236) N
Forfeited (1,181,396) Nil {15,802) Nt
Quistanding at 31 December 26,099,185 Nil 857,611 Nil
Exercisable at 31 December 33,794 Nil - Niy

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £0 68 (2008 £2 92) The weighted average share pnce at the ume that the options were
exercised duning 2009 was £0 71 (2008 £2 91) The weighted average remaining contractual fe of options outstanding at the end of the year was 3 O years
{2008 2 5 years}

The award was adjusted on 2 July 2009 as a resu't of the Placing and Compensatory Open Offer The adjustment was made using a standard HMRC formula, to
negate the dilutionary impact of the capital raising event

Other share plans

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Long-Term Incentive Plan introduced in 2006 1s aimed at defivering shareholder value by inking the receipt of shares to an improvement in the performance of
the Lloyds Banking Group over a three year penod Awards are made within iimits set by the rules of the plan, with the limits determining the maximum number of
shares that can be awarded equating to three times annual salary In exceptional circumstances this may increase to four bmes annual salary

The performance conditions for awards made in May and August 2006 are as follows

(1 For 50 per cent of the award (the EPS Award") - the percentage increase sn earnings per share of Lloyds Banking Group ple {on a compound annualised
basis) over the relevant period must be at least an average of B percentage pants per annum greater than the percentage increase {if any) In the Retail Price
Index over the same penod ¥ it1s less than 3 per cent per annum the EPS Award will lapse If the increase 1s more than 3 per cent but less than 6 per cent per
annum then the proporuon of shares released will be on a straight ine basis between 17 5 per cent and 100 per cent The relevant penod commenced on
1 January 2006 and ended on 31 December 2008
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() For the other 50 per cent of the award {the ‘TSR Award'} — it will be necessary for Lloyds Banking Group s total shareholder return (calculated by reference to
both dividends and growth in share price} to exceed the median of a comparator group (14 companies) over the relevant penod by an average of 7 5 per cent
per annum for the TSR Award to vest in full 17 5 per cent of the TSR Award will vest where Lloyds Banking Group pic's total sharehalder return 1s equal to
median and vesting will occur on a straight ine basis in batween these points Where Lloyds Banking Group ple's total shareholder return is below the median
of the comparator group, the TSR Award will lapse The relevant period commenced on 1 January 2006 and ended on 31 December 2008

The performance conditions for awards made in March and August 2007 are as follows

0] For 50 per cent of the award (the EPS Award") - the performance condition 1s as descnbed for May 2006 with the relevant performance periad commencing
on 1 January 2007 and ending on 31 December 2009

() For the other 50 per cent of the award (the ‘TSR Award’) — the performance condition s as descrnibed for May 2006 with the relevant perfermance period
commencing on 8 March 2007 (the date of the first award) and ending on 7 March 2010

The performance conditions for awards made in March, April, August and September 2008 are as follows

Q)] For 50 per cent of the award (the ‘EPS Award'} - the performance condition 1s as described for May 2006 with the relevant performance period commencing
on 1 January 2008 and ending on 31 December 2010

() For the other 50 per cent of the award {the ‘TSR Award’} - the performance condition s as descnibed for May 2006, except that the comparator group
comprises of 13 companigs, with the relevant performance period commencing on 6 March 2008 (the date of the first award) and ending on 5 March 2011

The current LTIP rules allow for awards to be made of up to 400 per cent of base salary Under normal circumstances awards are made of 300 per cent of salary with
the additional 100 per cent available for circumstances that the remuneration committee deems to he exceptional tn 2009, awards were made of 375 per cent of
base salary to the chief executive and two of the executive directors for retention purposes, and in hght of data reviewed by the committee which showed total
remuneraticn to be behind median both for the FTSE 20, and the other major UK banks

The performance conditions for awards made in Apnl, May and September 2009 are as follows
£PS The release of 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent an the extent to which the growth in EPS achieves cumulative EPS targets over the three year period

Economic profit The release of the remaining 50 per cent of shares will be dependent on the extent to which Lloyds Banking Group achieves cumulative economic
profit targets over a three year pencd

In addibon, 1n 2009 an additional discrebionary award was made in Apnil, May and September 2009 The perfermance concitions for those awards are as follows

Synergy savings The release of 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent on the achievernent of target run-rate synergy savings in 2009 and 2010 as well as the
achievernent of sustainable synergy savings of at least £1 5 billion by the end of 2011 The award will be broken down into three equally weighted annual tranches
Performance will be assessed at the end of each year against annual performance targets based on a trajectory to meet the 2011 target The extent to which targets
have been achieved will determine the proporiion of shares to be banked gach year No shares will be released subject to the remuneration commitiee judging the
overall success of the delivery of the integration programme

integration balanced scorecard The release of the remairing 50 per cent of the shares will be dependent an the outcome of a balanced scorecard of non-financial
measures of the success of the integration in gach of 2009 2010 and 2011 The balanced scorecard element will be broken down into three equally weighted
tranches The tranches will be crystallised and banked for each year of the performance cycle subject to separate annual perfarmance targets across the four
measurement categones of Building the Business, Customer, Risk and People and Organisation Development

2009 2008

Number of Number of

shares shares

Qutstanding at 1 January 22,237,292 13,209,081
Granted 199,293,192 10,519,609
Rebasement adjustment 10,443,102 -
Forfeited (8,740,524) (1,4931,408)
QOutstanding at 31 December 223,233,052 22,237,282

The fair value of the share awards granted in 2009 was £0 68 (2008 £2 28)

Conditionat awards of shares made under this plan were adjusted on 2 July 2009 as a result of the Placing and Compensatory Open Offer The adjustment was made
using a standard HMRC formula, to negate the dilubonary impact of the capital raising event

Performance share plan

Under the performance share plan, intreduced dunng 2005, participating executives will be ehgible for an award of free shares, known as performance shares, to
match the bonus shares awarded as part of their 2004 and 2005 bonus The maximurn match will be two performance shares for each bonus share, awarded at the
end of a three year period The actual number of Lloyds Banking Group plc's shares awarded was dependent on Uloyds Banking Group's total shareholder return
performance measured over a three year penod, compared to other companies in the comparator group  The maximum of two performance shares for each banus
share was awarded only if Lioyds Banking Group plc’s total shareholder return performance placed it first in the comparator group, one performance share for each
bonus share was granted if Lloyds Banking Group 1s placed fifth, and one performance share for every two banus shares If Lloyds Banking Group was placed eighth
(median) Between first and fifth position and fifth and eighth position shiding scales witl apply If the total shareholder return performance was below medtan, no
performance shares were awarded There was na retest Whilst income tax and national insurance was deducted from the bonus before deferral into the plan, where a
rmatch of peformance shares was justified, these shares were awardad as If income tax and national insurance had not been deducted
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The performance condition attached to the March 2005 award was met, with Lloyds Banking Group ranked in fifth place Bonus shares were released on 18 March

2008, with one performance share granted for each bonus share Performance shares were released on 10 Apnl 2008

The performance condition attached to the March 2006 award was not met, with Lioyds Banking Group ranked 0 to ninth place Bonus shares werse released on
20 March 2009, at which time the performance shares lapsed

Qutstanding at ¥ January
Forfeited

Lapsed

Released

Outstanding at 31 December

2009 2008
Number of Number of
shares shares
941,324 1,767,594
- (74,691}
(941,324) (375,790)
- (375,789

- 941,324

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaining contractual life and number of options outstanding for the option

schemes were as follows

Executive schemes SAYE schemes Qther share option plans
Woeighted Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted average Weighted
exercise average BXercise average eXercise dverage
prnce remaimng hfe Number of price  remaining life Number of price  remaining life Number of
{pence) (years) options {pence) {years) options {pence) {years) options
31 December 2009
Exercise price range
£EQto £1 - - - - - - Nil 31 26,099,185
£1tof2 - - - 13900 25 107,939,699 - -
E2t0 £3 - - - 284 00 - 165,847 - - -
£3 w0 £4 - - - 34870 19 2,753,342 - - -
£4 o £5 464 19 49 7,526,441 427 04 18 1,296,884 - - -
£5 to £6 552 02 a2 515,527 - - - - - -
£6 to £7 653 55 12 743,010 - - - - - -
£7 10 £8 - - - - - - - - -
£8 1o £5 - - - - - - - - -
Executive schemes SAYE schemes Cther share option glans
Weighted Weighted Werghted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
exercise price  remaining life Number of  exercise price  remaining life Number of  exercise pnce  remaiming iife Number of
(pence) (years) optiens {pence) (years) options {pence) (years) ophicns
31 December 2008
Exercise pnce range
£Qto £1 - - - - - - Nl 25 867,611
Elto £2 - - - 139 00 356178932603 - - -
£21t0 £3 - - - 284 00 04 941,414 - - -
£3to £4 - - - 344 75 19 7,366,320 - - E
£4 to £5 453 77 59 9,132,197 423 49 20 3,200,532 - - -
£5 o £6 551 25 12 741,905 588 30 c3 37,580 - - -
£6 to £7 652 30 21 997,326 - - - - - -
£7 to £8 - - - - - - - - -
£8 to £9 863 63 o3 332,200 - - - - - -
The fair value calculations at 31 December 2009 for grants made in the year are based on the following assumptions
Other option Other share
SAYE schemes plans
Risk-free interest rate il 2 01% 223%
Expected Ife Nil 2 6 years 3 0 years
Expectad volatilty Nt 90% 84%
Expected dvidend yield Nt 17% 18%
Weighted average share price Nk £071 £071
Weighted average exercise price Nil Nil Nil
Expected forfeitures Nil 4% 4%

Expected volatility 1s a measure of the amount by which Lloyds Banking Group plc s shares are expected to fluctuate during the life of an option  The expected volatity
15 estimated based on the histoncal volatility of the closing daily share price over the most recent penod that 1s cormmensurate with the expected life of the option The
historical velatility 1s compared to the implhed volatility generated from market traded options 1in Lloyds Banking Group ple's shares to assess the reasonableness of the
histonical volatiity and adjustrments made where appropnate
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Share incentive plan

Free shares

An award of Lloyds Banking Group plc shares may be made annually to employees based on a percentage of each employee's salary in the preceding year up to a
maximum of £3,000 The percentage 1s normally announced concurrently with Lloyds Banking Group s annual results and the price of the shares awarded 15
announced at the tme of award The shares awarded are held in trust for a mandatory genod of three years on the employees’ behalf The award 1s subject to a
non-market based condition If an employee leaves Lloyds Banking Group within this three year penod for other than a ‘good’ reason, all of the shares awarded will be
forfeited (for certain awards made up to Apnl 2005, only a pertion of the shares will be forfeited 75 per cent within one year of the award, 50 per cent within two
years and 25 per cent within three years)

No free shares were awarded 1n 2009 (2008 8,862,823, with an average fair vatue of £4 38 based on the market price at the date of award)

Matching shares

Lloyds Banking Group undertakes to match shares purchased by employees up to the value of £30 per month, these shares are held in trust for a mandatory pertod of
three years on the employees’ behalf The award Is subject to a non-market based conditicn 1f an employee leaves within this three year penod for other than a 'good

reason, 100 per cent of the matching shares are forfeited, similarly if the employees sell their purchased shares within three years, their matching shares are forfeited

The number of shares awarded relating to matching shares in 2009 was 16,746,310 (2008 4,475,264), with an average fair value of £0 69 (2008 £2 56},
based on market prices at the date of award

48 Related party transactions

Key management personnel
Key management personne! are those persons having authenty and responsibility for planming, directing and controlling the activities of an entity, the Group’s key
management personnel are the members of Lloyds Banking Group ple group executive commities together with its non-executive directors

The table below detatls, cn an aggregated basis, key management personnel compensation 2009 2008
£m £m

Compensation

Salanes and other short term benefits 8 8

Post-employment benefits 1 1

Share based payments - 4

Total 9 13

The aggregate of the emoluments of the directors was £4,850,000 (2008 £5,623,000)

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing under defined contributton and defined benefit pension schemas were three and two respectively
{2008 three and three) Aggregate company contnibutions in respect of directors to defined contnbution pension schemes were £214,000 (2008 £205,000)

The total for the highest paid director {Mr Tate) was £903,000 (2008 (Mr Daniels} £1,151,000), this did not include any gain on exercise or Lloyds Banking Group
plc sharas in either year

2009 2008
million milion
Share options over Lloyds Banking Group plc shares
At 1 January 2 7
Granted {including options of appointed directors} - -
Exercised/lapsed (inctuding ophens of former directors) - (5)
At 31 December 2 2
2009 2008
mukion million
Share incentive plans over Lioyds Banking Group ple shares
At 1 January 7 6
Granted (including entitlements of apponted directors) 17 3
Exercised/lapsed (including entittenents of former directors) (5) (2
At 31 December 19 7
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The tables below detail, on an aggregated basis, balances outstanding at the year end and related income and expense, together with information relating to other
transactions between the Group and its key management personnel

2009 2008
£m £m
Loans
At 1 January 3 2
Advanced (including loans of appeinted directors) -
Repayments (including loans of former directors) (1) {1
At 31 Decemnber 2 3

The loans are on both a secured and unsecured basis and are expected to be settled in cash The loans attracted interest rates of between 1 28 per cent and
24 9 per cent in 2009 {2008 2 14 per cent and 34 C1 per cent)

No provisions have been recognised in respect of loans given to key mapagement perserinet (2008 £nil)

2009 2008
£m £m

Deposits
At 1 January 6 5
Placed {including depesits of appointed directors) 12 27
Withdrawn (including deposits of former directors) (14) {26}
At 31 December 4 3

Deposits placed by key management personnel attracted interest rates of up to 6 5 per cent (2008 & O per cent)
At 31 December 2009, the Group did not provide any guarantees in respect of key management personnel (2008 £mil)

At 31 December 2003, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by the Group and 1ts banking subsichanes with directors and connected persons
included amounts cutstanding in respect of loans and credit card transactions of £2 million with seven directors and four connected persons {2008 £3 million with
eight directars and six connected persons)

Balances and transactions with fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings

Balances and transactons between members of the Lioyds TSB Bank group

In accordance with I1AS 27, transactions and batances between the Bank and its subsidiary undertakings, and between those subsidiary undertakings, have all been
eliminated on consolidaten and thus are not reported as related party transactions of the Group

The Bank, as a result of 1ts position as parent of a banking group, has 2 large number of transacticns with vanous of its subsidiary undertakings, these are included an
the balance sheet of the Bank as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Assets, (ncluded within
Denvative financial instruments 301 616
Leans and recevables
Loans and advances to banks 29,046 11,322
Loans and advances to customers 49,088 50,785
Debt secunties 11,064 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 13,364 18,575
Other assets - 411

102,863 81,709

Liabilimes, included within

Deposits from banks 21,369 14,141
Customer deposis 29,870 31,500
Dernvative financial instruments 02 1,834
Debt secunties in I1ssue 27,837 24,457
Other labilities - 571
Subordinated habilities 677 707

80,055 73,210

Due to the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts, it 1s neither practical nor meamngfut to disclose infermation on gross inflows and outflows
During 2009 the Bank earned interest inceme an the above asset balances of £1,826 million (2008 £3,007 million) and incusred interest expense en the above
lhability balances of £1,364 milien (2008 £2,989 million)
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In addition, the Bank raised recharges of £505 million (2008 £515 million) on its subsidiaries in respect of costs incurred and also received fees of £411 million
(2008 £688 milhen) and paid fees of £322 million (2008 £365 mullion}, for various services provided between the Bank and its subsidianes

Details of contingent habihties and commitments entered nto on behalf of fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings are given in note 49

Balances and transactions with Loyds Banking Group pic
The Bank and its subsicharies have balances due to and from the Bank’s parent company, Lieyds Banking Group ple and fellow subsichanes of the Bank including the
HBOS Group These are included on the balance sheet as follows

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Assets, included within
Dervative financial instruments 923 - 923 -
Loans and recevables
Leans and advances tc banks 150,121 - 150,121 -
Loans and advances tc customers 14,188 - 14,088 -
Other 209 - 435 -
166,141 - 165,567 -
Liabihties, included within
Deposits from banks 86,512 - 86,512 -
Customer deposits 18,387 1,426 17,986 1,394
Denvative financial instruments 1,195 1,297 1,195 1,297
Subordinated habilities 5,896 2,956 5,572 2,956
Debt secunties in 1ssue 671 - 391 -
Other habilities - 15 - 15
112,661 5694 111,656 5,662

These balances nclude Lloyds Banking Group plc s banking arrangements and, due to the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts, It is
neither practical nor meaningful to disclose information on gross inflows and outflows Dunng 2009 the Group earned £746 millien and the Bank earned
£724 million interest income on the above asset balances (2008 Group £nil, Bank £ntl), the Group incurred £554 millien and the Bank incurred £547 milhon
interest expense on the above liabdity balances (2008 Group £176 million, Bank £176 million)

HM Treasury

On 13 January 2009 HM Treasury subscnbed for approximately 2,557 million shares in Lloyds Banking Group ple, the Bank's parent company, which gave it a
30 2 per cent interest in the Lloyds Banking Group plc's ordinary share capital Consequently, HM Treasury became a related party of the Bank from this date The
matenal transactions entered into with HM Treasury from 13 January 2009 are descrnbed below

Credit Guarantee Scheme

HM Treasury launched the Credit Guarantee Scheme in October 2008 as part of a range of measures anncunced by the UK Government intended to ease the
turbulence in the UK banking system It charges a commercial fee for the guarantee of new short and medium-term debt 1ssuance The fee payable to HM Treasury on
guaranteed 1ssues 1s based on a per annum rate of 50 basis points pius the median five-year credit default swap spread At 31 December 2008, the Group had
£40,345 millon of debt 1ssued under the Credit Guarantee Scheme During the period from 13 January 2009 to 31 December 2009, fees of £262 million payable
to HM Treasury in respect of guaranteed funding were included in the Group's income statement

Other than the Gevernment Asset Protection Scheme fee of £2,500 million, there were no other materiai transactions between the Group and HM Treasury dunng the
penod between 13 January 2009 and 31 Decemnber 2009 that were not made in the ordinary course of business or that are unusual in ther nature or concitions

Other related party disclosures
At 31 December 2009, the Group's pension funds had call deposits with Lioyds TSB Bank plc amounting to £53 mullion {2008 £23 million)

The Group manages 109 {2008 105} Cpen Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) and of these 47 (2008 47) are consclidated The Group invested £412 million
(2008 £455 mulon) and redeemed £362 millicn (2008 £343 miltion) in the unconsclidated DEICs dunng the year and had investments, at fair value, of
£3,365 mitlion (2008 £2,661 million} at 31 December The Group earned fees of £188 mullion from the unconsolidated OEICs (2008 £206 million) The Bank
held no investments in QEICs at any time during 2008 or 200

The Group has a number of associates held by s venture capital business that 1t accounts for at fair value through profit or loss At 31 December 2009, these
companies had total assets of approximately £3,024 milien (2008 £5,838 million), total habiities of approximately £3,194 million (2008 £5,780 million) and
for the year ended 31 December 2009 had turnover of approximately £1,804 millon {2008 £2,088 million) and made a net loss of approximately
£16 million (2008 net loss of £80 mullon) In addition, the Group has provided £868 milhion (2008 £825 milliom) of financing to these companies on which it
received £51 milion (2008 £46 million} of interest income 1n the year
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Payment Protection Insurance

In January 2009, the UK Competition Cermmussion {the Competiion Commussion’} completed 1its formal investigation into the supply of Payment Protection
Insurance (PP} services (except store card PPI} to non-business customers in the UK and published its final repont setting out its remedies  Pror to this the Group had
made the commercial decision to sell enly regular monthly premium PPl to ts personal loan customers The Competition Commission decided to adopt various
remedies including a prohibition on the active sale of PPI by a distnbuter to a custemer within 7 days of the distnbutor’s sale of credit ta that customer

On 30 March 2009, Barclays Bank plc lodged an appeal in the UK Competition Appeal Tnbunal (the ‘Competiion Appeal Tribunai} against the Competition
Commussion’s findings Lloyds Banking Group was granted permission by the Competition Appeal Trbunal to intervene 1n the appeal The Competiion Appeal
Tabunal handed down sts judgment on 16 October 2009 finding in favour of Barclays in respect of 11s challenge to the Compettion Commuission’s prohibition of
distnbutors selling PP at the credit paint of sale but it did not uphold Barclays' chalienge to the Competition Commission’s findings on market defimion  The matter
has now been referred back to the Competiion Comrrussion This may or may not result in the Competition Commission ulimately reaching a different conclusion

On 1 July 2008 the Financial Ombudsman Service referred concerns regarding the handling of PPl complaints to the FSA as an issue of wider implication The Group
has been working with other industry members and trade associations in prepanng an industry response to address regulatory concerns regarding the handling of PPI
comptaints On 29 September 2009, the FSA 1ssued a consuitation paper on PPl complaints handling The FSA has escalated its regulatary activity in relatton to past
PPl sales generally and has proposed new guidance on the fair assessment of a complaint and the calculation cf redress and a new sule requinng firms to reassess
histencally rejected complaints

The statement on 29 September 2009 also announced that several firms had agreed to carry out reviews of past sales of single premium loan protectton insurance
The Group has subsequently agreed in pnnctple that it will undertake a review in relation to sales of single premium loan protection insurance made through is
branch network since 1 July 2007 The precise details of the review are still being discussed with the FSA The ulimate impact on the Group of any review and/or
reassessment can only be known at the conclusion of these discussions and on publication of the FSA’s final rules

US economic sanctions

Starting in 2007 Lloyds TSB Bank plc provided infarmatian in relation to its review of historic US Dollar payments involving countries, persons or entities subject to
US economic sanctions adminsstered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control (‘OFAC') to a number of authonities reported to be conducting a review of sanctions
compliance by non-US financial institutions  On 9 January 2009 the seitlement reached by Lloyds TSB Bank plc with both the US Department of Justice and the
New York County Distnct Attomey’s Office in relation to thewr investigations was announced The settlement documentation contains details of the results of the
investigations including the entification of certain activities relating to Iran, Sudan and Libya which Lloyds TSB Bank plc conducted during the selevant penicd In
2008, Lloyds TSB Bank plc made a provision of £180 million which fully covered the settfernent amount paid to the Department of Justice and the New York County
District Attorney's Office On 22 December 2009 QFAG announced the settiement it had reached with Lloyds TSB Bank plc in relation to its investigation and
confirmed that the settlement sum due to OFAC had been fully satisfied by Lloyds TSB Bank plc's payment to the Department of Justice and the New York County
District Attorney's Office No further enforcement actions are expected in relation to the matters set out in the setlement agreements

A purported shareholder filed a derivative civil action in the Supreme Court of New York, MNassau County on 26 February 2009 against centain current and former
directors, and nominally against Lloyds TSB Bank plc and the Lloyds Banking Group, seeking vanous forms of relief folkowing the settlement The denvative action 1s
at a very early stage but the ultimate outcome of the action s not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group

Interchange fees

The European Commussion has adopted a formal decision finding that an infringement of European Commission competition laws has ansen from arrangements
whereby MasterCard 1ssuers charged a uniform fallback interchange fee in respect of cross-border transactions in relation to the use of a MasterCard or Maestro
branded payment card The European Commussion has required that the fee be reduced to zero for relevant cross-border transactions within the Eurcpean Economic
Area Thss decision has been appealed to the General Court of the European Union (the ‘General Court’} Bank of Scotland pic and Llayds TSB Bank plc (along with
certain other MasterCard 1ssuers) have successfully applied te intervene in the appeal in support of MasterCard’s pesition that the arrangements for the charging of a
uniform fallback interchange fee are compatible with European Commussion competition laws Meanwhile, the European Commisston and the UK's OFT are pursuing
investigations with a view to deciding whether arrangements adopted by other payment card schemes for the levying of uniferm faliback interchange fees in respect of
domestic andfor cross-border payment transactions also infnnge European Commission andfor UK competiion laws As part of this initiative the OFT wall also
intervene in the General Court appeal supporting the European Commission's posibon The ulimate impact of the investigatans on the Lioyds Banking Group can
only be known at the conclusion of these investigations and any relevant appeal proceedings

Unarranged overdraft charges

The Supreme Court published its judgment in sespect of the fairness of unarranged overdraft charges on personal current accounts on 25 November 2009, finding In
favour of the tigant banks On 22 December 2009, the OFT announced that it will not conbinue Its investigation into the fairness of these charges The Group I1s
working with the regulators to ensure that outstanding customer complaints are concluded as quickly as posstble and anticipate that most cases in the county courts
will be discontinued The Group expects that some customers will argue that despite the test case rufing they are entitled to a refund of unarranged overdraft charges
on the basis of cther legal arguments or chatlenges The Group would robustly defend any such complaints or claims and does not expect the outcome of any such
complaints or claims te have a material adverse effect on its financial position

Other legal proceedings

In additton, dunng the ordinary course of business the Lioyds Banking Group 1s subject to threatened or actual legat proceedings Ail such materal cases are
penodically reassessed, with the assistance of external professienal advisers where appropnate, to determine the likelihood of the Lloyds Banking Group incurning a
haklity In those instances where 1t 1s concluded that it s more likely than not that a payment will be made, a provision 1s established to management's best estimate
of the amount required 1o settle the obligation at the relevant balance sheet date In some cases it will not be possible to form a view, either because the facts are
unclear or because further time s needed to properly assess the ments of the case No provisions are held against such cases, however the Lioyds Banking Group
does not currently expect the final outcome of these cases to have a matenal adverse effect on its financial position
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Contingent habilittes and commitments ansing from the banking business
Acceptances and endorsements arise where the Group or the Bank agrees to guarantee payment on a negotiable instrument drawn up by a customer

Other items serving as direct credit substitutes include standby letters of credit, or other urevocable obligatens, where the Group or the Bank has an irrevocable
obligation to pay a third party beneficiary ¥ the customer fails to repay an outstanding commitment, they also include acceptances drawn under letters of credit ar
simiar facilities where the acceptor does not have specific title te an dentifiable underly:ing shipment cf goods

Performance bonds and other transaction-related contingencies (which include bid or tender bonds, advance payment guarantees, VAT Customs & Excise bonds and
standby letters of credit relating to a particular centract or non-financial transaction) are undertakings where the requirement to make payment under the guarantee
depends on the outcome of a future event

The Group's and the Bank's maxmum exposuie to loss 1S represented by the contractual nominal amount detatled in the table below Consideration has not been
taken of any possible recovenes from customers for payments made in respect of such guarantees under recourse provisians or from callateral held

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Contingent habilities
Acceptances and endorsements 53 49 54 49
Other
Other items serving as direct credit substitutes 1,395 1,870 1,276 1,758
Performance bonds and other transaction-related contingencies 3,292 2,850 2,772 2,886
4,687 4,720 4,048 4,644
4,740 4769 4,102 4,693
The Bank
2009 2008
£m £m
tncurred on behalf of fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 30 a9

The contingent habilities of the Group and the Bank, as detailed above, anse in the normal course of banking business and 1t 1s not practicable to quantfy their future
financial effect

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Commitments
Documentary credits and other short-term trade-related transactions 219 319 219 323
Forward asset purchases and forward depestts placed 758 613 3,373 713

Undrawn formai standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend
Less than 1 year original matunty

Morigage offers made l 1.302] | 3,056 l | 1,135 | | 2,800

Qther commitments 36,206 46,006 33,681 56,192
37,508 49,062 34,816 58,992
1 year or over onginal matunity 36,020 31,761 43,545 30,710

74,505 81,755 81,953 90,738

The Bank
2009 2008
£m £m
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 12,467 13,424

0f the amounts shown above in respect of undsawn formal standby faciliies, credit hines and other commitments to lend £44 327 milon {2008 £46,890 million}
for the Group and £39,469 million (2008 £42,588 million} for the Bank were Irrevocable
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Operating lease commuitments
Where a Group company is the lessee, the future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable premises operating leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2007
£m Em £m £m
Not later than 1 year 204 216 188 198
Later than 1 year and not later than S years 554 647 ¢ 506 589
Later than 5 years 622 774 552 694
1,380 1,637 1,246 1,481

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain of its properties Some of these operating lease arrangements have renewal options and
rent escalation clauses, altheugh the effect of these 15 not material No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

Capital commutments

Excluding commitments of the Group n respect of investment property (note 22), capital expenditure contracted but not provided for at 31 December 2009
amounted to £96 million for the Group and £5 mullion for the Bank (2008 £92 million for the Group and £6 million for the Bank) Of this amount, £91 mithon
(2008 £85 mllion) relates 1o assets to be leased to customers under operating leases The Group's management is confident that future net revenues and funding
will be sufficient to cover these commitments

50 Financial instruments

(1) Measurement basis of financial assets and hatulities

The accounting policies in accounting policy 2(e) descrbe how different classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, including fair
value gains and losses, are recogrised Fhe following tables analyse the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabiities by category and by balance sheet
heading

At fair value through

The Group profit ar loss
Dervatives
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for upon imtal Available- Loans and amortised Insurance
nstruments trading recognitian for sale recewvables cost contracts Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2009
Financiat assets

Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 36,089 - 36,089
ttens in the course of collection from banks - - - - - 1,045 - 1,045
Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 542 48,352 - - - - 48,894
Denvative financial instruments 995 17.802 - - - - - 18,797
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 175,554 - - 175,554
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 245,226 - - 245,226
Debt securhies - - - - 2,636 ~ - 2,636
- - - - 423,416 423,416
Available-for-sale financral assets - - - 26,089 - - - 26,089
Total financial assets 995 18,344 48,352 26,08 423,416 37,134 - 554,330
Financtal habilities
Deposits from banks - - - - - 139,557 - 139,557
Customer deposits - - - - - 193,045 - 193,045
ltems in course of transmission to banks - - - - - 542 - 542
Trading and other financial liabibties at fair value
through profit or loss - 202 6,160 - - - - 6,362
Denvative financial instruments 702 16,031 - - - - - 16,733
Debt securities in tssue - - - - - 120,719 - 120,719
Liabtlities ansing from insurance ¢ontracts and
participating investment contracts - - - - - - 36,960 36,960
Liabilities ansing from non-participating investment
contracts - - - - - - 15,734 15,734
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses - - - - - - 310 310
Subordinated labilities - - - - - 15,999 - 15,999
Total financial habilities 702 16,223 6,160 - - 469,862 53,004 545961
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The Group

As at 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks
Items In the course of collectren from banks
Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Dervative financial instruments
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances 1o banks
Loans and advances te customers
Debt secunties

Available-for-sale financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial fiabtlhities

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

Items in course of transmission o banks
Trading and cther financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments

Debt securities in i1ssue

Liabilities anising from insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts

Liabdites ansing from non-paricipating investment
contracts

Unallocated suiplus within insurance businesses
Subordinated labihties

Total financial habilities

At fair value through

profit or loss
Derivatves
designated Desigrated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon inital Available- Loans and amortised Insurance
nstruments trading recognition for sale receivables cost contracts Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
- - - - - 5,008 - 5,008
- - - - - 945 - 946
- 857 44,258 - - - - 45,115
435 28,449 - - - - - 28,884
- - - - 38,733 - - 38,733
- - - - 240,344 - - 240,344
= - - - 4,416 - - 4,416
- - - - 283,493 - - 283,493
- - - 55,707 - - - 55,707
435 29,306 44 258 55,707 283,493 5,954 - 419,153
- - - - - 66,514 - 66,514
- - - - - 172,364 - 172,364
- - - - - 508 - 508
- 6 6,748 - - - - 6,754
4,169 24,020 - - - - - 28,189
- - - - - 73,066 - 73,066
- - - - - - 33,827 33,827
- - - - - - 14,243 14,243
- - - - - - 270 270
- - - - - 17,389 - 17,389
4,169 24,026 6,748 - - 329 841 48,340 413,124
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The Bank

As at 31 December 2009
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks
Items 1n the course of collection frem banks
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Denvative financial instruments
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Debt secunties

Available-for-sale financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

ltems n course of transmission to banks
Trading and other financial habilines at farr value
through profit or loss

Dernvative financeal instruments

Debt secunties in 1ssue

Subordinated habilizes

Total financial kabilities

The Bank

As at 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks
Items 1n the course of celiection from banks
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Denvative financial instruments
Leans and receivables
Leans and advances to banks
Leans and advances to customars
Debt secunties

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial habilities

Deposits from banks

Custorner deposits

Iterns (n course of transmission to banks
Trading and other financial habilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Denvative financial instruments

Debt secunties in i1ssue

Subordinated rabilities

Tetal financial labmties

At fair value through

profit or loss
Derivatives

designated Designated Held at

2s hedging Held for upon inital Available- Loans and amortrsed
nstruments traging recogmtion for-sale recevables oost Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m Em
- - - - - 35,964 35,964
- - - - - 1,004 1,004
- 510 2,123 - - - 2,633
952 16,985 - - - - 17,937
- - - - 176,556 - 176,556
- - - - 253,111 - 253,111
- - - - 2,830 - 2,830
- - - - 432,497 - 432,497
- - - 13,514 - - 13,514
952 17,495 2,123 13,514 432,497 36,968 503,549
- - - - - 160,428 160,428
- - - - - 201,053 201,053
- - - - - 492 492
- 202 6,160 - - - 6,362
772 16,057 - - - - 156,829
- - - - - 109,870 109,870
- - - - - 15,456 15,456
772 16,259 6,160 - - 487,299 510,490

At far value through
profit or loss
Denvatives

designated Designated Held at

as hedging Held for ~ upon nitial Avallable- Loans and amorhsed
instruments trading recognition for-sale recevables cost Tatal
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m
- - - - - 4,890 4,890
- - - - - a09 908
- 857 2,822 - - - 3,679
435 26,269 - - - - 26,704
- - - - 36,968 - 36,968
- - - - 249,383 - 249,363
- - -~ - 3,863 - 3,863
- - - - 290,194 ~ 290,194
- - - 58,444 - - 58,444
435 27,126 2,822 58,444 290,194 5,799 384,820
- - - - - B0,529 80,529
- - - - - 184,041 184,041
- - - - - 467 467
- 6 6,748 - - - 6,754
1,963 27,767 - - - - 28,730
- - - - - 74,559 74,559
- - - - - 16,853 16,853
1,963 27,773 6,748 - - 356,449 392,933
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(2) Reclassification of financial assets
In accordance with the amendment to IAS39 that became applicable during 2008, the Group reviewed the categonsation of its financiat assets classified as held for
trading and available-for-sale

On the basis that there was no fonger an active market for some of those assets, which are therefore more appropriately managed as loans, with effect from
1 July 2008, the Group transferred £2,993 rmillicn of assets previously classified as held for trading into loans and receivables With effect from 1 November 2008,
the Group transferred £437 mullion of assets previously classified as available-for-sale into loans and recevables At the time of these transfers, the Group had the
intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or unbl matunity As at the date of reclassification, the weighted average effective interest rate of the assets
transferred was 6 3 per cent with the estimated recoverable cash flows of £3,524 milien

Carrying amount and fair values of reclassified assets
The table below sets out the carrying value and fair value of reclassified financial assets

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
From held for trading to loans and recevables 1,833 1,822 2,883 2,926
From avatlable-for-sate 1o loans and recevables 394 422 454 402

2,227 2,244 3,337 3,328

Curing the year ended 31 December 2009, the carrying value of reclassified assets decreased by £1,110 million due to sales and matunties of £990 mllion,
accretion of discount of £61 million and foreign exchange and other movements of £181 mullion

Additional faw value gains (losses) that would have been recognised had the reclassifications not occurred
The table belew shows the additional gains (losses) that weuld have been recognised in the Group's Income statement if the reclassifications had not occurred

2009 2608
Reclassified Reclassified Reclassihed
n 2009 w 2008 Total in 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
From held for trading to loans and receivables - 208 208 (347) (347)

The tabte below shows the additional gains (losses) that would have been recogrised in other comprehensive income If the reclassifications had not occurred

2009 2008
Reclassified  Reclassified Reclassified
in 2006 m 2008 Total in 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m Em
From available-for-sale to loans and recewvables - 161 161 (108) (108)

Actual amounts recogrised in respect of reclassified assets
After reclassification the reclassified financial assets contributed the following amounts to the Group income statement

2009 2008
Rectassified Reclassified Reclassified
In 2009 n 2008 Total n 2008 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
From held for trading to loans and recevables
Net interest incorne - 55 55 31 31
Impawment losses - 48} 49) (158) (158)
Total - 6 [ (127} (127)
2009 2008
Reclassified  Reclassified Reclassified
n 20059 i 2008 Total n 2G08 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
From available-for-sale to loans and recevables
Net interest income - 34 34 3 3
Imparment losses - (56) (56) (23) (23)
Total - (22) (22) (20} {(20)
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(3) Fair values of financia! assets and llabihties
The following table summarises the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities presented on the Group s balance sheet The fair values presented in the table are
at a specfic date and may be significantly different from the amount which will actually be paid on the matunty or settlement date

The Group The Bank
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through
prafit or loss 48,894 45,115 48,894 45,115 2,633 3,679 2,633 3,679
Dervative financial instruments 18,797 28 884 18,797 28,884 17,937 26,704 17,937 26,704
Loans and recervables
Loans and advances to banks 175,554 38,733 || 175,535 37,854 || 176,556 36,968 (]| 176,537 36,188
Loans and advances to custorners 245,226 | | 240,344 || 241,553 [| 235,569 || 253,111 249,363 |1 239,096 | | 244,353
Debt secunties 2,636 4,416 2,699 3981 2,830 3.863 2,894 3,504
423,416 283,493 419,787 277,504 432,497 290,194 418,527 284,045
Available-for-sale financial assets 26,089 55,707 26,089 55,707 13,514 58,444 13,514 58,444
Financial habiities
Depasits from banks 139,557 66,514 139,478 66,504 160,428 80,529 160,349 80,520
Customer deposits 193,045 172,364 192,892 172,545 201,053 184,041 200,887 184,236
Trading and other financial habiiies at fair value
through profit or loss 6,362 6,754 6,362 6,754 6,362 6,754 6,362 6,754
Deqvative financial instrurnents 16,733 28,189 16,733 28,189 16,829 29,730 16,829 29,730
Debt securtties 10 ssue 120,719 73,066 120,458 73,646 109,870 74,559 109,790 74,254
Liaklities anising from non-participating investment
contracts 15,734 14,243 15,734 14,243 - - - -
Financial guarantees 38 35 38 35 38 35 38 35
Subardinated ltabilities 15,999 17,389 14,963 11,788 15,455 16,853 14,419 11,649

Valuation methodology
Finanetal instruments include financial assets, financial habilities and denvatives The fair value of a financial instrument 1s the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or hquidation sale

Wherever possible, fair values have been calculated using unadjusted quoted market prices in actwe markets for identical instruments held by the Group Where
quated market prices are not available, or are unreliable because of poor iquidity fair vatues have been determined using valuation technigues which, to the extent
possible, use market abservable mputs, but in some cases use non-market observable inputs Yaluation techniques used include discounted cash flow analysis and
pricing medels and, where appropriate, comparson to instruments with charactenstics similar to those of the instruments heid by the Group

Because a vanety of estmation techniques are employed and significant estirmates made, compansons of fair values between financial institutions may not be
meaningful Readers of these financial staterments are thus advised to use caution when using this data to evaluate the Group's financial position

Fair value information 1 not provided for items that do not meet the definition of a financial instrument  These items inctude Intangible assets, such as the value of the
Group's branch network, the long-term relationships with depositors and credst card relationships, premises and equipment, and shareholders’ equity These items
are matenal and accerdingly the Group believes that the fair value information presented does not represent the underlying value of the Group

Valuation of financial instruments carned at fair value
The table below provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group that are carned at fair value in the Group s consolidated balance sheet, grouped
nto levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Valuation Higrarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2009 £Em £m £m £m
Trading and other financial assets at farr value through profit or loss 34,956 12,347 1,691 48,894
Available-for-sale financial assets 11,984 13,361 744 26,089
Denvative financial instruments 1,858 16,873 66 18,797
Financial assets 48,798 42,581 2,401 93,780
Trading and other financial habilites at fair value through profit or loss - 6,364 - 6,364
Denvative financial instruments 10 16,723 - 16,733
Financial guarantees - - 38 38
Financial habihties 10 23,087 38 23,135

There were no significant transfers between level 2 and level 3 dunng the year
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m
Trading and other financial assets at fair value threugh profit or loss 38,069 5,374 1.672 45,115
Available-for-sale financial assets 30,185 22,361 3161 55,707
Dervative financiai instruments 2,147 26,601 136 28,884
Financial assets 70,401 54,336 4. 969 129,706
Trading and other financizl habilities at fair value through profit or loss <] 6,748 - 6,754
Darvative financial instruments 153 27,458 578 28,189
Financial guarantees - - 35 35
Financial habilities 159 34,206 613 34,978

The valuatiens of financial instruments have been classified into three levels according to the quality and relability of information used to determine the fair values

Level 1 portfohos
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derved from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or habiltes Products classified as level 1
predorminantly comprise treasury bills and other government secunties

Level 2 portfolios
Where quoted market prices are not available, for exampie where the instrumant 1s traded 1n a market that 1s not considered to be active or vatuation techniques are
used to determine fair value and where these technigues use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data the instrument 1s considered to be level 2

Examples of such financial instruments include most aver-the-counter denvatives, financial institution 1ssued securtties, certificates of depesit and certain
asset-backed secunties

Level 3 portfolios

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation 1s not based on observable market data Such
instruments would include the Group’s venture capital and unlisted equity investments which are valued using vanous valuation techniques that require significant
management judgement In determining appropnate assumptions, including earnings multiples and estimated future cash flows Certain of the Group's asset-backed
secunties, principally where there 18 no trading achtivity In such secunties, are also classified as level 3

At 31 December 2009

Effect of
reasenably
possible
alternative
Valuation basis/technique Main assumptions Carrying Value assumptions
£m £m
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Asset-backed secunties Lead manager or broker quote Use of single pncing source 79 -
fconsensus pricing from
market data provider
Venture capital investments Vanous valuahon techmgues Earnings multiples 1,162 -
using {PEV Guidelines
Unlisted equities and property partnerships in the Iife Third party valuations n/a 350 -
funds

1,591
Available-for-sale financial assets

Asset-backed secunties Lead manager or broker quote Use or single pricing source 744 10
feonsensus prcing from
market data provicer
Dervative financial instruments

Industry standard model / Prepayment rates, probability &6 -
consensus pricing from market of default, loss given default
data provider and yreld curves
Financial assets 2,401
Financial guarantees 38 -
Financial habilities a8
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Reasonably possible alternative valtiations have been calculated for asset-backed securities by using alternative pricing sources and calculating an absolute
difference In respect of denvative financial instruments, reasonably possible alternative valuations have been calculated by flexing the spread between the underlying
asset and the credit dervative, or adjusting market yields, by a reasonable amount

The valuatian techniques used for unlisted equities and venture capital investments vary depending on the nature of the investment Further details of these are given
below As these factors differ for each investment depending on the nature of the valuation techrigue used and the inputs, there 1s no single commen factor that could
be adjusted to provide a reasonable alternative valuation for these investment portfolios Third party valuers have been used to determine the value of unhisted equities
and property partnerships inciuded i the Group's hife insurance funds There 5 no single commaon factor that could be adjusted to provide a reascnable alternatwe
valuation for all of these investments

The main products where level 3 valuations have been used are described below

Asset-backed secunties

Where there 1s no trading activity in asset backed secunties, valuation models, consensus pncing information from thied party pricing services and broker or lead
manager quotes are used io determine an appropnate valuation Asset-backed secunties are then classified as either level 2 or level 3 depending on whether there 1s
more than one consistent independent scurce of data If there 1s a single, uncorrcborated market source for a significant valuation input or where there are matenally
inconsistent levels then the valuation 1s reported as level 3 Asset classes classified as level 3 mainly comprise certain Residential Mortgage Backed Secunties,
Collateralised Loan Obligations and Coilateralised Debt Obligations

Venture capital investments
The nvestments in venture capital activities compnise interests in funds and unlsted equity investments that are valued using techniques that are considered
appropnate for that investment Interests in funds are valued in the same manner as investments in the hfe funds below

Valuations of unhisted venture capital eguities that are accounted for as trading and ciher financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are calculated using
International Private Equity and Venture Capital Guidelines The majonty of investments are valued using the industry standard earmings model  This involves
applying the relevant earnings multiple to the maintainable earnings of the business being valued A number of earmings mulliples are used In valuing the portfolio
including price earnings, earmings before interest and tax and earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation The particular multiple selected being
appropnate for the type of business being valued and Is derived by reference to the current market based muitiple Consideration 1s given to the risk attributes, growth
prospects and financial geaning of comparable businesses when selecting an appropniate muitiple Recent transactions 1involving the sale of similar businesses may
sometimes be used as a frame of reference in denving an appropriate multiple Another valuation techmigue involved, although rarely, 15 the discounting of projected
cash flows at the appropriate cost of capital

Unquoted equities and property partnerships in the hfe funds
Third party valuations are used to obtain the fair value of unquoted investments Management take account of any pertinent information, such as recent transactions
and information receved an particular investments, to adjust the third party valuations where necessary

Denvatives
Where the Group's denvative assets and hatulives are net traded ¢n an exchange, they are valued using valuation techniques, inctuding discounted cash flow and
ophbiens prcing models, as appropriate The types of denvatives classified as level 2 and the valuation techniques used include

. Interest rate swaps are vatued using discounted cash flow models, the most sigrificant inputs into those models are interest rate yield curves which are
developed from publicly quoted rates

. Foreign exchange denvatives that do not contatn options are priced using rates available from publicly quoted sources

. Credit derivatives, except for the items classified as level 3, are valued ustng publicly available yield and crecht default swap curves, the Group uses standard

models with observable inputs

. Less complex interest rate and foreign exchange option products are valued using valatity surfaces developed from publicly avallable interest rate cap,
interest rate swaption and other option volatilities, option volatility skew information 1s denved from a market standard consensus pricing service  For more
complex eption preducts, the Group cahbrates 1ts models using observabile at-the-money data, where necessary, the Group adjusts for out-of-the money
positions using a market standard consensus pricing Service

Credit valuation adjustment

A credit valuation adjustment (CVA) is apphed to the Group s over-the-counter denvative instruments 10 adjust the counterparty credit nsk free denvative valuations
provided by standard interbank lending interest rate curves The Group uses a simulation model to develop expected future exposures and calculate a br-lateral CvA
Credit and debit valuaton adjustments are calculated by counterparty and the net adjustment booked At 31 December 2009 the total reserve booked was
£78 million (31 December 2008 £196 million) This adjustment has been made to the valuaton of over-the-counter denvative tnstruments classified as level 2
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Movements in Level 3 Portfoho
The table below analyses movements in the Level 3 financial assets portfolio

Trading and

other

financial

assets at far
value Total
through Available Cenvative financial
profit or loss for sale assets assets
£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2008 1,672 3,161 136 4,969
Exchange and cther adjustments [C)] (63) - (67)
Gains (losses) recognised In the income statement (50) 6 (69) (113)
Gains (losses) recogmsed \n other comprehensive INcome - 50 - 50
Purchases 340 19 - 359
Sales (400) (412) (1) (813)
Transfers int¢ the Level 3 portfolio 33 a6 - 69
Transfers cut of the Level 3 portfolio - (2,053) - (2,053)
At 31 December 2009 1,591 744 66 2,401

The table below analyses movements In the Level 3 financial habilibies pertfelio

Total
Derivative financial financial
liabilities guarantees liabilhties
£m £m £Em
At 31 December 2008 578 35 613
Gains recagnised In the income statement (104) - (104)
Additions - 3 3
Redemptions (474) - (a74)
At 31 December 2009 - 3s 38

Transfers out of the Level 3 portfolio arise when inputs that could have a significant impact on the instrument's valuation bacorme market observable after previously
having been non-market observable In the case of asset-backed secunties this can anse if more than one consistent independent source of data becomes avarlable
Conversely transfers into the portfolio arse when consistent sources of data cease to be available

'ncluded with the gains {losses) recognised in the income statement are losses of £106 million related to financial instruments that are held at 31 December 2009
These amounts are included n other operating income

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

Leans and recevables

The Group provides loans and advances to commercial, corporate and personal customers at hoth fixed and vanable rates The carrying value of the vanable rate
loans and those relating to lease financing 15 assumed to be their fair vatue For fixed rate lending, several different techniques are used to estimate fair value, as
considered appropnate  For commerciai and personal customers, fair value 1s pnncipally estimated by discounting anticipated cash flows {including interest at
contractual rates) at market rates for similar loans offered by the Group and other financial institutions The fair value for corporate loans 1s estimated by discounting
anticipated cash flows at a rate which reflects the effects of interest rate changes, adjusted for changes in credit nsk Certain loans secured on residential praperties
are made at a fixed rate for a hmited period, typically two to five years, after which the loans revert to the relevant vanable rate The fair value of such loans s
estimated by reference to the market rates for similar loans of matunty equal to the rernaining fixed interest rate penod The fair values of asset-backed secunties and
secondary loans, which were previously witthn assets held for trading and were reclassified to loans and recevables {see page 76), are determined predominantly
from lead manager quotes and, where these are not availakle, by alternative techmigues including reference to credit spreads on similar assets with the same obligor,
market standard consensus pricing services, broker guotes and other research data

Deposits from banks and custormer deposits

The fair value of deposits repayable on demand 1s considered to be equal to thewr carrying vatue The fair value for all other deposits 1s estmated using discounted
cash flows applying either market rates, where applicable, or current rates for deposits of similar remaining matunities

Debt securities in issue and subordinated fiabilities
The fair value of short-term debt secunties in 1ssue 15 approxmately egual to their carrying value Fair value for other debt secunties and for subordinated habihities is
estimated using queted market prices
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Financial instruments are fundamental to the Groups activities and, as a consequence, the nsks associated with financial tnstruments represent a significant
component of the nsks faced by the Group

The primary nisks affecting the Greup through its use of financial instruments are credit nsk, market nsk, which includes interest rate risk and currency nsk, iquichty
risk and insurance nsk Qualitative and quantitative information about the Group's management of these nisks 1s given below

QUALITATIVE INFORMATION

{1) Credit nsk

Definition

The nsk of reductions in earnings andfor value, through financial or reputational loss, as a result of the failure of the party with whom the Group has contracted to
meet its cbligations (beth on and off balance sheet)

Risk appetite

Credit nsk appetite 1s set by the Lloyds Banking Group board and 1s descnibed and reported through a suite of metncs denved from a combination of accounting and
credit partfolio performance measures which n turn use the various credit nsk rating systems as inputs These metnics are supported by a comprehensive suite of
policies, sector caps, product and ceuntry hmits te manage concentration nsk and exposures within the Group's approved nisk appetite

Exposures
The principai sources of credit nsk within the Group arise from loans and advances to retail customers, financial institutions and corporate clients The credit risk
exposures of the Group are set out within this note below

In terms of loans and advances, credit nsk arises bath from amounts lent and commitments to extend credit to a customer as required  These comrmitments can take
the form of loans and overdrafts, or credit instruments such as guarantees and standby, documentary and commercial letters of credit With respect to commitments
to extend credit, the Group 1s potentially exposed to less in an amount equal to the total unused commitments However, the likely ameunt of loss 1s less than the total
unused commstments, as most retail commitments to extend credit can be cancelled and the credit werthiness of customers 1s monitored frequently In addition, most
wholesale commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards, which are regularly monitored

Credit nsk can alsc anse from debt secunities, private equity investments, derivatives and foretgn exchange activiies Note 14 to the financial statements shows the
totai notional principal amount of interest rate, exchange rate, credit denvative and equity and other contracts outstanding at 31 December 2009 The national
principal ameunt does not, however, represent the Group's credit nsk exposure, which is limited te the current cost of replacing contracts with a positive value to the
Group Such amounts are reflected in the credit nsk table on page 87

Credit nsk exposures 1n the insurance businesses anse primartly from holding investments and from expasure to reinsurers A significant proportion of the investments
are held in unit-linked and with-profit funds where the shareholder nisk 15 hrmited, subject to any guarantees given

Measurement

In measunng the credit nsk of loans and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level, the Group reflects three components (1) the ‘probability of
default’ by the client or counterparty on its contractual ebligahions, (i) current exposures to the counterparty and their likely future development, from which the Group
denves the 'exposure at default’, and (i) the likely loss ratio on the defaulted obligations (the loss given default’)

The Group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using (nternal rating models tailored to the various categones of counterparty In its prirciple
retail portfclios, and a growing number of wholesale lending portfolios, exposure at default and toss given default models are also in use They have been developed
internally and use statistical analysis, combined, where appropnate, with external data and subject matter expert Judgement Each rating model 1s subject to a
ngorous validation process, undertaken by independent nsk teams, which includes benchmarking to externaily available data, where possible All matenal rating
medels are authonsed by executive management

Each probabihty of default model segments counterparties into a number of rating grades, each representing a defined range of default probabilities Exposures
migrate between classifications If the assessment of the obligor probability of default changes Each rating system s required to map to a master scale, which supports
the consolidation of credit sk infermation across portfolios through the adoption of a common rating scale Given the differing risk profiles and credit rating
considerations, the underlying nsk reporting has been split into two distinct master scales, a retall master scale and a wholesale master scale

The rating systems described above assess prebability of default, exposure at default and loss given default, in order to derive an expected loss In contrast,
impairment allowances are recognised for financial reporting purpoeses anly for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence
of impairment (see naote 20) Due to the different methedologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements diffess from the
amount determined from the expected loss models that are used for internal operational management and banking regulation purposes

Mitigation
The Group uses a range of approaches to mitigate credit nsk

Internal conitrol

« Credit principles and policy Lloyds Banking Group Risk sets out the Group's credit principles and policy according to which credit nsk s managed, which in turn 1s
the basis for business umit credit pelicy Principles and policy are reviewed regutarly and any changes are subject to a review and approval process Business unit
pohey includes lending guidelines, which define the responsitilities of lending officers and provide a disciplined and focused benchmark for credit decisions

- Counterparty mits  Limits are set against all types of exposure in a counterparty name, 1n accordance with an agreed methodology for each exposure type This
includes credit nsk exposure on individual dervative transactions, which incorporates potential future exposures from market movements Aggregate facility ievels
by counterparty are set and limit breaches are subject to escalation precedures
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+ Individual credit assessment and sanction Credit nsk in wholesale portfolios s subject to ndividual credit assessments, which consider the strengths and
weaknesses of individual transactions and the balance of nsk and reward Exposure te sndividual counterparties, groups of counterparties of customer nsk segments
1s controlled through a tiered hierarchy of delegated sanctioning authoniies Approval requirements for each decision are based on the transaction amount, the
customer's aggregate facilities, credit nsk ratings and the nature and term of the nsk The Group's credit nsk appehite critena for counterparty underwriting are the
same as that for assets intended to be held over the period to maturity

Credit scoring In 1ts principal retail portfolios, the Group uses statistically-based decisioning techmiques (primanly credit sconng) Business unit nsk departments
review scorecard effectiveness and approve changes, with matenal changes being subject to Lioyds Banking Group Risk approval

Controls over rating systems The Group has estabiished an independent process built on a set of common mimimum standards designed to challenge the
discriminatory power of the systems, accuracy of calibration and ability to rate consistently over ime and across obligers The internal rating systems are developed
and implemented by independent risk functions in the business units with the business unit managing directors having ownership of the systems They also take
responsibility for ensuring the vahdation of the respective internal rating systems, supported and chailenged by specialist functions in their respective business unit

Cross-border and cross-currency exposures Country mits are authorised by the Lloyds Banking Group Country Limits Panel taking inta account economic and
poiiticai factors

Concentration nsk Credit isk management includes portfolio cantrols on certain industries, sectors and product hnes to reflect nsk appetite Credit policy 1s aligned
to the Group’s risk appetite and restricts exposure to certiain high nsk and more vulnerable sectors and segments Note 16 provides an analysis of loans and
advances to customers by industry (for wholesale customers) and product (for retail customers) Exposures are monitored to prevent excessive concentration of nsk
These concentration risk controls are not necessanly in the form of a maximum it on tending but may instead require new business In concentrated sectors to
fulfil addincnal hurdle requirements The Group's large exposures are reported 1n accordance with regutatory reporting requirements

Stress testing and scenano analysis The credit pertfolio 1s also subjected to stress-testing and scenario analysis, to simulate outcomes and calculate their associated
impact Events are modelled at a Group-wide levet at business unit levei and by rating model and portfolio, for example, for a specific industry sector

Specialist expertise Credit quality 1s maintained by specialist units providing, for example intensive management and control, secunty perfection, maintenance and
retention, expertise in documentatien for lending and associated products, sector-specific expertise, and legal services applicable to the particular market place and
product range offered by the business

Daily settlement imits Settlement risk arises 1n any situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding recetptin
cash, securities or equities Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the Group's market
transactions on any single day

Risk assurance and oversight Oversight teams monitor credit performance trends, review and challenge exceptions to planned outcomes and test the adequacy of
credit nsk infrastructure and governance processes throughout the Group This includes tracking pertfolio performance against an agreed set of key risk indicaters
Risk assurance teams are engaged where appropriate to conduct further credit reviews If a need for closer scrutiny 15 entified

Coilateral
The principal collateral types for loans and advances are

« mortgages over residential and commercial real estate,

« charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable,
« charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities, and

« guarantees receved from third parties

The Group maintains guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of ccllateral

Collateral held as securty for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature of the instrument Debt secunties, treasury and other bills are
generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed secunties and similar instruments, which are secured by pertfolios of financial assets Collateral 1s generally
not held against loans and advances to financial institutions, except where securities are held as part of reverse repurchase or secunties borrowing transactions or
where a collateral agreement has been entered into under a master nettrng agreement Collateral or other security 15 also not usually obtained for credit nsk exposures
on denvative instruments, except where the Group reguires margin deposits from counterparties

It1s the Group s policy that ccltateral should always be realistically valued by an appropnately qualified source, Independent of the customer, at the time of borrowing
Collateral 15 reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with business umit credit pelicy, which will vary according to the type of lending and colilateral nvolved In
order to mimimise the credit loss, the Group may seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are entified for the relevant
indwidual loans and advances

The Group censiders nsk concentrations by collateral providers and collateral type, as appropnate, with a view to ensunng that any potential undue concentrations of
nsk are identfied andg suitably managed by changes to strategy, oolicy and/or business plans

Master netting agreements

Where it 1s efficient and hkely to be effective {generally with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions), the Group enters intg master
netting agreements Although master netting agreements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and lrabilities, as transactions are usually settled
on a gross basis, they do reduce the credit nisk to the extent that, if an event of default oceurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net
basis The Group’s overall exposure to credit nisk on dervative instruments subject to master netting agreements can change substantially within a short penod since it
15 affected by each transaction subject to the agreement
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Other credit nsk transfers
The Group also undertakes asset sales, securitisations and credit dervative based transactions as a means of mitgating or reducing credit nisk, taking into account the
nature of assets and the prevailing market conditions

Momitoring

Portfolio monitoring and reporting  In conjunction with Lioyds Banking Group Risk, business units identify and define portfolios of credit and related risk exposures
and the key benchmarks, behaviours and charactenstics by which those portfolios are managed in terms of credd nisk exposure This entalls the production and
anatysis of regular pertfolio monitonng reperts for raview by senior management Lloyds Banking Group Risk in turn produces an aggregated review of credit nsk
throughout the Group, including reports on significant credit exposures, which are presented to the Lioyds Banking Group Business Risk Committee

The performance of all rating models 15 comprehensively monitored on a regular basis, to seek to ensure that models continue to provide optimum nsk
differenhation capabihty, the generated ratings remain as accurale and robust as possible and the models assign appropriate nisk estimates to grades/pools Al
models are menitored against & seres of agreed key performance indicators In the event that monthly monitoring 1dentifies matenal exceptions or deviations from
expected cutcomes, these will be escalated

(2) Market nsk
Definntion
The nsk of reductions 1n earnings, value and/or reserves, through financial or reputational loss, ansing from unexpected changes In financial prices, ncluding interest

rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, credit spreads and prices for bonds, commodities, equities, property and other instruments It arises in all areas of the Group's
achvities and 1s managed by a vanety of different technigues

Risk appetite

Market nsk appetite 1s defined with regard to the quantum and composition of market nsk that exists currently in the Group and the direction in which the
Lloyds Banking Group wishes to manage this This statement of the Lioyds Banking Group’s overall appetite for market risk s reviewed and approved annually by the
Lloyds Banking Group board

Exposures

The Group's banking activities expose it to the nsk of adverse movements i interest rates, credit spreads, exchange rates and equity pnices, with little or no expeosure
to commaedity nsk The volatihty of market vatues can be affected by the amaunt of hquidity in the market for the relevant asset

Mast of the Group's trading activity (s undertaken to meet the reguirements of wholesale and retail customers for foreign exchange and interest rate products
However, some interest rate, exchange rate and credit spread positions are taken using denvatives and other on-balance sheet instruments with the objective of
earning a profit from favourable movements in market rates

Market risk in the Group’s retai! portfolios and in the Group’s capital and funding activities anses from the different repricing charactenistics of the Group's non-trading
assets and llabilibies Interest rate nsk arises predarminantly from the mismatch between interest rate insensttive labilities and interest rate sensitive assets

Fereign currency nisk also anses from the Group's investment in its averseas operations
The Group's insurance activities also expose It to market risk, encompassing interest rate, exchange rate, property, credit spreads and equity risk

» The management of the With Profit Funds within the Group's Insurance companies involves mismatchung of assets and habilibes with the aim of generating a higher
rate of return on assets to meet policyholders’ expectations

+ Unit linked labiities are matched with the same assets that are used to define the hability but {uture fee income 1s dependent upon the parformance of those assets
(This forms part of the value-of-in-force (VIF) see note 24)

« For other insurance labiliies the aim 1s to invest 1N assets such that the cash flows on investments will match those on the projected future llabihties It 1s not
possible to eliminate nsk completely as the timing of insured events 15 uncertain and bonds are not available at all of the required maturihes As a result the cash
flows cannct be precisely matched and so sensitvity tests are used to test the extent of the mismatch

+ Surplus assets are held primarily in three portfclios (a) surpluses in the long-term funds of Scottish Widows plc and its subsidiaries, {b) assets in sharehoider funds
of hfe assurance companies and (¢} an investment partfolo within the general insurance business

The Group's defined benefit staff penston schemes are exposed to significant nsks from the constituent parts of their assets and from the present value of ther
habilimes, primanly equity and real interest rate risk For further informatien on pension scheme assets and liabilities please refer to note 38

Measurement
The pnmary market sk measure used within the Group 1s the Value at Risk (VaR) methodology, which incorporates the volatihty of relevant market prices and the
correlation of ther movements This is used for determiring the Greup's overall market sk appetite and for the high level allocation of nisk appetite across the Group

Although an important measure of nsk, VaR has limitations as a result of its use of histonical data, assumed distribution, halding periods and frequency of calculation
In additien, the use of confidence levels does not convey any information about patential loss when the confidence level 15 exceeded Where VaR models are less well
suited to the nature of positions, the Group recognises these limitations and supplements its use with a vanety of other techrmiques These reflect the nature of the
business actwvity, and include interest rate repncing gaps, open exchange positions and sensitivity analysis Stress testing and scenano analysis are also used in
certain portfoiios and at Greup level, to simutate extreme conditions to supplement these core measures

Banking — trading assets and other treasury portfolics

With the acguisitien of HBOS plc, it has been the peticy of Lloyds Banking Group to monitor and repert its trading and other treasury positions on a consohdated basis
to facilitate management and control and capture diwversification benefits It 1s therefore not appropnate to report this data separately for the Group
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Banking — non-trading

Market nisk in non-trading Hocks consists almoest entirely of exposure to changes in interest rates This 1s the potential impact on earmings and value that could occur
when, (f rates fall, liabihties cannot be re-priced as quickly or by as much as assets, or when, if rates rise, assets cannot be re priced as quickly or by as much as
labifiies

Risk exposure s monitered menthly using, pnmanly, market value sensitvity This methodology considers all re-pricing mismatches in the current balance sheet ang
catculates the change 1n market value that would result from a set of defined interest rate shocks Where re-pnicing maturity 15 based on assumptions about customer
behaviour these assumptions are also reviewed monthly

A hmit structure exists to ensure that risks stemming from residual and temporary positions or from changes ' assumptions about customer behaviour remarm within
the Group’s nsk appetite

The estimated impact of an immediate 25 basis point 1ncrease In interest rates on economic vatue for the year ended 31 December 2009 was £44 million (2008
decrease of £23 million) Economic value is defined as the present value of the non-trading partfolios concerned Impacts have only been shown in one direction but
can be assumed to be reasenably symmetncal No currency breakdown has been provided as most of the exposure 15 1n pounds sterling These calculatiens are made
monthly using assumptions regarding the matunty of interest rate insensitive assets and liabiities The portfolic 1s updated manthly to reflect any changes in the
relatonship between customer behaviour and the level of interest rates This 1s a nisk-based disclosure and the amounts below would be amortised in the income
staternent over the duration of the portfolio

Pension schemes

Management of the assets of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes Is the responsibiity of the Scheme Trustees, who also appoint the Scheme Actuares to
perform the tnennial valuations The Group monitors its pensions exposure holistically using a vanety of metncs including accounting and economic deficits and
contribution rates These and other measures are regularty reviewed by the Lloyds Banking Groups Pensions Strategy Committee and used in discussions with the
Trustees, through whom any nisk management and metigation activity must be conducted

Insurance portfotios

The Group's market sk exposure 1n respect of insurance achivities descnbed above (s measured using European Embedded Value (EEV) as a proxy for economic
value The pre-tax sensitivity of EEV to standardised stresses 1s shown below for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 Dunng 2009, the crecit spread
sensitivity was changed from a 25 basis point increase to a 30 per cent widernng of the spread between corporate bonds and the swap curve including an allowance
for the assumed change in the ilhquidity premium  Foreign exchange nisk anises predeminantly from overseas equity holdings Impacts have only been shown in one
direction but can be assumed to be reasonably symmetncal Opening and ¢iosing numbers only have been provided as this data1s not volatile and censeguently 1s not
tracked on a daily basis

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

£m £m

Equity nsk (impact of 10% fail pre-tax) (196) (236)
Interest rate nsk (impact of 2bbp reduchon pre-tax) &5 59
Credit spread nsk (mpact of 30% increase pre-tax) (142) n/a

Mitigation
Various mitigation activities are undertaken across the Group to manage portfolios and seek to ensure they remain within approved hmits

Banking — non-trading actvities

Interest rate nsk ansing from the different repricing charactenistics of the Group’s non-trading assets and liatlites, and from the mismatch between interest rate
insensitive hatihites and interest rate sensitive assets, 1s managed centrally Matching assets and Labtiites are offset against each sther and internal interest rate
swaps are also used

The Group incurs foreign exchange nsk 1n the course of providing services to 1ts custormers  All nen struciural foreign exchange exposures in the non-trading book are
transferred to the trading area where they are monttored and controlled

Insurance activities
Investment holdings are diversified across markets and, within markets, across sectors Holdings are diversified to mimimise specrfic nsk and the relative size of farge
individual exposures 13 monitared closely For assets held outside unit-linked funds, investments are only permitted 1n countries and markets which are sufficiently
regulated and hquid

Monitaring

The Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liabilty Committee regularly reviews high level market risk exposure including, but not imited to, the data descnbed above It
also makes recornmendations to executive management concerning overall market nisk appetite and market risk peiicy Exposures at lower levels of delegation are
monitored at varous intervals according to their volatility, from daily in the case of trading portfolios to monthly or quarterly in the case of less volatile portfolics Levels
of exposures compared to approved himits are monitored locally by independent nsk functions and at a hugh tevel by Lloyds Banking Group nsk Where appropniate,
escalation procedures are 1n place

Barking activities

Trading 15 restncted to a number of specialist centres, the most important centre being the treasury and trading business in Londen These centres alse manage
market nisk tn the non-trading partfolics, both 1n the UK and internationaily The level of exposure 1s strictly contralled and manitored within approved imits Active
management of the wholesale portfolios 1s necessary to meet customer requirements and changing market circumstances
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Market nsk in the Group’s retail portfolies and in the Group’s capital and funding activities 15 managed within imits defined in the detailed Lloyds Banking Group
policy for interest rate nsk in the banking book, which 1s reviewed and approved annually

Insurance activities

Market risk exposures from the insurance businesses are controlled via approved investment palicies and triggers set with reference to the Group's overall nsk appetite
and regularly reviewed by the Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liability Commuttee

+ The With Profit Funds are managed in accerdance with the relevant fund's pninciples and practices of financial management and legal requirements

« The investment strategy for other insurance habiities 1s determined by the term and nature of the underlying habilities and assetliabiity matching positions are
actively monitored  Actuanal tools are used to project and match the cash flows

« Investment strategy for surplus assets held 1n excess of habilities takes account of the legal, segutatory and internal business requirements for capital to be held to
support the business now and in the future

The Group alse agrees strategies for the overall mix of pension assets with the pension scheme trustees

{3) Liquidity risk

Definition

Liquidity nsk 1s defined as the risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its commitments when they fall due, or can secure them only at
excessive cost

Consistent with regulatory requirements, the banking and insurance parts of the Group manage their lquihity independently on a stand-alone basis  Liguidity for all
banking business 1s managed centrally Liguichty nsk taken (n insurance business is managed at business unit level and 1s not considered further in this section

Risk appetite

Liguidity nisk appetite for the banking businesses 1s set by the Lloyds Banking Group board and reviewed on an annual basis It 1s reported through various metrics
that enable the Lloyds Banking Group to manage liquidity and funding constraints Executive management, assisted by the Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liability
Committee, regularly reviews performance against nsk appetite

Exposure
Liquichty exposure represents the amount of potental outflows in any future period less committed inflows  Liquidity 1s considered from both an internal and
regulatory perspective

Measurement

A seres of measures are used across the Group to monitor beth shart and leng-term liquidity including  ratios, cash outflow tnggers, hquidity gaps, early warning
indicators and stress test survival penod tnggers Strict critena and himits are in place to ensure hughly iquid marketable secunties are available as part of the portfolio
of hquid assets

Mibigation

The Group mitigates the nsk of a iquidity mismatch in excess of its nsk appetite by managing the hquidity profile of the balance sheet thraugh both shert-term hquidity
management and long term funding strategy Short-term hguidity rmanagement 1s considered from two perspectives, business as usual and hgudity under stressed
conditions, both of which relate to funding 1n the less than one year time honzon Longer-term funding 1s used to manage the Group's strategic hquicity profile which
15 determined by the Group's balance sheet structure  Longer-term 15 defined as having an onginal matunty of more than one year

The Group's funding and liquidity pesitton 1s underpinned by its significant retail deposit base, accompanied by approprate funding from the whaolesale markets A
substantial proportion of the retail deposit base 1s made up of customers’ current and savings accounts which, although repayable on demand, have traditionally in
2ggregate provided a stable source of funding Additionaily, the Group accesses the short-term wholesate markets to raise inter bank deposits and to 1ssue certificates
of deposit and commercial paper to meet short-term obligabens The Greup's shart-term money market funding 1s based on a gualitative analysis of the market's
capactty for the Group's credit The Group has developed strong relationships with certain wholesale market segments, and also has access to central banks and
corperate custerners, to supplement its retail deposit base

Monitoring

Liguidity 1s actively monitered at business unit and Greup level at an appropnate frequency Routing reporting 1s in place to executrve management and through the
Lloyds Banking Group’s commuttee structure, in particular the Llcyds Banking Group Asset and Liabiity Committee which meets monthly In a stress situation the
level of monitoring and reporting 15 increased commensurate with the nature of the stress event Liquidity policies and procedures are subject to independent
oversight

Dally monitoning and control processes are in place to address both statutory and prudential iquidity requirements In addmon, the framework has two other
important components

« Firstly, Lloyds Banking Group stress tests its potential cash flow mismateh position under various scenarios on an ongoing basis The cash flow mismatch position
considers an-balance sheet cash flows, commitments recerved and granted, and matenal denvative cash flows Specfically, commitments granted nclude the
pipeline of new business awaiting completion as well as other stanaby or revolving credit facilibes Behavioural adjustments are developed, evaluating how the cash
flow position might change under each stress scenario to denve a stressed cash flow position Scenarnos cover both Lioyds Banking Group name specific and
systemic difficulties The scenanos and the assumptions are reviewed at least annually to gain assurance they continug t¢ be relevant to the nature of the business

« Secondly, the Group has a contingency funding plan embedded within the Lloyds Banking Group Liquidity Policy which has been designed to identify emerging
ligquidity concerns at an early stage, so that mitigaling actions can be taken to avoid a more senous cnsis developing
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(4) Insurance nsk

Defiribion

The nsk of reductions in earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational less, due to fluctuations in the tming, frequency and seventy of insured/underwniten
events and to fluctuations in the tirming and amount of claim settlements This includes fluctuations in profits due to customer behavicur

Risk appetite

Insurance nisk appetite 1s defined with regard tc the quantum and compositon of insurance risk that exists currently in the Group and the direction 1n which the
Lloyds Banking Group w:shes to manage this It takes account of the need for each entity in the Lioyds Banking Group to maintain solvency in excess of the minimum
level required by the entity’s junsdictional legal or regulatory requirements

The Group’s overall appetite for insurance nsk s reviewed and approved annually by the Lloyds Banking Group board
Exposure
The major sources of insurance nsk within the Group are the insurance businesses and the Group's defined benefit staff pension schemes The nature of insurance

business involves the accepting of insurance nsks which relate primarnly to moralty, longewty morbidity, persistency, expenses, property damage and
unemployment The pnime insurance sk carried by the Group's staff pension schemes 1s related to longevity

Measurement
Insurance risks are measured using a variety of techniques including stress and scenario testing, and, where appropnate, stochastic modelling
Current and petential future insurance risk exposures are assessed and aggregateg using sk measures based on 1 1n-20 year stresses and other supporing measures

where appropriate

Mitigation

A key element of the contrel framework 1s the consideration of insurance risk by a suitable combination of high level committees/boards For the life assurance
businesses the key control body 1s the board of Scotiish Widews Group Limited with the more significant risks alsc being subject to approval by the Lloyds Banking
Group Executive Committee andfor Lloyds Banking Group board For the general insurance businesses the key control body 1s the board of Lloyds TSB General
Insurance Limited with the more stgnificant nsks again being subject to Lioyds Banking Group Executive Committee and/or Lieyds Banking Group board approval All
Group staff pension scheme issues are covered by the Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liabihity and Business Risk Cornmitiees

The overall insurance risk 1s mitigated through pooling and through diversification across large numbers of uncorrelated individuals, geographical areas, and different
types of nsk exposure Insurance nisk 1s pnmanly controlled via the following processes

- Underwnting (the process to ensure that new msurance proposals are properly assessed)

+ Pricing-to-nsk (new nsurance proposals are priced to cover the underlying risks inherent within the products)

- Claims management

- Product design

+ Policy wording

« Preduct management

+ The use of reinsurance or cther nsk mitigation techniques

In addition, limits are used as a control mechanism for insurance nsk at policy level

At all times, close attention 1s paid to the adequacy of reserves, solvency management and regulatory reguirements

General Insurance exposure to accumulations of risk and possible catastrophes 1s mitigated by rensurance arrangements which are broadly spread over different
reinsurers  Detaited modeliing, including that of the potential losses under vanous catastrophe scenarics, supports the choice of reinsurance arrangements
Appropnate reinsurance arrangements also apply within the Iife and pensions businesses with significant mortality nsk and mortidity nisk being transferred to our
chosen reinsurers

Cptions and guarantees are incorporated 1n new insurance products only after careful consideration of the nsk management 1ssues that they present
In respect of insurance nsks in the staff pension schemes, the Group ensures that effective communication mechanisms are in place for consultation with the trustees
to assist with the management of risk 1n ling with the Group’s nsk appetite

Montoring

Ongoing monitonng 1s in place to track the progressien of insurance risks This normally involves monitoring relevant experiences against expectations (for example
claims experience, option take-up rates, persistency experience, expenses, non-disclosure at the point of salg), as well as evaluating the effectiveness of contrals put
In ptace to manage nsurance rnsk Reasons for any significant divergence from experience are investigated and remedial action 1$ taken

Insurance nisk exposures are reparted and monitored regularly by the Lioyds Banking Group Executive Commitieg
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QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

(1) Credit nsk
The Group's credit risk exposure arnises predominantly in the United Kingdom and the European Union

The maximum credit nsk exposure of the Group and the Bank in the event of other parties faling to perform their obligations 15 detailed below No account 1s taken of
any collateral held and the maximum exposure to loss 1s considered to be the balance sheet carrying amournt or, for non-derivative off-balance sheet transactons and
financial guarantees, therr contractual nominal amounts

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em £m £m Em
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to banks 175,704 38,868 176,705 37,103
Loans and advances to customers 250,039 || 243,803 | | 256,706 252,063
Debt secunties 2,881 4,549 3,075 3,996
Deposit amounts available for offset! {4,116) (4 837) (4,112) (4,827
Impairment allowances {5,207) {3,727) (3,989) (2,968)
419,301 278,656 428,385 285,367
Available-for-sale financial assets (excluding equity shares) 26,008 55,666 13,438 58,408
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (excluding equity shares) 21,037 21,790 2,629 3,674
Denvative assets, before netting ‘ 18,797 ‘ ‘ 28,884 | 17,937 26,704
Amounts available for offset under master neting arangements! (1,755 [ {10,598} L (1,755)| I (10,598)
17,042 18,286 16,182 16,106
Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held 419 385 - -
Financial guarantees 9,996 10,382 9,869 10,382
Irrevocable Ioan commitments and other credit-related contingencies® 48,541 51,659 43,564 47,281
Maximum credit risk exposure 542,344 436,824 514,067 421,218
Maximum credit nsk exposure before offset items 548,215 452,25% 519,934 436,643

1 Deposit amounts available for offset and amounts avallable far offset under master netting arrangements do not meet the cntenia under IAS 32 to enable loans and
advances and dervative assets respectively tc be presented net of these balances in the financral statements

23ee note 49 — Contingent hiabilities and commitments for further information
A general description of collateral held in respect of financial instruments 15 disclosed on page 82

Loans and advances to banks — the Group may require collateral before entering into a credit commitment with another bank, depending on the type of the financial
prcduct and the counterparty involved, and netting agreements are obtained whenever possible and to the extent that such agreements are legally enforceable

Available for-sale debt secunties, treasury and other bills, and trading and other financia! assets at fair value through profit or loss — the credit quality of the
Group's avallable-for-sale debt securities, treasury and other bills, and the majonty of the Group's trading and other financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss
held 15 set out below An analysis of trading and other financial assets at farr value through profit or loss 1s included in note 13 and a similar analysis for
avallable-for-sale financial assets 1s included in note 21 The Group’s non-participating investment contracts are all unit-linked Trading and cther financial assets at
fair value through profit er loss which back those investment contracts, including movements ansing from credit sk, are borne by the contract holders

Derivative assets - the Group reduces exposure to credit nsk by using master netting agreements and by obtaining cash collateral An analysis of derivative assets 1s given
in note 14 Of the net denvative assets of £17,042 millon for the Group and £16,182 million for the Bank (2008 £18,286 million for the Group and £1 6,106 million
far the Bank), cash collateral of £2,C29 million {2008 £2,970 million} was held for both the Group and the Bank, and a further £11,8893 miilion for the Group
and £10,748 million for the Bank was due from OECD banks (2008 £5,84C muilon for the Group and £3,574 million for the Bank)

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts held -~ of the assets ansing from rensurance contracts held at 31 December 2009 of £419 mullion (2008 £385 mulhon),
£225 milion {2008 £380 millon} were due from nsurers with a crecit rating of AA or above

Financial guarantees — these represent undertakings that the Group will meet a customer's obhigation to third parties if the customer fails to do so Commitments to
extend credit represent unused portions of authonsations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit The Group 1s thecretically exposed to loss
1n an amount equal to the total guarantees or unused commitments, however, the likely amount of loss 15 expected to be significantly less, most commitments to
extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards

Reverse repo and repo transactions — for reverse repa transactions which are accounted for as collaterahised loans, it 1s the Group's policy to seek collateral which is
at least equal to the amount loaned At 31 December 2009, the fair value of collateral accepted under reverse repa transactions that the Group and the Bank 1s
permitted by contract or custom to sell or repledge was £5,270 millien (2008 £5,858 milion} Of this, £5,270 mullion (2008 £5,855 million) for the Group and
the Bank was sold or repledged as at 31 December 2009 The fair value of collateral pledged in respect of repo transactions, accounted for as secured borrowings,
where the secured party 1s permitted by contract or custom to sell or repledge was £14,222 millien (2008 £5,734 million) for the Group and the Bank
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Loans and advances — The Group

31 December 2009

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due but not impaired

Impaired — ne provision required
— provision held

Gross
Allowance for impairment losses (note 20)

Net
[3ue from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

No impairment allowances have been raised In respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds Banking Groug undertakings

31 December 2008

Neither past due nor impatred

Past due but not impaired

impaired — ne crovision required
— provision held

Gross
Allowance for impattrment losses (note 20)

Net

Loans and

advances

Loans and advances to custemers designated

Loans and at fair value
advances Retail - Retail - througn
to banks mortgages ather Wholesale Total  profit or loss
£m £m Em £m £m £m
25,428 110,523 31,651 77,590 219,764 439
- 2,794 1,067 413 4,274 -

- 519 423 1,588 2,530 -

153 1,513 4,465 3,305 9,283 -
25,581 115,349 37,606 82,896 235,851 439
(149) (362) (2,629) (1,822) 4,813) -
25,432 114,987 34,977 81,074 231,038 439
150,122 14,188 -
175,554 245,226 439
Loans andg

advances

desighated

Loans and Loans and advances to customers at fa:r value
advances Retail — Retail - through
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or joss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
38,716 110,148 33,571 86,707 230,426 6808
17 3,134 1,146 555 4,835 -

- 479 150 1,253 1,882 -

135 882 4,327 1,451 6,660 -
38,868 114,643 39,194 89,966 243,803 808
(135) (186) (2,345) (928) (3,459) -
38,733 114 457 36,849 89,038 240,344 608

No amounts were due from fellow Licyds Banking Group undertakings at 31 December 2008

The analysis of lending between retail and wholesale has been prepared based upon the type of exposure and not the business segment in which the exposure 1s
recorded Included within retail are exposures to personal customers and small businesses, whilst included within wholesale are exposures to corporate customers

and other large institutions

The critena that the Group uses to determine that there 1s objective evidence of an impairment loss ate disclosed In note 3 All impaired loans which exceed certain
thresholds, principally within the Group's wholesale and cerporate businesses, are indvidually assessed for impairment by reviewing expected future cash flows
including those that could anse from the realisation of secunty Included in loans and recevables are advances individually determined to be impaired with a gross
amount before 1mpairment allowances of £4,869 millien (2008 £2,699 million) which have associated collateral with a fair value of £661 million

(2008 £518 million}
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Loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired — The Group

Loans and
advances
Loans and Loans and advances to customers a;j?asllrg::\tz‘::
advances Retall - Retail - through
ta banks mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2009
Good guality 25,261 107,205 20,401 41,210 3 58
Satisfactory quality 141 3,318 8,441 27,668 | > 268
Lower quality 14 - 848 7,931 | e %0
Below standard, but not tmpaired 12 - 1,961 781 L 23
Tetal 25,428 110,523 31,651 77,590 219,764 439
31 December 2008
Good guahty 38,283 109,815 21,373 49,349 129
Satisfactory quality 215 264 5,192 31,042 411
Lower quatity 204 - 900 5,831 56
Below standard, but not impaired 14 53] 2,106 485 12
Tokal 38,716 110,148 33,571 86,707 230,426 608

The defimhons of good quality, satisfactory quality, lower quality and below standard, but not impaired applying to retail and wholesale are not the same, reflecting
the different charactenstics of these exposures and the way they are managed internally, and consequently totals are not provided Wheolesate lending has been
classified using internal probability of default rating models mapped so that they are comparable to external credit ratings Good guaity lending compnses the lower
assessed default prebabilities, with other classifications reflecting progressively higher default nsk Classifications of retail lending incorporate expected recovery levels
for mortgages, as well as probahilibies of default assessed using internal rating models Goed quality lending includes the lower assessed default probabilities and all
loans with low expected losses In the event of default, with other categones reflecting progressively higher risks and lower expected recoveries

Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired - The Group

Loans and
advances
Loans and Loans and advances ta customers a?::?:::ﬁg
advances Retal — Retad - through
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Totat  profit or loss
Em Em £m Em £m Em
31 December 2009
0-30 days - 1,325 812 228 2,365 -
30 60 days - 562 226 37 825 -
60-90 days - 365 27 86 478 -
50-180 days - 541 1 21 563 -
Over 180 days - 1 1 41 43 -
Total - 2,794 1,067 413 4,274 -
Fair value of collateral held 2,396 nfa n/a n/a
31 December 20038
0-30 days - 1,527 853 289 2,669 .-
30-60 days - 633 259 90 982 -
60-90 days 17 424 32 70 526 -
9G-180 days - 549 2 77 628 -
Cver 180 days - 1 - 29 3c -
Total 17 3,134 1146 555 4,835 -
Fair value of collateral held 2,637 nfa n/a n/a

A financial asset 15 ‘past due' if a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due

Collateral held against retail mortgage lending 1s pnncipally compnised of residential properties, their fair value has been estimated based upon the last actual
valuation, ad)usted to take into account subsequent movements in house prices, after making allowance for indexation error and ditapidations The resulting valuation
has been hmited to the principal ameunt of the outstanding advance in order to provide a clearer representation of the Group's credit exposure

Lending decisions are based on an obhgor's ability to repay from normal business operations rather than reliance on the disposal of any security provided Collateral
values for non-mortgage lending are assessed more ngorously at the time of loan ongination or when taking enforcerment action and may fluctuate, as in the case of
floating charges, according to the level of assets held by the customer Whuilst collateral is reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with business unmit credit policy,
this vanies according to the type of lending and collateral involved It 1s therefore not practicable to estimate and aggregate current fair values of collateral for
nen-mortgage fending
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Loans and advances — The Bank

31 December 2009

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due but not impaired

Impaired — no provision required
- previsien held

Gross
Allowance for impairment losses (note 20}

Net
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings
Total

31 Decermnber 2008

Neither past due nor impairec

Past due but not impaired

Impaired — no provision required
— provision held

Gross
Allowance for impairment losses (note 20)

Net
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Greup undertakings
Total

toans and

advances

Loans and advances to customers designated

Loans and at fair value
advances Retail - Retail - through
to banks mortgages other Whglesale Total  profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
8,338 97,345 23,6686 61,515 182,526 439

- 2,640 732 373 3,745 -

- 490 280 1,535 2,305 -

153 1,447 3,033 2,958 7.438 -
8,491 101,922 27,711 66,381 196,014 439
(149) (338) (1,642) {1,615) (3,595) -
8,342 101,584 26,069 64,766 192,419 439
168,214 60,692 -
176,556 253,111 439
Loans and

advances

Loans and Loans and advances to customers a??::[gcgltﬁ':
advances Retall - Retaill - through
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
25,606 97.016 25,299 68,110 190,425 608
17 2,850 860 526 4,236 -

- 345 125 1,232 1,702 -

158 714 3,331 1,368 5,413 -
25,781 100,925 29,615 71236 201,776 608
(139) (175} (1,692) (833) (2,700) -
25,646 100,750 27,923 70,403 192,076 608
11,322 50,287 -
36,968 249,363 608

No impairment allowances have been raised in respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

Included i1n loans and receivabies are advances individually determined to be impaired with a gross amount before impairment allowances of £4,440 million (2008
£2,559 milhon) which have associated collateral with a far value of £361 milhen (2008 £420 millon)

S0



Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

51 Financial nsk management (continued)

Loans and advances which are neither past due nor umpaired — The Bank

31 December 2009

Good quality

Satisfactory quaJnty

Lower quality

Below standard, but not impaired

Total

31 December 2008

Good quality

Satisfactory quality

Lower quality

Below standard, but not impaired

Total

Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired —

31 December 2009
0-30 days

30-60 days

60-90 days
G0-180 days

Over 180 days

Total
Fair value of collateral held

31 December 2008
0-30 days

30 60 days

60-90 days

90-180 days

Over 180 days

Total

Fair value of collateral held

Renegotiated loans and advances

Loans and

advances

Loans and advances Io customers designated

Loans and at fair value

agvances Retail — Retad - through

to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total profit or loss

£m Em £m Em Em £m

8,173 94,225 14,779 32,429 28

141 3,120 6,632 23,442 268

12 - 78% 3,076 920

12 - 1,466 568 23

8,338 97,345 23,666 61,515 439

25,372 96,749 14,805 38,325 129

185 267 7.897 27,769 411

35 - 867 1,771 56

14 - 1,730 245 12

25,606 97,016 25,299 638,110 190,425 608

The Bank

Loans and

advances

Loans and advances o customers designated

Loans and at fair value

advances Retall - Retail - through

1o banks mortgages ather Wholesale Total  profit or loss

Em £m £m £m £m £m

- 1,267 489 196 1,952 -

- 520 218 30 768 -

- 345 24 85 454 -

- 508 1 21 530 -

- - - 41 41 -

- 2,640 732 373 3,745 -
2,262 n/a nfa n/a

- 1,332 578 261 2,171 -

- 583 248 90 9z1 -

17 404 32 69 505 -

- 530 2 77 609 -

- 1 - 29 30 -

17 2,850 860 526 4,236 -
2,422 n/a nfa nfa

Leans and advances that were renegotiated dunng the year and that would otherwise have been past due or impaired at 31 December 2009 totalled £217 mullicn
{2008 £144 milhon) for the Group and £209 milhon {2008 £133 million) for the Bank

Repossessed collateral

Residential property
Other

Total

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m Em £m £m
210 221 193 210
684 26 - -
894 247 193 210

In respect of retail portfolios, the Group does not normally take physical possession of properties or other assets held as collateral and uses external agents to realise
the value as soon as practicable, generally at auction, to seftte indebtedness Any surplus funds are returned te the borrower or are otherwise dealt with in accorclance

with appropnate insolvency regulations

In certain circumstances, the Group takes physical possession of assets hetd as collateral against wholesale lending In such cases, the assets are carmned on the
Group's balance sheet and are classified according ta the Group's accounting policy
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The Group The Bank
200% 2008 2009 2008
Loan-to-value ratio of morigage lending £m £m £m £m
Analysis by loan-to-value ratio of residential mortgage lending which 1s nesther
past due nor impaired
Less than 70 per cent 53,100 55,040 47,454 49,086
70 per cent to 80 per cent 16,865 15,812 15,035 14,079
80 per cent to S0 per cent 15,061 15,354 13,370 14,186
Greater than 90 per cent 25,497 23,342 21,486 19,665
Total 110,523 110,148 97,345 97,016
Debt securittes, treasury and other bills — analysis by credit rating
The Group Rated BB
ARA AA A BBB or lower Not rated Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2009
Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets
Government secunties 42 - - - - 30 72
Other public sector securities - - 6 - - - [
Corporate and other debt secunities 25 12 1 65 44 12 159
Total held as trading assets 67 12 7 65 44 42 237
Cther assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Government securthes 7,497 139 182 - 46 7,866
Other public sectar securities 25 - - - 9 34
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed secunbies 199 127 43 23 - 1 393
Other asset-backed securities | 254 294 536 302 250 20 1,656
453 421 579 325 250 21 2,049
Corporate and ather debt. secunties 2,549 582 2,933 2,416 604 1,328 10,412
Total other assets held at fair value through profit er loss 10,524 1,142 3,694 2,743 B54 1,404 20,368
Total held at fair value through profit or loss 10,581 1,154 3,701 2,808 898 1,446 20,598
Available for-sale financial assets
Debt securitres
Govarnment securities 8,192 - 1 - - 149 8,342
Other public sector securities - - - - - 31 31
Bank and bullding scciety certificates of deposit - 357 353 - 19 - 729
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed secunties 3,803 355 215 156 35 - 4,764
Qther asset-backed securities 6,011 721 448 179 186 16 7,561
9,814 1,276 663 335 221 16 12,325
Corporate and other debt secunties 9 637 292 - - 165 1,103
Total debt secunties 18,015 2,270 1,309 335 240 361 22,530
Treasury bills and other bills 269 2,263 - - - - 2,532
Total held as available-for-sale assets 18,284 4,533 1,309 335 240 361 25,062
Due from fellow Group undertakings
Corporate and other debt secunties 946
’ 26,008
Debt secunities classified as loans and recewvables
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed secunties 231 52 39 39 83 156 600
Other asset-backed securnities 26 71 6 1 209 - 313
257 123 45 40 292 156 913
Corporate and other debt secunties - 439 823 69 306 331 1,968
Total debt secunties classified as loans and recervables 257 562 B68 109 598 487 2,881
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Debt secunties, treasury and cther bills - analysis by credit rating

The Group Rated BB
AAA AA A BBB ar lower Not rated Totat
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2008
Debt secunties held at fair value through profit or loss

Tradiing assets
Government securities 38 - - - - - 38
Corparate and other debt secunties 76 187 38 68 87 80 536
Total held as trading assets 114 187 38 68 a7 80 574
Other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Government secunties 7,025 45 138 1 - 117 7.326
Other public sector securities - - - - - 18 18
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 96 337 - - - - 433
Asset-backed secunties
Martgage-backed securities 207 108 23 16 - 15 369
Other asset backed secunties 206 362 391 277 105 1 1,342
413 470 414 293 105 16 1,711
Corporate and other debt secunties 3,194 864 2,911 2,142 589 1,410 11,120
Total other assets at fair value through profit or loss 10,728 1,716 3,463 2,436 704 1,661 20,608
Tota! held at fair value through profit or loss 10,842 1,803 3,501 2,504 791 1,641 21,182
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt securnties
Government securities 851 - 1 - - 16 868
Other public sector secunties - - - - - 12 12
Bank and building society certificates of deposit - 9,418 166 - 18 - 9,602
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securiies 5,523 59 59 18 41 - 5,700
Other asset-backed securities 7,412 235 134 73 184 54 8,092
12,935 294 193 91 225 54 13,792
Corporate and other debt secunties 168 1,257 192 - - 566 2,183
Total debt securities 13,954 10,969 552 a1 243 648 26,457
Treasury blls and other bills 26,858 2,351 - - - - 29,209
Total held as available-for-sale assets 40,812 13,320 552 9] 243 648 55,666
Debt secunities classified as loans and recevables
Asset-backed securties
Mortgage-backed securities 431 & - 31 10 - 478
Other asset-backed secunties 73 72 162 53 10 170 540
504 78 162 84 20 170 1,018
Corporate and other debt secunties 18 1,204 1,663 114 - 532 3,531
Total debt secunities classified as loans and recevables 522 1,282 1,825 198 20 702 4,549

There are no matenal amounts for debt securties, treasury and other bills which are past due Hut not impaired
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Debt securntes, treasury and other bills — analysis by credit rating

The Bank

As at 31 December 2009

Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets

Government secunties

QOther public sector securities

Corporate and other debt securities

Total held as trading assets

Other assets held at fair vaiue through profit or foss
Other asset-backed securities
Carporate and other debt securities

Total other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Total held at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for sale financial assets
Debt securnhes
Government secunties
Other public sector securnties
Bank and building scciety certificates of deposit
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securities
Other asset-backed securities

Corporate and other debt secunties

Total debt securiies
Treasury Dills and other bills

Total held as avallable-for-sale assets

Due fram fellow Group undertakings
Corporate and other debt secunties

Debt securities classified as loans and recewables
Asset-backed securities

Mortgage-backed secunties

Other asset-backed secuniies

Corporate and cther debt secunties

Total debt secunties classified as loans ang recervables

Rated BB
ARA AA A BBB or lowet Not rated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
42 - - - - 30 72
- - 6 - - - [
25 12 1 65 44 12 159
57 12 7 65 44 42 237
44 - - - 203 - 247
- - 141 788 481 296 1,706
44 - 141 788 684 296 1,953
111 12 148 853 728 338 2,190
8,192 - 1 - - 7 8,200
- - - - - 31 31
- 356 93 - 14 463
790 205 59 25 1 - 1,080
1,686 178 60 65 117 16 2,122
2,476 383 119 90 118 16 3,202
g 637 292 - - 23 961
10,677 1,376 505 90 132 77 12,857
71 - - - - - 7i
10,748 1,376 505 90 132 77 12,928
510
13,438
231 52 a9 a9 73 156 590
26 119 92 81 209 - 518
257 162 131 120 282 156 1,108
- 439 823 69 306 330 1,967
257 601 954 189 588 486 3,075
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Debt secunties, treasury and other bills — analysis by credit rating

The Bank Rated BB
AAA AR A BBB or lower Net rated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2008
Debt secunties held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assels

Government secunties 38 - ~ - - - 38
Corporate and other debt secunties 76 187 38 68 87 80 536
Total held as trading assets 114 187 38 68 87 80 574
Other assets held at faw vaive through profit or foss
Other asset-backed securnties - - - - 105 - 105
Corporate and other debt secunties 41 77 286 1,089 553 341 2,387
Total other assets held at fair value through profit or loss 41 77 286 1,089 658 341 2,492
Total held at fair value through profit or loss 155 264 324 1,157 745 421 3,066
Available-for sale financial assets
Debt secunties
Government securities 501 - 1 - - 8 510
Cther public sector securities - - - - - 12 12
Bank and bulding scciety certificates of deposit - 7,484 166 - 13 - 7,663
Asset-backed secuntes
Mortgage backed securities 1,383 15 3 13 32 - 1,446
Qther asset backed securities 2,449 50 24 62 184 52 2,831
3,832 75 27 75 216 52 4,277
Carporate and other debt secunties 29 312 - - 14 159 514
Total debt secunties 4,362 7,871 194 75 243 231 12,976
Treasury bills and other bills 26,857 ~ - - - - 26,857
Total heid as available-for-sale assets 31,219 7.871 194 75 243 231 38,833
Due from fellow Group undertakings
Mortgage-backed secunibies 17,830
Other asset-backed secunties 745
58,408
Debt secunties classified as loans and recevables
Asset-backed secunhes 73 72 162 53 10 170 540
Carporate and other debt secunties 18 1,204 1,663 114 - 457 3,456
Total debt securities classified as loans and recewvables 91 1,276 1,825 167 10 827 3,996

Credit market exposures

The Group's credit market exposures prmanly refate to asset-backed secunties held in the non-retail businesses These exposures are classified as loans and
receivables (note 19} avallable-for-sale {nate 21} and trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 13) depending on the nature of the
Investment
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The Group

Tradlng and
other finaneial  Net exposure Net exposure
assets at fair as at as at
Loans and  Available for  value through 31 December 31 December
recewvables sale profit or loss 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Asset backed secunties
US residential mortgage-backed secunties 336 - - 336 488
Nen-US residential mortgage-backed securities - 3,559 - 3,559 4,585
Commercial mortgage-backed secunties 27 1,176 - 1,203 1,328
363 4,735 - 5,098 6,401
Collateralised debt ebligations
Collaterahsed debt obligations 106 45 - 151 189
Collaterahsed Joan obligations 151 1,739 - 1,890 2,319
257 1,784 - 2,041 2,508
Personal sector
Auto loans - 724 - 724 796
Credut cards - 770 - 770 1,126
Personal loans - 230 - 230 39
- 1,724 - 1,724 1961
Federal Family Education Loan Program student loans - 3,306 - 3,306 2,951
Other asset-backed secunties - 776 - 776 1,050
Total uncovered asset-backed securities 620 12,325 - 12,945 14,871
Negative basis’ - - 283 283 584
Tota! asset-backed secunties 620 12,325 283 13,228 15,455
Direct 605 6,943 283 7,831 8,728
Conduits 15 5,382 - 5,397 6,727
Total wholesale asset-backed securities 620 12,325 283 13,228 15,455
Other asset-backed securnties 293 - 1,766 2,062 1,066
Total asset-backed secunties 913 12,325 2,049 15,280 16,521
1 Negative basis means bonds held with separate matching credit default swap protection
The table below details the direct exposure to Non-US residential mortgage-backed secunties by vintage
The Group
Net exposura Net exposure
as at as at
31 December 31 December
Pre 2005 2005 2006 2007 2009 2008
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
Asset class
Prime - - 11 4 15 -
Alt-A - i 110 210 321 488
Sub-prime - - - - - -
Total - 1 121 214 336 488
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Exposure to monolines
Dunng the year all exposure to sub-investment grade monalines on credit default swap contracts was written down to zero, leaving imited exposure to monoling
insurers set cut below

The Group Credit Default Swaps Wrapped loans and recevables Wrapped bonds
Notional Exposure! MNotional Exposure? Notional Exposure®
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Investment grade - - 401 260 4 3
Sub-investment grade - - - - 10 1
Total - - 401 260 14 4

The exposure to menalings ansing frem credit default swaps 1s calculated as the mark-to-market of the credit default swap protechion purchased from the monoline
after credit valuation adjustments

2The exposure 1o monolines on wrapped loans and receivables and bonds 15 the internal assessment of amounts that will be recovered from the monaline guarantor an
Interest and pnncipal shortfalls

#n addiion, the Group has £1,196 million of monoling wrapped bonds and £791 mullien of monoling hgquidity commutments on wiich the Group currently places no
rellance on the guarantor

Credit ratings
An analysis of external credit ratings as at 31 December 2009 of the asset backed secunties portfolio by asset class i1s provided below These ratings are based on the
lowest of Moody s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch

Net
The Group BXposUre AMA AR A BBB BB B Below B
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Asset-class
Mortgage-backed securities
US residential mortgage-backed secusites
Prime 15 - L) - - - 4 7
Alt-A 321 230 45 15 15 11 2 3
Sub Prme - - - - - - - -
336 230 49 15 15 11 6 10
Non-US residential martgage-backed secuniies 3,559 3,359 200 - - - - -
Commercial mortgage-backed secunties 1,203 395 380 216 166 14 - 32
5,098 3,984 629 231 181 25 6 a2
Collateralised debt obligations
Coltateralised debt obligations 152 - 107 - - - - 45
Collateralised loan obligations 1,889 904 614 150 111 45 18 7
2,041 904 721 190 111 45 18 52
Personal sector
Auto loans 724 693 7 - - 24 - -
Credit cards 770 770 - - - - - -
Personal loans 230 196 22 12 - - - -
1,724 1,659 29 12 - 24 - -
Federal family education loan program student loans 3,306 3,215 91 - - - - -
Other asset-backed secunties 783 268 1 313 112 74 15 -
Total uncovered asset-backed secuntes 12,952 10,030 1,471 746 404 168 39 95
Negative basis’
Monolines 79 - - 79 - - - -
Banks 204 - - - - - - 204
Total as at 31 December 2009 13,235 10,030 1,471 825 404 168 19 298
Total as at 31 December 2008 15,455 13,518 436 131 260 - - 1,110

The external credit rating 1s based on the bond 1gnonng the benefit of the credit default swap
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{2) Market Risk

Interest rate risk

In the Group's retail banking business tnterest rate nsk anses from the different repricing charactenstics of the assets and habilibes Liabilities are either insensitive to
interest rate movements, for example interest free or very low interest customer deposits, or are sensittve 10 Interest rate changes but bear rates which may be vared at
the Group’s discretion and that for competitive reasons generally reflect changes in the Bank of England's base rate There are a relatively smalf volume of deposits
whose rate 15 contractually fixed for therr term to matunty

Many banking assets are sensitive to nterest rate movements, there 1s a large volume of managed rate assets such as vanable rate mortgages which may be
considered as a natural offset to the interest rate nsk ansing from the managed rate liabiliies However a significant proportion of the Group’s lending assets, for
example persenal loans and morigages, bear interest rates which are contractually fixed for penods of up to five years or longer

The Group establishes two types of hedge accounting relationships for interest rate nsk fair value hedges and cash flow hedges The Group 1s exposed to fair value
interest rate risk on its fixed rate customer loans, its fixed rate customer deposits and the majonty of its subordinated debt, and to cash flow interest rate risk on its
vanable rate loans and deposits together with its floating rate subordinated debt The majonty of the Group's hedge accounting relationships are fair value hedges
where interest rate swaps are used to hedge the interest rate risk inherent in the fixed rate morigage portfolio

At 31 December 2009 the aggregate notional pnincipal of interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges was £24,219 milion (2008 £37,243 millien) for the
Group and £23,219 million {2008 £38,243 million) fer the Bank with a net fair value asset of £458 multien (2008 hability of £1,231 milhion) for the Group and
£370 mulhon {2008 labihty of £1,438 millon} for the Bank (note 14) The losses recognised by the Group on the hedging instruments were £4 milian
(2008 losses of £584 mithon} The Group’s gains on the hedged items atinbutable to the hedged nsk were £26 million (2008 gains of £426 mullion)

in additien the Group has a small number of cash flow hedges which are pnimarily used to hedge the variability in the cost of funding within the wholesale business
These cash flows are expected to occur over the next six years and the hedge accounting adiustments will be reported in the income statement as the cash flows arise
The notional principal of the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges at 31 December 2009 was £659 milhon {2008 £867 mullion) for the Group and the
Bank with a net fair value habity of £46 milion (2088 £9C million} for the Group and the Bank (note 14} In 2009, there I1s no Ineffectiveness recognised in the
Group’s Income statement that arises fram cash flow hedges (2008 £nil) There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased 1n
200% or 2008 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no longer being expected to occur

Currency nsk
Foreign exchange exposures compnse those onginating in treasury trading actaities and structural foreign exchange exposures, which anse from investment in the
Group's overseas operaticns

The corporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange nsk in the course of prowiding services to their customers  All non-structural foreign exchange exposures in
the non-trading book are transferred to the trading area where they are monitered and controlled These rnisks reside 1n the authorised trading centres who are
allocated exposure limits The imits are monitored daily by the local centras and reported to the central market nsk funchion

Risk arises from the Group's investments (n Its overseas operations The Group's structural foreign currency exposure 1s represented by the net asset value of the
foretgn currency equity and subordinated debt investments in its subsidianies and branches Gains or losses on structurat foreign currency exposures are taken to
resenves

The Group hedges part of the currency transiation risk of the net investments (in certain foreign operations using cross currency swaps At 31 December 2009 the
notional principal of these cross currency swaps was £2,507 milhon with a net fair value asset of £25 mullion {2008 notional principal £6,318 million with a net fair
value liability of £2,413 milion) {note 14) and they were designated an an after-tax basis as hedges of net investments in foreign operations In 2009 ineffectiveness
of £nil before tax and Enil after tax (2008 £14 million before tax and £10 mullion after tax) was recognised in the income statement ansing from net investment
hedges

The Group s main overseas operations are in the Americas, Asia and Europe Details of the Group's structural foreign currency exposures are, after net (nvestment
hedges, as follows

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Functicrnal currency of Group cperations
Euro 113 133 62 82
US dollar (122) {S07) 81 90
Swiss franc
Gross exposure 2,552 2784 51 78
Net investrment hedge (2,467) {2,663) - -
85 121 51 78
Japanese yen
Gross exposure 3,220 3,667 12 16
Net investment hedge (3,207) (3,645} - -
13 22 12 16
Other non-sterling 318 296 281 258
407 (335) 487 524
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(3)  Liquidity risk

The tables below analyse financtal snstrument habileties of the Group and the Bank, excluding those ansing from insurance and partictpating investment contracts, on
an undiscounted future cash flow basis according 1o contractual maturity, into refevant matunty groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date,
balances with no fixed matunty are included n the over 5 years category

The Group Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Totat
£m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2009
Deposits from banks 76,070 51,297 11,852 327 455 140,001
Custorner deposits 152,423 8,554 9,844 9,438 13,412 193,671
Trading and other financial habitities at fair value through profit or loss 716 141 1,582 3,222 1,275 6,936
Debt securities In 1ssue 26,315 26,187 16,281 49,460 5869 124,112
Liabilities ansing from non-participating investment contracts 15,734 - - - - 15,734
Subordinated habihties 151 70 623 4,659 18,012 23,515
Tatal 271,409 86,249 40,182 67,106 39,023 503,969
Gross settled denvatives — outflows 4,907 943 365 122 986 7,323
Gross settled denvatives — tnfiows (901) (607 {189) (157) (385) (2,239)
Gross settled denvatives - net flows 4,006 336 176 {35) 601 5,084
Net settled denvative habilites 14,817 - - - - 14,817
Total denvative financial habilities 18,823 336 176 39) 601 19,901

As at 31 December 2008

Deposits from banks 49,620 13617 1,480 1,986 5 66,708
Customer depesits 158,607 8,482 9788 2,322 830 180,029
Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 30,776 1,077 5,295 7,203 3.818 48,169
Debt securities 1n 1ssue 24,306 26,932 6,591 13,643 3,489 74,961
Liabilities ansing from nan-participating investment contracts 14,243 - - - - 14,243
Subordinated liabikties 20 102 438 4,593 17,987 23,140
Total 277,572 50,210 23,592 29,747 26,126 407,250
Gross settled denivatives — outflows 5,210 284 4,602 990 1,154 12,240
Gross seftled denvatives — inflows (3,136) (33) (3,248) - - (6,417)
Gross settled denvatives — net flows 2,074 251 1,354 990 1,154 5,823
Net settled denvative habilites 1,824 640 415 350 970 4,199
Total denvative financial liabilities 3,898 891 1769 1,340 2,124 10,022

Cash flows for undated subordinated liabilities whase terms give the Group the option to redeem at a future date are included within the table on the basis that the
Group will exercise 1ts option to redeem

The pnncipal amount for undated subordinated {iabilities with no redemption optien 1s included within the over 5 years column, interest of approximately
£216 million (2008 £300 mullion) per annum for the Group and the Bank which is payable tn respect of those instruments for as long as they remain in 1ssue (1 & In
perpetuity} 1s not included beyond 5 years
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The Bank

As at 31 December 2009

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss
[¥eht securnties In 1ssue

Subordinated liabilities

Total

Gross settled denvatives — outflows
Gross settled denvatives — inflows

Gross settled denvatives — net flows
Net settled denvative habilities

Total denvative financial habilities

As at 31 December 2008

Deposits from banks

Customer deposits

Trading and other financial labitities at fair value through profit or loss
Debt secunties in 155ue

Subordinated liahihties

Total

Gross settled denvatives — autfllows
Gross settled derivatives — inflows

Total derivative financial habilities

Up te 13 3-12 15 Qver 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m
87,385 57,981 12,960 3,625 3,837 165,788
146,010 9,668 18,774 14,463 13,905 202,820
716 141 1,582 3,222 1,275 6,936
21,533 23,315 16,205 46,354 5,641 113,048
144 a1 595 4,544 17,519 22,883
255,788 91,186 50,116 72,208 42,177 511,475
4,244 368 227 126 686 5,651
- (1) {120) {442) {364) (927)
4,244 367 107 (316) 322 4,724
15,021 - - - - 15,021
19,265 367 107 (316) 322 19,745
61,342 14,675 2,203 2,579 - 80,799
146,168 G,689 19,758 B,498 2,122 186,235
27,912 425 1,210 7,051 3,573 40,171 '
16,100 22,206 10,561 23,605 3,263 75,735
21 102 409 4,479 17,432 22,443
251,543 47,097 34,141 46,212 26 390 405,383
5,214 292 4,640 1 188 1,880 13,214
{3,136) (33 (3,248 - - (6,417}
2,078 259 1,352 1,188 1,880 6,797

Liatnlities of the Group ansing from nsurance and participating investment contracts are analysed on a behavioural basis, as permitted

As at 31 December 2009
As at 31 December 2008

by IFRS 4, as follows

Up to 1-2 312 15 Over 5
1 moenth menths months years years Tetal
£m £m £m Em £m £m
485 1,203 1,895 7,983 25,394 36,960
340 927 2,626 7,030 22,504 33,827
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The fallewing tables set out the amounts and residual matunitres of off balance sheet contingent hatwhties and commitments

The Group within 1-3 s Qver 5
1 year years years years Total
£m £m Em £m £m
31 December 2009
Acceptances 53 - - - 53
QOther contingent liabilities 2,181 1,302 379 825 4,687
Total contingent habilibes 2,234 1,302 379 825 4,740
Lending commitments 46,662 17,205 7,253 2,408 73,528
Other commitments 866 105 - 6 977
Total commitments 47,528 17,310 7,253 2,414 74,505
Total contingents and commitments 49,762 18,612 7,632 3,229 79,245
31 December 2008
Acceptances 49 - - - 49
Other contingent liabilities 1,722 1,525 402 1,071 4,720
Tatal contingent liabilities 1,771 1,525 402 1,071 4,769
Lending commitrnents 54,155 15,029 8,014 3,625 80,823
Other commitments 572 181 80 99 932
Total commitments 54,727 15,210 8,094 3,724 81,755
Total contingents and commitments 56,498 16 735 B8 496 4,795 86,524
The Bank Within 13 3-5 Orver 5
1 year years years years Total
£m £m Em £m £m
31 December 2009
Acceptances 54 - - - 54
Other contingent habilities 1,537 1,292 379 340 4,048
Total conttngent habities 1,891 1,292 379 840 4,102
Lending commitments 53,007 16,439 6,836 2,079 78,361
Other commitments 3,481 105 - 6 3,592
Total commmitments 56,488 16,544 6,836 2,085 81,953
Total contingents and commitments 58,079 17,836 7,215 2,925 86,055
31 December 2008
Acceptances 49 - - - 49
Other contingent liabilities 1,631 1,522 402 1,089 4,644
Tetal contingent habiliies 1,680 1,522 402 1089 4,693
Lending commitments 64,095 14,613 7,704 3,290 89,702
Qther commitmenis 673 182 81 100 1,036
Total commitrments 64,768 14,795 7,785 3,390 903,738
Total contingents and commitments 66,448 16,317 B,187 4,479 §5,431
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Capital i1s actively managed at an appropnate level of frequency and regulatory ratios are a key factor in the Group's budgeting and planning processes with updates of
expected ratios reviewed regularly during the year by the Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liability Commiitee Capital raised takes account of expected growth and
currency of nsk assets Capital policies and procedures are subject to independent oversight

The Group s regulatory capital s divided into tiers defined by the European Community Banking Consohdation Directive as implermented in the UK by the Financial
Services Authonty's (FSA) General Prudential Sourcebook Tier 1 capiial comprnises mainly shareholders’ equity, tier 1 capital instruments and minonty interests, after
deducting goodwill, other intangible assets and 50 per cent of the net excess of expected losses aver accounting provisions and certain secuntisation positions During
the vear the FSA has dafined Core Teer 1 capital Accounting equity 15 adjusted In accordance with FSA requirements, particularly in sespect of pensions and
available-for-sale assets Tier 2 capital mainly comprises quahfying subordinated debt after deducting 50 per cent of the excess of expected losses over accounting
provistons, and certain secuntisation positions The amount of qualifying tier 2 capital cannot exceed that of tier 1 capital Total capital 1s reduced by deducting
investments 1n subsidiaries and assaciates that are not consolidated for regulatory purposes In the case of the Lioyds TSB Bank Group, this means that the net assets
of its Iffe assurance and general Insurance businesses are excluded from its total regulatory capital

2009 2008

£m £m

Tier 1 capital 18,307 13,574
Tier 2 capital 7.677 10,437
25,984 24,011

Supervisory deductions (5,182) (4,758)
Total capnal 20,802 18,253

A number of imits are )/mposed by the FSA on the proportion of the regulatory capital base that can be made up of subordinated debt and preferred secunties The
unpredictable nature of movements in the value of the investments supporting the long-term assurance funds could cause the amount of gualifying tier 2 capital to be
restricted because of falling trer 1 resources The Group seeks to ensure that even in the event of such restrictions the total capital ratio will remain adequate

The FSA sets Individual Capital Guidance (ICG") for each UK bank calibrated by reference to sts Capital Resources Requirement {'CRR’), broadly equivalent to
8 pes cent of nsk-weighted assets and thus representing the capital required under Pillar 1 of the Basel 1] framework Alsc a key put into the FSA's ICG setting
process, (which addresses the requirements of Pillar 2 of the Basel 11 framework), 1s each bank's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process The FSA's approach
1S to maontor the available capital resources in refation to the ICG requirement The Group has been given ICG by the FSA and the board has also agreed a formal
buffer to be maintained 1n addition to this requirement Any breaches of the formal buffer must be notified to the FSA, together with proposed remedial action The
FSA has made it clear that each ICG remains a confidential matter between each bank and the FSA

Duning the year, the individual entities within the Group and the Group compled with alt of the externally imposed capital requirements to which they are subject

53 Cash flow statements

a Change in operating assets The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m Em
Change mn loans and recewvables (149,608} {(33,717) (155,255) (46,849)
Change in denvative financial instruments trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,473 (8,827) 9,767 (15,191}
Change in other operating assets 228 (298) 1,578 (264)
Change in operating assets {142,905) (42,842) (143,910) (62,304)
b Change in operating habilities The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2008 2008
£m Em £m £m
Change In deposits from banks 73,678 25,279 80,534 29,445
Change In customer deposits 21,046 14,356 17,377 19,501
Change in debt secunties in 1ssue 47,238 21,501 53,469 36,175
Change in denvative financial instruments, tracing and other financial habilites at fair value
through profit or loss (11,835} 23,693 (13,282) 24,620
Change n investment contract habilities 2,982 (3,061) - -
Change n other operating habilities (674) 681 (1,440) 659
Change tn operattng habilities 132,435 82,449 136,658 110,400
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¢ Non cash and other items

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Depreciation and amortisation 733 686 339 317
Revaluation of investment properties 145 1,058 - -
Allowance for loan losses 4,353 2,876 3,635 2,472
Wnte-off of allowance for loan losses (2,786) {1,498) (2,512) (1,284)
Impairment of availlable for-sale secunties 21 130 16 130
Impairment of goodwill 240 100 -
Permanent diminution in value of subsidianes - - - 20
Change in insurance contract liabilities 3,173 (4,649) - -
Custormer remediation paid (3) (D (4} (8)
Other provision movements 159 16 163 45
Net charge in respect of defined benefit schemes 275 164 213 127
Contributions to defined benefit schemes (1,574) {547) (1,438) (4086)
Dther non-cash items (1,028) (3,743) (1,839) 2,262
Total non-cash items 3,706 (5,416) (1,427) 3,665
Interest expense on subordinated habilities 284 901 956 822
Other (7) (10) 24 a4)
Total other items 977 891 980 808
Non cash and other items 4,683 (4,525) (447) 4,473
d Analysis of cash and cash equivalents as shown (n the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m Em
Cash and balances with central banks ’ 36,089 L 5,008 l 35,964 I 4,890
Less mandatary reserve deposits® {392) (545) (372) (530)
35,697 4,463 35,592 4,360
Loans and advances to banks 175,554 40,758 176,556 36,968
Less amounts with a matunty of three months or mare and balances due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group
undertakings (154,645) | (12,461) [ (169,941} | (18,904)
20,909 28,297 6,615 18,064

56,606 32,760 42,207 22,424

"Mandatory reserve deposits are held with local central banks in accordance with statutory requirements, these deposits are not available to finance the Group's
day-to-day operations

Included within cash and cash equivalents of the Group at 31 December 2009 15 £10,358 miliion (2008 £8,255 millian) held within the Group's Iife funds, which
1s nat immediately available for use in the business
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53 Cash flow statements (continued}

e Analysis of changes in financing durning the year

Share caprtal (including share premium acceunt)
At 1 January
Issue of ardinary shares

At December

Minority interests

At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments

Repayment of capital to minanity shareholders
Minonty share of profit after tax

Dividends paid to minenity shareholders

At 31 December

Subordinated habilities

At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments

Proceeds from 1ssue of subordinated habilities
Repayments of suberdinated rabilities

At 31 December

f Acquisition of group undertakings and businesses

The Group The Bark
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m

4,502 4 502
5,600 -

4,502 4,502
5,600 -

10,102 4,502

10,102 4,502

The Group
2009 2008
£m £m
306 284
{19) 28
- (3)
24 26
(18) (29
293 306
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 20092 2008
£m £m £m £m

17,389 12 437
(2,735) 2,312

3,187 3,021
(1,842) (381)

16,853 11,903
(2,742) 2,310
3,187 3,021
(1,842) (381)

15,999 17,389

15,456 16,853

The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Net cash outflow from acquisitions in the year — investments in subsidiaries - - 1 817
Payments to former members of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society acguired dunng 2000 3s 19 - -
Net cash outflow from acquisitions 35 19 1 817

g Disposal of group undertalungs and businesses

The Bank generated inflows of £33 million (2008 £187 million) from the disposal and liquidahon of subsidiary undertakings
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54 Future accounting developments

The following pronouncements will be relevant to the Group but were not effective at 31 December 2009 and have net heen applied in prepanng these financial
staternents The full impact of these accounting changes 1s being assessed hy the Group, with the excepticn of IFRS 9 ‘Financiad (nstruments  Classification and
Measurement’, the intbial view 1s that none of these pronouncements are expected to cause any matenal adjustments to reported numbers in the financial statements

IFRS 9 1s the :nitial stage of a project to replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ and will fundamentally change the way in which the
Group accounts for financial instruments Future stages are expected to resuit in amendments to IFRS 9 to deal with classification and measurement of financial
liabihties, amortised cost and impairment and hedge accounting Until all stages of the replacement project are complete, it 1s not possible to determine the overall
impact on the financial statements from the repfacement of 1AS 39

Froncuncement

Nature of change

Effective date

IFRS 3 Business Combiriations

The revised standard continues te apply the acquisition mathod to
business combinations however all payments to purchase a business
are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date some contingent
payments are subsequently remeasured at farr value through income
goodwill may be calculated based on the parent's share of net assets or
it may include gocdwill related to the minonty interest and all
transaction costs are expensed

Annual penods heginning on or after
1 July 2009

1AS 27 Consohdated and Separate Financial
Staterments

Reguires the effects of all fransactions with non controliing interests to
be recorded in equity if there 1s no change 1n control, any remaining
interest 1n an investee 1s re measured to fair value in determining the
gain or loss recogmised 1n profit or loss where control over the investee
5 fost

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

IFRIC 17 Distnbutions of Non cash Assets o Owners

Provides accounting guidance for non reciprocal distnbutions of non-
cash assets to owners (and those in which owners may elect to receive
a cash alternative)

Annual periods beginming on or after
1 July 2009

Amendment to IAS 3% Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged
ltems

Clanfies how the pnnciples underlying hedge accounting should be
applied In particular situations

Annual periods begnning on or after
1 July 2009

Improvements to IFRSs'
{issued Apnl 2009)

Sets out minor amendments to IFRS standards as part of annual
Improvernments process

Dealt with on a standard by standard

basis but not earlier than annual penods

beginning on or after ¥ January 2010

Amendments to IFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share
based Payment Transactions

Clanfies that an entity that receives goods or services 1n a share-based
payment arrangerent must account for those goods or services no
matter which entity in the greup settles the transacthon whether or not
settled in shares or cash

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

Amendment o IAS 32 Financial Instruments
Presentation - Classification of Rights Isstes’

Requires nghts 1ssues denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the issuer to be classified as equity regardless of
the currency in which the exercise price 15 denominated

Annual periads beginning on or after
1 February 2010

IFRIC 19 Extingurshing Financial Liabifities with
Equity Instruments

Clanfies that when an enhity renegotiates the terms of its debt with the
result that the liabihity 1s extinguished by the debtor 1ssuing its own
equity Instruments to the creditor a gain or 10ss 15 recogmsed in profit
or loss representing the difference between the carrying value of the
financial hability and the fair value of the equity instruments ssued
the fair value of the financial liability 1s used to measure the gain or loss
where the fair value of the equity instruments cannot be reliably
measured

Annual penods beginring on or after
1 July 2010

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures?

Simplifies the defimtion of a related party and provides a partial
exemption frem the disclosure requirements for government related
entites

Annual perigds beginning on or after
1 January 2011

Amendment to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Mimmum
Funding Requirement’

Applies when an entity 1s subject to munimum funding requirements
and makes an eary payrent of contnbutions to cover those
requirernents and permits such an entity to treat the benefit of such an
early payment as an asset

Annual periods beginring on or after
1 January 2011

IFRS S Financiat instruments Classification and
Measurement

Replaces those parts of 1AS 39 'Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement’ relating to the classification and measurement of
financial assets Requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categones, fair value and amortised cost, on the basis of
the ohjectives of the entity s business medel for managing \ts hinancial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument
The available-for-sale financial assel and held to-maturity categories in
existing 1AS 39 will be eiiminated

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

! At the date of this report, these pronouncements are awaiting EL) endorsement
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55 Post balance sheet events
Following a reorganisation of Lloyds Banking Group on 1 January 2010, the Bank acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of HBOS plc from
Lloyds Banking Group plc, the consideration for this transfer was the 1ssue of 21 4 milhon shares to Lloyds Banking Group plc for a total value of £21,394 mullion

56 Approval of the financial statements and other information
The financial statements were approved by the directors of Lloyds TSB Bank plc on 25 february 201G

Lloyds TSB Bank ple and its subsidiaries form a leading UK-based financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services
In the UK and n certain ocations overseas
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